OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD
7275 West Main Street
Kalamazoo, MI 49009

September 12, 2023
Refer to page 3 for Virtual Meeting Information

REGULAR MEETING
5:30 P.M.
AGENDA

1. Call to Order
2. Remote Location Identification (for remote attendance when permitted by statute)

WORK SESSION ITEMS
3. Discussion on 2024 Annual Budget (Ongoing)
4. Other Updates & Business

BREAK (Time Permitting) — 7:05 P.M.

REGULAR SESSION ITEMS - 7:15 P.M.
5. Pledge of Allegiance
6. Township Mission/Vision/Core Values
7. Public Comment on Non-Regular Session Items
8. Consent Agenda
a. Minutes of Regular Meeting August 22, 2023
b. Poverty Exemption Guidelines 2023
c. Second Reading: Rezoning of 1560 S. 8" Street

9. Oshtemo Housing Plan Presentation and Consideration to Distribute by Emily Petz
10. First Reading: Conditional Rezoning of 8447 Stadium Drive

11. First Reading: Small Cell Wireless Communication Facilities Deployment Ordinance
12. First Reading: Wireless Telecommunication Facilities Ordinance

13. Consideration of Consultant for Parks 5-Year Plan Update

14. Meeting Room A/V Upgrade

15. Consideration of Awarding Landscape Restoration Contract for Croyden Avenue
16. Consideration of New Fire Department SAD

17. Budget Amendments

18. Discussion of L-4029 Township Property Taxes

19. Public Comment

20. Board Member Comments

21. Adjournment



Policy for Public Comment
Township Board Regular Meetings, Planning Commission & ZBA Meetings

All public comment shall be received during one of the following portions of the Agenda of an open meeting:

a. Citizen Comment on Non-Agenda ltems or Public Comment — while this is not intended to be a forum for
dialogue and/or debate, if a citizen inquiry can be answered succinctly and briefly, it will be addressed or it may
be delegated to the appropriate Township Official or staff member to respond at a later date. More complicated
questions can be answered during Township business hours through web contact, phone calls, email
(oshtemo@oshtemo.org), walk-in visits, or by appointment.

b. After an agenda item is presented by staff and/or an applicant, public comment will be invited. At the close of
public comment there will be Board discussion prior to call for a motion. While comments that include questions
are important, depending on the nature of the question, whether it can be answered without further research,
and the relevance to the agenda item at hand, the questions may not be discussed during the Board deliberation
which follows.

Anyone wishing to make a comment will be asked to come to the podium to facilitate the audio/visual
capabilities of the meeting room. Speakers will be invited to provide their name, but it is not required.

All public comment offered during public hearings shall be directed, and relevant, to the item of business on
which the public hearing is being conducted. Comment during the Public Comment Non-Agenda Items may be
directed to any issue.

All public comment shall be limited to four (4) minutes in duration unless special permission has been granted in
advance by the Supervisor or Chairperson of the meeting.

Public comment shall not be repetitive, slanderous, abusive, threatening, boisterous, or contrary to the orderly
conduct of business. The Supervisor or Chairperson of the meeting shall terminate any public comment which

does not follow these guidelines.
(adopted 5/9/2000)
(revised 5/14/2013)
(revised 1/8/2018)

Questions and concerns are welcome outside of public meetings during Township Office hours through phone calls,
stopping in at the front desk, by email, and by appointment. The customer service counter is open from Monday-
Thursday, 8 a.m.-1 p.m. and 2-5 p.m., and on Friday, 8 a.m.—1 p.m. Additionally, questions and concerns are
accepted at all hours through the website contact form found at www.oshtemo.org, email, postal service, and
voicemail. Staff and elected official contact information is provided below. If you do not have a specific person to
contact, please direct your inquiry to oshtemo@oshtemo.org and it will be directed to the appropriate person.

Oshtemo Township Board of Trustees Township Department Information
Supervisor Assessor:
Cheri Bell 216-5220 chell@oshtemo.org Kristine Biddle 216-5225 assessor(@oshtemo.otg
Clerk Fire Chief:
Dusty Farmer 216-5224 dfarmer(@oshtemo.org Gfefg McComb 3750487 gmccomb(@oshtemo.org
T Ordinance Enforcement:
Mk R Rick Suwarsky 216-5227 rsuwarskv(@oshtemo.org
Clare Buszka 216-5260 cbuszka@oshtemo.org Parks Director-
Trustees Vanessa Strect 216-5233 ystreet@oshtemo.org
Neil Sikora 760-6769 nsikora@oshtemo.org Rental Info 216-5224 oshtemo(@oshtemo.org
Kiistin Cole 3754260 keole@oshtemo.org Planning Director: . \
72k Ford 2715513 Jford@oshtemo.o Iris L.ubbert . 216-5223 ilubbert@oshtemo.or:

—("_g_ ] ' Public Works Director:

Kizzy Bradford 375-4260 kbradford@oshtemo.org Anna Horner 216-5228 ahorner@oshtemo.org

2


mailto:libbyhc@oshtemo.org
mailto:dfarmer@oshtemo.org
mailto:cbuszka@oshtemo.org
mailto:cbell@oshtemo.org
mailto:kcole@oshtemo.org
mailto:zford@oshtemo.org
mailto:kbradford@oshtemo.org
mailto:assessor@oshtemo.org
mailto:gmccomb@oshtemo.org
mailto:rsuwarsky@oshtemo.org
mailto:khigh@oshtemo.org
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
mailto:ilubbert@oshtemo.org
mailto:ahorner@oshtemo.org
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
http://www.oshtemo.org/
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org

Zoom Instructions for Participants

Before a videoconference:

1 Youwill need a computer, tablet, or smartphone with a speaker or headphones. You will have
the opportunity to check your audio immediately upon joining a meeting.

2. Ifyou are going to make a public comment, please use a microphone or headphones with a
microphone to cut down on feedback, if possible.

3. Details, phone numbers, and links to videoconference or conference call are provided below.
The details include a link to “Join via computer” as well as phone numbers for a conference call
option. It will also include the 11-digit MeetingID.

To join the videoconference:

1 At the start time of the meeting, click on this link to join via computer. You may be
instructed to download the Zoom application.

2. You have an opportunity to test your audio at this point by clicking on “Test Computer Audio.”
Once you are satisfied that your audio works, click on “Join audio by computer.”

You may also join a meeting without the link by going to join.zoom.us on any browser and entering this
Meeting ID: 886 2537 5277

If you are having trouble hearing the meeting or do not have the ability to join using a computer, tablet, or
smartphone then you can join via conference call by following instructions below.

To join the conference by phone:
1. Onyour phone, dial the teleconferencing number: 1-929-205-6099

2. When prompted using your touchtone (DTMF) keypad, enter the Meeting ID number:
886 2537 52774

Participant controls in the lower-left corner of the Zoom screen:

Wl P & ' ) & @®

Start Video Participants Share Screen Chat

Using the icons at the bottom of the Zoom screen, you can (some features will be locked to participants during
the meeting):

e Participants — opens a pop-out screen that includes a “Raise Hand” icon that you may use to
raise a virtual hand. This will be used to indicate that you want to make a public comment.

e Chat —opens pop-up screen that allows participants to post comments during the
meeting.

If you are attending the meeting by phone, to use the “Raise Hand” feature press *9 on your
touchtone keypad.

Public comments will be handled by the “Raise Hand” method as instructed above within Participant Controls.

Closed Caption:

Y~ - HE @ @ o

Unmute Start Video Participants are Scree Record Live Transcript ' |Reactions

Turn on Closed Caption:
Using the icons at the bottom of the Zoom screen:
1. Click on the “Live Transcription” button.
2. Then select “Show Subtitle”.


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88625375277
https://join.zoom.us/

Mission:

To advance the quality of life of all residents through a commitment to responsible growth, and
value-driven municipal services that promote the relationships among economic vitality,
environmental stewardship, and social equity.

Vision:

A sustainable and innovative community built through a legacy of planned, responsible growth
and rural preservation.

Core Values:

PUBLIC SERVICE
e Fair treatment to all people.
e Each customer is welcomed and that their input is wanted.
e Difficult questions are not marginalized.
e Allow residents to interact directly with the township staff and officials.
e Decisions are made based on the value to our Township and residents.

SUSTAINABILITY
e Meet the needs of the present without compromising future generations.
o Consider the environment through practices that reduce impacts.
o Value conscious decision making.
o Committing to quality Fire and Police protection.

INNOVATION
e Providing the best value-conscious technology currently available.
e Leverage new technologies and ways of doing business to increase accessibility and
improve services.

PROFESSIONALISM
e Hire staff with strong core competencies within their given profession.
e Commitment to continuous improvement to government operations.
e Dedicated to open communication to improve productivity and effectiveness.

INTEGRITY
e Decisions are made logically through the collection of evidence, facts, and public input.
e When promises are made, we follow through.
e We do not obfuscate — we say what we mean and do what we say.
e Transparent governmental practices are of the highest priority.

FISCAL STEWARDSHIP
e Ensure that taxpayer investments are spent wisely, effectively and efficiently.



MEMORANDUM

Date: September 3. 2(%93

To:  Township Bo?‘g

From: James Porter 4 Legal Department
Subject: Poverty Exemptions Guidelines 2023

Objectives

To adopt revised Property Exemption Guidelines.

I make a motion: to adopt the Poverty Exemption Guidelines 2023.

Background

The state reviewed our policy in preparation of our assessing audit. The state objected to Paragraph 11 of
the Poverty Exemption Guidelines which stated “The Board of Review shall follow the policy and
guidelines of Oshtemo Charter Township as set forth in this resolution in granting or denying an
exemption unless the Board of Review determines there are substantial and compelling reasons why there
should be deviation from the policy and guidelines and the substantial and compelling reasons are

communicated in writing to the applicant.”

Information Provided

Attached you will find the revised Poverty Exemption Guidelines for 2023.

Core Values

Public Service

Fownship Attomey s Office
7275 W. Main Street
kalamazoo. M1 49009
(269) 375-7195



OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP
KALAMAZOO COUNTY, MICHIGAN

RESOLUTION APPROVING
POVERTY EXEMPTIONS GUIDELINES — 2023

Meeting of the Township Board on September 12, 2023

WHEREAS, the adoption of guidelines for poverty exemptions is within the purview of
the Township Board; and

WHEREAS, the homestead of persons who, in the judgment of the Supervisor and Board
of Review, by reason of poverty, are unable to contribute to the public charges is eligible for
exemption in whole or part from taxation under Public Act 390, 1994 (MCL 211.7u); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to PA 390, 1994 Oshtemo Charter Township, Kalamazoo County
adopts the following guidelines for the Supervisor and Board of Review to implement. The
guidelines shall include but not be limited to the specific income and asset levels of the claimant
and all persons residing in the household, including any property tax credit returns, filed in the
current or immediately preceding year.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the following shall constitute the Township
Poverty Exemption Guidelines for 2023.

To be eligible, a person shall do all the following on an annual basis:

(1)  Be an owner of and occupy as a homestead the property for which an
exemption is requested.

2) File a claim with the Supervisor or Board of Review, accompanied by
federal and state income tax returns for all persons residing in the homestead.

3 Produce a valid driver’s license or other form of identification if requested.

@) Produce a deed, land contract, or other evidence of ownership of the
property for which an exemption is requested if requested.

5) Meet the federal poverty income standards as defined and determined
annually by the United States Office of Management and Budget.



6) The application for an exemption shall be filed after January 1, but at least
a week before the start of the March Board of Review, July Board of Review or
December Board of Review.

Poverty exemption standards shall be as follows:

The following are the poverty thresholds as of September 12, 2023, for use in setting poverty
exemption guidelines for 2023 assessments:

Size of Family Unit 2023 Poverty Guidelines 2023 Qualifying Income
Level
(Federal) (Per Township Policy)

1 13590 16987

2 18310 22887

3 23030 28787

4 27750 34687

5 32470 40587

6 37190 46487

7 41910 52387

8 46630 58287

For each additional person 4720 5900

1.

Applicants must complete an application, except for their signature, and return it in person
to the Assessor’s Office.

Applications must be signed and witnessed by an employee of the Township and filed with
the Assessor after January 1 but at least a week before the start of the March Board of
Review, July Board of Review or December Board of Review.

Applicant must submit the previous year’s Federal Income Tax Return and State Income
Tax Return.

Applications may be reviewed by the Board without applicant being present, however, the
Board may request the applicant be physically present to respond to questions; and may be
called upon to appear on short notice.

Answers to questions regarding the applicant’s financial affairs, health or medical
expenses, employment status of those residing in the residence may be requested before
the meeting of the Board.



10.

11.

12.

Applicants will be administered an oath of truth.

An asset test considering all assets owned by the applicant other than the applicant’s
homestead vehicle and normal household goods will be used in determining whether relief
should be granted. Homeowners with assets in excess of $25,000 may not be eligible for
tax exemption consideration.

The Board may grant property tax relief based on poverty annually.

Applicant may be subject to investigation by the Township to verify information submitted
or statements made in regard to a tax exemption claim.

The meeting may be recorded, and minutes will be kept of all proceedings of the Board of
Review and all meetings held in compliance with the Open Meetings Act.

Applicants will be evaluated based on data submitted to the Board of Review, testimony
taken from the applicant and information gathered from any source by the Township.

Those homeowners who meet the income and asset limitations set forth herein may be
granted an exemption or partial exemption.

A formal motion was made by , seconded by , that the Board of Review follow

the above-stated policy and federal guidelines in granting or denying an exemption.

The following voted "Aye":
The following voted "Nay":
The following were absent:
The following “Abstained”:

The Supervisor declared the Formal Motion had been adopted.

Cheri Bell, Supervisor
Oshtemo Charter Township



* %k ok %k %k %k k ok k k k ok %k

CERTIFICATE

I, Dusty Farmer, the duly elected and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Oshtemo,
hereby certify that the foregoing Formal Motion was adopted by the Township Board of said
Charter Township at a regular meeting of said Board held on September 12, 2023, at which meeting
____members were present, and voted upon the same as indicated in said Minutes; that said meeting
was held in accordance with the Open Meetings Act of the State of Michigan.

Dusty Farmer, Township Clerk



MEMORANDUM

Date: August 29, 2023

CHARTER TOWNSHIP

- Established

To:  Township Board
From: James Porter- Legal Department-

Subject: Second Reading and Adoption of Rezoning for 1560 S 8" St

Objective:

To accept for Second Reading and Adoption of the Rezoning of 1560 S 8% St from its current zoning
designation of R-3, Residence District to I-1, Industrial District.

Proposed Motion:

I move to accept the Planning Commission’s Recommendation for approval of the Rezoning of the
subject property from R-3, Residence District to I-1, Industrial District, Parcel No. 05-22-485-030.

Background Information:

Attached is the Proposed Ordinance No. 658 for Rezoning of 1560 S 8" St and the Minutes of August 22,
2023.

Township Attomey’s Office
7275 W. Main Street
Kalamazoo, M1 49009
(269) 375-7195

10



OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP ORDINANCE NO. 658
Adopted:

Effective:

OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP ORDINANCE

An Ordinance to amend the Oshtemo Charter Township Zoning Ordinance by the
rezoning of 1560 S 8™ St, Parcel No. 05-22-485-030, from R-3, Residence District to I-1, Industrial
District, of the Oshtemo Charter Township Zoning Ordinance. This Ordinance repeals all
Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict.

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF OSHTEMO
KALAMAZOO COUNTY, MICHIGAN
ORDAINS:

SECTION L. AMENDMENT OF LAND SECTION 24. The Oshtemo Charter
Township Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended to rezone the subject

property at 1560 S 8th St, Parcel No. 05-22-485-030, from R-3, Residence
District to I-1, Industrial District.

SECTION IIL EFFECTIVE DATE AND REPEAL. All Ordinances or parts of
Ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed. This
Ordinance shall take effect upon publication after adoption in accordance
with State law.

DUSTY FARMER, CLERK
OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP



THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF OSHTEMO
Regular Board Meeting
August 22, 2023
5:30 PM

The Oshtemo Township Public Meeting was held in person at the Township Hall. Residents
were able to give public comments during the meeting. Supervisor Bell called the meeting to
order at approximately 5:30 PM.

PRESENT:

Supervisor Cheri Bell

Clerk Dusty Farmer

Treasurer Clare Buszka- remote

Trustee Zak Ford

Trustee Neil Sikora

Trustee Kizzy Bradford- arrived approximately 6:45 PM

ABSENT:
Trustee Kristin Cole

Also present were Public Works Director Anna Horner, Attorney James Porter, HR Director Sara
Feister, IT Director Jon Gibson, and Planning Director Iris Lubbert.

Development Inspection Costs
The Township has not been successful in hiring a Site Inspector this year, and the Planning
Director recommends utilizing the funds budgeted for the position to hire a contracted site
inspector from one of the companies with which we currently work.

Motion by Farmer, second by Sikora to amend the budget to move the $50,000 budgeted for Site
Inspector to the Planning contract line. Motion carried 4-0, with 3 absent.

Department Budget Presentations
Planning
South Drake Road Corridor Improvement Authority
Downtown Development Authority
Legal
Ordinance Enforcement

Public Comment
Supervisor Bell opened public comment. One person spoke.

Consent Agenda

a. Minutes of Regular Meeting August 1, 2023
b. HARC Policy Update



¢. Board/Committee Appointments (HARC)

d. Employee Milestone Anniversary Recognition Policy
e. Planning Director Job Description

f. Budget Amendments

g. Purchasing Policy Update

Motion by Ford, second by Farmer to approve the consent agenda with the Supervisor’s name
removed from the HARC appointment. Motion carried 5-0, with 2 absent.

Presentation by Patrese Griffin, Continuum of Care Director
Patrese Griffin, Continuum of Care Director, presented information to the Board regarding the
role of Continuum of Care (CoC) within Kalamazoo County. CoC is a Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) program designed to promote community-wide commitment to the goal of
ending homelessness. CoC partners with municipalities to identify gaps, inequities, and
challenges. They measure and analyze data to ensure accountability. They write, maintain, and
monitor a 10-year Plan to End Homelessness as mandated by HUD.

First Reading: Rezoning Request for 1560 S. 8th Street
Supervisor Bell opened public comment. No public comment.

Motion by Farmer, second by Ford to accept the rezoning request for 1560 S. 8™ St for first
reading and set for second reading on September 12. Motion carried 5-0, with 2 absent.

Creation of Industrial Development District for Faraday Properties
Superv1sor Bell opened public comment. No public comment.

Motion by Bell, second by Bradford to adopt a resolution creating the Industrial Development
District for unit three of the WMU Business Technology Research Park 2.0. Roll call. Bradford-
Yes, Ford-No, Sikora-No, Farmer-No, Bell-Yes, Buszka-absent, Cole-absent. Resolution failed.

Consideration of Resolution to Discontinue Streetlight SAD
Supervisor Bell opened public comment. No public comment.

Motion by Ford, second by Sikora to adopt a resolution to discontinue the general street lighting
district. Roll call. Resolution adopted 5-0, with Buszka and Cole absent.

Consideration of Media & Communications Contract Award to LKF Marketing
Supervisor Bell opened public comment. No public comment.

Motion by Farmer, second by Sikora to authorize the Supervisor to complete the negotiations
with LKF and to enter contract for communications and marketing services. Motion carried 4-0,
with 3 absent.

Public Comment
Supervisor Bell opened public comment. One person spoke.

13



Supervisor Bell adjourned the meeting at approximately 9:30 PM.

Prepared by: Dusty Farmer Attested: Cheri Bell
Township Clerk Township Supervisor



Memorandum

Oshtemo

CHARTER TOWNSHIP

To: Township Board . Established 1839 -
From: Iris Lubbert, Planning Director
Subject: Oshtemo Housing Plan Presentation and Consideration to Distribute

Objectives
MOTION: Township Board accepts and authorizes the distribution of the Oshtemo Township Housing Plan 2023 for a

63-day comment period per the Michigan Planning Enabling Act.

Background
In October 2021 Oshtemo Township entered into a contract with W.E. Upjohn Institute for Employment Research to

develop a housing plan. The housing plan would investigate existing housing conditions within the community, as well
as suggest strategies to improve current conditions and address future housing needs.

A final draft of the Oshtemo Township Housing Plan was presented to the Planning Commission on September 29" for
review and consideration. With minor edits, the Planning Commission unanimously recommended forwarding the
Housing Plan to the Township Board to start the official public review process. If distribution is approved by the
Township Board, after the required 63-day comment period, the plan can then move forward to the Planning
Commission for a public hearing. If the Commission makes a recommendation to approve the housing plan, the plan
will return to the Township Board for final consideration and potential adoption.

Emily Petz, with W.E. Upjohn Institute for Employment Research, will present highlights of housing plan to the
Township Board at their September 12" meeting.

This plan covers a housing needs assessment, market demands, results from the Oshtemo Township Housing Survey,
Oshtemo portion of the countywide housing survey, and goals and objectives. Community and committee engagement

helped to guide the direction and focus.

Information Provided: Oshtemo Township Housing Plan 2023

Core Values: Public Service, Sustainability, Innovation, Professionalism, Integrity

15



Oshtemo Township
Housing Plan'2023

Prepared by the W.E. Upjohn Institute and the Southcentral Michigan
Planning Council for the Oshtemo Township Board

O WEUPJOHN
sntemo INSTITUTE

FOR EMPLOYMENT RESEARCH

By Emily Petz, Dakota McCracken, Gerrit Anderson, Lee Adams, and Brian Pittelko




Acknowledgments

No single group or solution will solve the housing crisis.

As such, many individuals and organizations were asked

to contribute to the creation of this housing plan, including
municipal leaders, realtors, developers, employers, nonprofit
agencies, and residents. The Planning Commission worked
as the steering committee to provide critical direction and
innovative ideas to the planning process, which in turn
guided the goals and objectives of this plan. Stakeholders’
input on these strategies is vital, as their knowledge of local
conditions and politics helps determine which are likely to
succeed. In addition to the public planning-commission
meetings, eight special public meetings in the evening and
on weekends were held to collect feedback on preliminary
results. Survey responses were collected from 503

residents in the Oshtemo targeted survey. Some 435 more
were received from Oshtemo residents countywide in the
Kalamazoo County survey. The strong participation showed
the level of concern and passion people have for coming up
with housing solutions for Oshtemo Township.

Formulating this housing plan would not be possible

without the hard work of the Planning Commission and the
Community Development Department at Oshtemo Township.
Additional support provided by township volunteers was
invaluable in getting the word out about the housing

survey. In addition to those who answered the survey, we
had around 55 participate in stakeholder in-person and
Zoom meetings. We are grateful for the collaboration and
partnerships that formed during this process.

Planning Commission
members

Kizzy Bradford (TB liaison)
Philip Doorlag

Deb Everett

Zak Ford (TB licison)

Scot Jefferie

Micki Maxwell

Alistair Smith

Bruce VanderWeele

Anna Versalle

Chetan Vyas

Local Housing Experts and
Residents

Curt Aardsma
Paul Ecklund
Melissa Fish
Gary Heckman
Kelley Kellis
Christy Lash
Rich MacDonald
Susan Riker
Paula Rumsey
Mary Shuster
Neil Sikora

Township Board members

Cheri Bell

Kizzy Bradford

Clare Buszka

Kristin Cole

Dusty Farmer

Zak Ford

Libby Heiny-Cogswell

Staff Support

Ann Homrich (Executive Assistant)
Colten Hutson (Zoning Administrator)
Iris Lubbert (Planning Director)
James Porter (Township Attorney)

The Township wishes to thank the residents that attended the public meetings and participated
in the online survey. Your feedback and participation were an invaluable part of the plan!

17



INrOdUCHON ... 4

Creating This PIan ..o 7
Housing ContiNUUM ...c.cueiiiiiieierceeer et 5
EXECUtIVE SUMMQAIY ... 7
Methodology ... 9
County Survey Methodology ..........cccuvrerinieneieinisieeseseeses e 9
Oshtemo Survey Methodology ..., 10
Housing Assessment ..., 1
ADBOUIhE DAHQ ...ttt s 12
GEOGIAPRAY ..o 15
Population and Households...............ccovueiuriunreniiniesirieieeeee e 16
ROCE ..ottt 17
AAGE ettt 21
TENUIE ..ttt seaeaes 25
INCOME 10 AFfOrd REN ..o 37
COSEBUITEN ..ot 39
HOUSING UNIES ...ttt 42
AGING HOUSING STOCK ... 43
Price aNd WAGES.......couuieiieieeeeee et 45
Sale Price and INVENTOTY ........ccovueverieieieeeeses e 45
Kalamazoo County Survey Results........................... 46
ADOUthE DAtQ ..ot 47
Oshtemo Survey Results..............ccccccovvviviiiiiinnne. 53
ADBOUIthE DOHA ...ttt 54
Housing Supply and Demand .....................c.ccc......... 61
CUrrent DEMANG........c.cueiuiieieeeiseees et 62
COSEBUIEN ..ot 63
HoUSING Prefer@nCes .........cvuveeveeieieieieeeeeee e 64
Impacts of Great RECESSION .........ccevueveereerireeirernenene s 67
FUIUFE DeMANG ...ttt e 68

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Contents

Goals, Objectives, and Strategies............................ 71
COllABOTAHON ...t 72
GOAl Ti e 73
GOGI 2 e 75
GGl Bi e 76
GOGI 4 e 77
APPENdiX.........ooovoiiriiee s 79
Written Responses to Oshtemo Housing Survey Questions....................... 80
Housing Segregation TIMeline.............c.cueuveumivoerenerenerirerneeneinenciscieens 102
Urban Transect DEfiniHONS .........c.ccvvveeeneineinineiseeseeeeeeeese e 105
Charts
1. Oshtemo Township Income by Race, 2021 ........ccccooveevrrrrerrenrenen. 18
2. Michigan Population Pyramid, 20271 .........ccccoceveimerieirrerrrenrinnanns 21
3. Oshtemo Township Population Pyramid, 2021 ..........ccccccovuvrrrrnrunnne. 21
4. Kalamazoo Population Pyramid, 2021 ........cccccvveeeeerivrrrrrirrirrinen. 22
5. Oshtemo TowIncome Income Distribution ..............cccovereeneesieneeneenn. 23
6. Oshtemo Township Income by Age, 2021 ........c.cocvmveomevnernnirrerirennnn. 24
7. Housing Tenure in Oshtemo ToWNShIp .........ccovveumvererenerinerreineeins 25
8. Median Owner Specified Value of Owner-Occupied
Housing Units ..........cccoviiiiiriicicccce e 26
9. Owner Specified Value of Owner-Occupied Housing
UNIES ettt 27
10. Houing Units by type: Oshtemo Township ..........ccocovvvernernernerens 28
11. Percent of Total Housing TYPe ......cccoeeuermererevenerneineiineiseissiseiesnne. 30
12. Seniors in Oshtemo Township, 2021 .........cc.coovvririrrrerererereneens 32
13. Living Arrangements of Adults, Oshtemo Township 2021 ........ 33-34
15. Oshtemo Township Homeownership by Age........cccccovvvvrirrirrunrunnen. 37
16. FHFA Price Index and Average Weekly Wage Index....................... 45
17. Inventory and Average Sale Price...........ccovveeeieirerioeisesesssrinann 45
18. Top Three Priorities for Supporting Housing...........cc.ccovueeerurirrinnne. 47
19. Which of the Following Do You Worry About in Your Home or
Apartment?: Renter vs. OWNET......c.cvccueuvnieurnieeneeeneeie e 48
20. What Five Factors Are Most Important to You When Choosing
A HOMEZ ...ttt 49
18



21. Percent of Income That Goes to Housing Expenses, by Income
Level (in TROUSANAS) ...t 50
22. Percent of Income That Goes to Housing Expenses, Renter vs.
OWNET .ttt et 51
23. Do You Feel Your Housing is Affordable, Renter vs. Owner............ 52
24. How long have you lived in Oshtemo Township?@...........ccccocvvunnecn. 54
25. How old are you?..........coovviieeeeesese e 55
26. Can you find (or have you found) housing that aligns with your
EAMNINGSC vttt sttt ettt esen 56
27. How Important or unimportant is it to have housing options for a
variety of incomes in Oshtemo?............cco.ovvvruvrininrinreneseesseen, 57
28. Do you agree with the statement “ It is important for our community
to build more multi-family housing options” ..........ccccovvvvevrinrrrenenn. 58
29. What are (or were) your greatest challenges when looking to find
housing in OShteMO?...........c.covuiriririreesee e 59
30. 2021 Income and Housing Burden for Renters............cccoeevreerrenrennee. 64
31. 2021 Income and Housing Burden for Owners ...........cccooovvrrunenne. 64
32. Housing Preferences for Renters and Owners,
OshtemO TOWNSRIP ..o 65
33. National Housing Preference............c.cocovvvvuveeoevnverriniseseisssrisnianns 66
34.  Unit Permitting in Oshtemo Township vs. Kalamazoo County,
2004 =2022..c.eeeeetrteetse ettt 67
35.  Unit Permitting and Population for Oshtemo Township
DY AGE oo 67
36. Units Needed in Oshtemo Township by Income Level..................... 68
37 Renters Planning on Buying a House in the Next Three
YEars DY AQE ..o 69
38. Renters Planning on Buying a House in the Next Three Years......... 69
Images
1. Housing CONHNUUM ......c.ooeueuriirieisieies et 6
2. Urban TranSECh ... 50
3. Housing Segregation Timeline...........cocovurvnienrenineenrisesereerne. 102

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Contents

Tables
1 Oshtemo Township Populahon ............cccoeumirineininersisinesenenes 16
2. Tenure by Household Size, Oshtemo Township..........c.cccoccovvurnvennnne. 17
3. Race 2016-2021, Oshtemo Township ..........ccocevrvrereeereneireisrneanes 17
4. Oshtemo Township Income By Race, 2021 ........ccccoovevrrrrrrrrenrennn. 19
5 Housing units by type, Oshtemo Township. .......ccccooovvverrirrirrennanne. 29
6. Housing units by [0CQHON ......coveeeeeeisrisieieieeee e 29
7. Owner and renter occupied rates ..........c..coveerivreerirrrenenerrsrennen, 31
8. Housing characteristics, 2021 ........cccoevrurrerrurrnrniririeieisesessssensans 31
9. Number of Units by Age, Oshtemo Township .........cc.ccccovvrinrrrnnnes 32
10. Tenure by Household Size, Oshtemo Township........ccccccovuvvurrernnne. 33
11. Homeownership, Oshtemo Township.........c.cccevreririrrirrnrinrrrnranns 36
12. Oshtemo Township Housing Units .........c.ccoccevevvninirinieiressresrsnens 42
13. Year Structure Was Built, Oshtemo Township..........ccccoovevrurrirrennnnee. 43
14. Year Structure Was Built for Seniors Oshtemo Township................. 43
15. Affordable Unit Levels Necessary to Alleviate Overburdened
Renters in Oshtemo TOWNSAID ..o 63
16. Affordable Units to Alleviate Overburdened Homeowners
in OShteMO TOWNSAIP .....ovvviieieieices e 63
17, Units Needed to Meet Demand from Growth Over the Next Eight
YEATS ..ottt 70
Maps
1. Oshtemo Township by Census Tract, 2011 Tracts........ccoccveeveerrerrennn. 13
2. Oshtemo Township by Census Tract, 2021 Tracts ........cccoeevureerrennenes 14
3. Oshtemo Population Percent Change, 2016-2021........ccccovvvrunnne. 20
4. Oshtemo Homeownership Percent Change, 2016-2021................. 35
5. Oshtemo Income Needed to Afford Median Rent, 2021 ................ 38
6. Oshtemo Cost-Burdened Homeowners, 2021 .......ccceeeeeeeeeeeennne. 40
7. Oshtemo Cost-Burdened Renters, 2021 ........ccooeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeann. 41
8. Oshtemo Housing Units Percent Change, 2016-2021 .................. 44
19



I

Introduction



Housing Continuum

The housing continuum demonstrates the range of housing types options along this continuum in order to allow residents to not only
in which individuals may live during their lifetimes. A healthy stay in their community through each stage, but, more importantly,
housing market has options for any stage. Individuals can move in to thrive through economic stability.

any direction at any point in their lives. A healthy community has

Image 1: Housing Continuum Got evicted

ooooal,

(afafafa] Wy
L0oMno

MARKET
REMTAL

MARKET HOME

These are a few examples of how peaple might meve within the hausing cantinuem,

Source: Housing Continuum Image Courtesy
of United Way of Halifax (Canada)

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Introduction 21



Creating This Plan

The Upjohn Institute was asked by the Oshtemo Township Board
to complete a housing plan for the community. This plan will cover
the housing needs assessment, market demands, results from the
Oshtemo Township Housing Survey, the Oshtemo portion of the
countywide housing survey, and goals and objectives. Community
and committee engagement helped guide the direction and focus.
The data and survey results help to put context to the housing
pressures and frustrations being experienced throughout the
Township. We cannot stop change, but we can take a proactive
approach to guiding the changes and growth to provide a better
future. The plan provides the data to see where we are currently,
where we can go and how we can get there.

Executive Summary

A healthy housing continuum provides homes for those with a
range of incomes or in different life situations. Oshtemo Township
has a shortage of housing units at multiple price points. Low rates
of construction, high construction costs, increased demand from a
growing population, and housing costs that are increasing faster
than wages have contributed to the shortage and affordability
issues. This plan uses a number of indicators to assess the condition
of the housing continuum. The indicators examined include the
current and projected population, the existing housing stock,

and the needs and desires of the current population. Population
indicators and survey results are needed to understand the current
and future demand for housing. An examination of the existing
housing stock is needed in order to grasp what problems currently
exist and which housing types are needed going forward.
Assessing the needs and desires of the existing population helps
guide decision-making around how resources are utilized to
provide the greatest benefit to Township residents.

Fortunately, many strategies are available to help alleviate some

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Introduction

of the housing concerns found in the township. These strategies
are most effective when community partners band together to
implement them as a cohesive unit.

In 2021, the population of Oshtemo Township stood at 23,583.
It had grown about 5 percent during the preceding five years,

a higher growth rate than that of the state overall, which was
1.54 percent for that same period. The township had grown by
205 households since 2016. Among homeowners, one-person
households and two-person households have declined by 3.0
and 7.5 percentage points, respectively. From 2016 to 2021, the
population of Oshtemo Township became more racially diverse.
The fastest-growing ethnic/racial group is the one categorized as
“Two or More Races,” whose proportion increased by more than
4 percentage points over the five-year period.

Housing-unit construction in Oshtemo Township has remained

low following the housing crash of the Great Recession. Even as
the housing bubble burst, Oshtemo continued to grant building
permits, while permits in the county overall declined. Both the
township and the county have found a stable level of construction
since the recovery, though Oshtemo has been trending downward
since 2018. While the pace of permitting countywide is modest,
Oshtemo Township is missing out on potential growth and unmet
demand.

Lower inventory of housing is one of the drivers of higher prices:
demand for housing is high, but there are fewer available homes
than in the past. Housing prices and weekly earnings were

Affordability is defined as a household
paying 30 percent or less of its total gross
annual income on housing. This is an inclusive
definition that can be used for either market-
rate or subsidized housing. Conversely,
income-qualified units are intended only for
low- and moderate-income households.
22



trending generally together until 2018. Then, wages stagnated until
the end of 2020 before rising steadily through 2021. During the
same period, home prices rose steadily until flattening in 2022. The
resulting gap is stark, making many homes unaffordable even as
wages are rising.

The high proportion of university students in Oshtemo Township
likely lowers the median income. Residents under the age of 25
making less than $20,000 a year account for twice the rate in
Oshtemo Township as they do statewide. Additionally, over 15
percent of the senior-aged population in Oshtemo Township make
less than $20,000 annually, and 28 percent of Oshtemo seniors
make less than $30,000 annually, indicating that some seniors
likely struggle to afford housing without being cost-burdened.

Overall, the number of owner-occupied housing units in Oshtemo
Township increased by more than 50 from 2016 to 2021. However,
there was a decline in homeownership in Census Tract 29.05 (the
section of the township south of the Amtrak line and west of U.S
131) by 1.81 percent.

The housing concerns in Oshtemo Township are not small. Rising
costs have put most moderate- and low-income earners into
situations where they are paying more in rent or ownership costs
than what is financially sustainable. The supply-and-demand
chapter shows that 2,300 renting households are burdened by
their current housing costs. Most of these renters earn below
20,000 per year and would need rental units costing below
$500 per month for relief from that burden. There are fewer than
1,000 overburdened homeowners, in a wide range of incomes.
The largest group, at 300 households, are making $35,000

to $49,999 per year. These households would need homes of
between $115,000 and $163,000 (depending on property taxes
and loan parameters) to afford payments of $875 to $1,249 per
month.

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Introduction

According to our estimates, the township needs to enable the
development of 750 new housing units to address housing issues.
This includes population-growth projections and pent-up demand
from the past under production of housing. This will require a
substantial public private investment—an estimated $177 million.

In total, 504 responses were received in the Oshtemo Township
Survey, for a coverage rate of 5 percent of households. This is
within the standard range for survey responses. Homeowners make
up just over half of Oshtemo Township residents but represent over
85 percent of respondents to the survey. To account for this, data
from the survey questions were apportioned by renter and owner
to show responses separately. The purpose of the survey was to
provide additional public engagement and feedback during a
time when in- person meetings decreased. The survey responses
do not represent the demographics of the community based on

the U.S. Census’s American Community Survey. There was a

strong difference between renter and owner responses on further
development of multifamily housing. The largest portion of renters—
over 45 percent—strongly agreed that multifamily housing options
were important. Owners were more evenly distributed but seem
generally not to be in favor of multifamily housing, as “strongly
agree” was the smallest response.

Owners and renters have different challenges when it comes to
finding housing. Renters’ primary concern is price. Their second
and third concerns are the pace by which units are leaving the
market and the various housing options. For owners, the issues were
more evenly distributed, but the pace of homes on the market was
the most frequent response. When asked what they were looking
for when choosing a home, renters’ top response indicated a desire
to live in a mixed-income neighborhood. They also prioritized
proximity to work more highly than homeowners did. Homeowners’
responses most often prioritized factors associated with family life,
such as parks, schools, and proximity to family.

23



Kalamazoo County Survey
Methodology

The intent of this survey was to document the housing characteristics
and preferences of housed residents of Kalamazoo County. Survey
questions were focused on determining demand for specific
housing types, location preferences, clarifying housing challenges,
getting feedback on housing priorities, and determining how
different demographic groups are impacted by housing crises.
Information gathered from this survey was used to inform content in
the Kalamazoo County Housing Plan.

The target population for the survey was housed residents living in
Kalamazoo County. For the purposes of this survey, all adults living
in the household were asked to respond. As of 2021, Kalamazoo
County had a population of 261,108 [1]. There were 204,985
individuals aged 18 and over residing in Kalamazoo County as of
2021 [2]. Additionally, there were 105,990 occupied housing units
as of 2020 [3].

A sample of residential addresses was obtained from the
Kalamazoo County government. Because the county government
utilizes the address list for emergency services, apartment units
are not specified. This lack of information was compensated for
by identifying multifamily residents in the address list and verifying
the number of units at the address from voting records. Addresses
to be mailed survey prompts were randomly selected from the
augmented list. Moreover, the survey was also shared on social
media by cities, townships, villages, neighborhood groups, and
nonprofits throughout Kalamazoo County.

The survey instrument was implemented through Survey Monkey
on March 1, 2022, and concluded on May 22, 2022. A total

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Methodology

of 35,500 survey prompts were mailed to homes in Kalamazoo
County. Resource limitations led to the selection of a multifaceted
approach to advertising the survey among housed residents of
Kalamazoo County. Moreover, this approach would attempt to
account for the errors that could occur from administering survey
prompts only by way of a mailer.

The mailed survey prompts, social media campaigns, and other
advertising methods yielded roughly 3,000 responses. Of those
roughly 3,000 responses, 435 were from Oshtemo Township
Residents. It is essential to incorporate these responses in this
plan to ensure the largest number of Ostemo Township residents’
perspectives were considered. The results and analysis of these
responses are found in Chapter 4.

24



Oshtemo Township Survey
Methodology

The intent of this survey was to document the housing characteristics
and preferences of housed residents of Oshtemo Township. Survey
questions were focused on determining demand for specific
housing types, location preferences, clarifying housing challenges,
getting feedback on housing priorities, and determining how
different demographic groups are impacted by housing crises.
Information gathered from this survey was used to inform the
Oshtemo Township Housing Plan.

The target population for the survey was housed residents living in
Oshtemo Township. For the purposes of this survey, all adults living
in the household were asked to respond. As of 2021, Oshtemo
Township had a population of 23,583 [1]. There were 18,687
individuals aged 18 and over residing in Oshtemo Township as of
2021 [2]. Additionally, there were 10,383 occupied housing units
as of 2021 [3].

The survey instrument was implemented through Survey Monkey on
November 18th, 2022 and concluded on March 10th, 2023. The
survey was shared on a postcard to all addresses registered to vote
in Oshtemo Township. It was shared on the Township newsletter,
through multiple social media posts and posters were made for
apartments where posting was possible. In total, 504 responses
were received, for a coverage rate of 5 percent of households. This
is within the standard range for survey responses.

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Methodology

25

10



y.

Housing Assessment



About the Data

Most of the data gathered for this report come from the 2021 and
2016 five-year estimates of the American Community Survey,
which is a product of U.S. Census Bureau. Census data are
collected through a self-reported survey; as such, it is possible
that respondents did not provide entirely accurate responses.
Nonetheless, the U.S. Census Bureau remains a reliable data
source for subjects covered in this report. Not all variables
identified in the report were available at the county subdivision
level; therefore, we pulled data at the census tract level.

Data Limitations

The U.S. Census Bureau updates the boundaries of census
tracts every 10 years; therefore, the 2021 five-year
estimates and the 2016 five-year estimates of census-

tract boundaries are not the same. Moreover, the 2021
five-year estimates correspond to the 2020 census-tract
boundaries, while the 2015 five-year estimates correspond
to the 2010 census-tract boundaries. The U.S. Census
Bureau either splits or merges census tracts, depending on
population change (splits for population increases and
merges for population decreases). In Oshtemo Township
between 2010 and 2020, three census tracts were split into
new tracts (see Table 2), for a total of six census tracts. This
discrepancy between the two years means that metrics that
require calculating the percentage change between the
2021 five-year estimates and the 2016 five-year estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

are associated with the 2010 census-tract boundaries, as
the tracts that were splitin 2020 can be aggregated to
sum to the value of the 2010 tracts. Please reference the
2010 and 2020 census-tract map and tables for a visual
representation of the census tracts in Oshtemo Township.

27

12



Map 1: Oshtemo Township Subdivision by Census Tract, 2010 Tracts

Oshtemo Township
2010 Census Tracts
B .03

B 04
B 05

B Cshitemo Township
= Prirmary Rosds

Miles

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

29.05

28

13



Map 2: Oshtemo Township by Census Tract, 2020 Tracts

Oshtemo Township

2020 Census Tracts
[ zo.06

B .07

[ 2008

B .09

[ 200

B .11

= Oshtemo Township
= Primary Roads

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

29

14



Geography

Oshtemo Township is located on the west side of Kalamazoo
County. Kalamazoo County is located south of Grand Rapids,
southwest of Lansing, and west of Detroit. Kalamazoo County
comprises the entire Kalamazoo-Portage Metropolitan Statistical
Area. U.S. Route 131 and Interstate 94 intersect near the center

of the county. Kalamazoo County consists of four cities (of which
the city of Kalamazoo is the county seat), five villages, and 15
townships. Oshtemo Township consists of six census tracts as of the
most recent census boundaries.

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

Survey Responses

What are/were you looking for in housing
that you cannot find?

“Housing that is in a location where i can walk to shopping
and services”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

What are some of the things you like or dis-
like about housing in Oshtemo Township?

“Proximity to everything and yet a feeling of being more sub-
urban/rural than suburban/city.”
- Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

30

15



Population and Households

In order to design an effective housing plan, one must consider

the unique demographics of a community and how the current
housing supply may or may not serve the community’s needs. Such
background information helps identify opportunities to better match
housing supply to housing need

In 2021, the population of Oshtemo Township stood at 23,583.

It had grown 5 percent during the preceding five years, a higher
growth rate than that of the state overall, which was 1.54 percent
during the same period. From 2016 to 2021, one census tract
experienced a population decrease within Oshtemo Township:
Tract 29.04 (the section of the township north of the Amtrak line
and west of Interstate 131) saw its population fall by 4.77 percent.
Conversely, Tracts 29.05 and 29.03 experienced population
increases of 13.5 and 10.22 percent.

Table 1: Population, Oshtemo Township

Survey Responses

What are some of the things you like or dis-
like about housing in Oshtemo Township?

“Not enough single family residential properties affordable to
young couples”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

2016 2021 2021 .
2010 Tract Population 2020 Tract Population Population Adj. Change %
29.06 1613
29.03 5195 5726 10.2
29.07 4113
29.08 4974
29.04 9568 9112 -4.8
29.09 4138
29.10 4720
29.05 7705 8745 13.5
29.11 4025

Source: 2021 & 2016 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

31

16



Oshtemo Township has grown by 205 households since 2016.
Among homeowners, one-person households and two-person
households have declined by 3.0 and 7.5 percentage points,
respectively. The proportion of homeowners living in three- or
four-person households increased by 8 percentage points.

Larger households of six people or more have increased in their
proportion of homeowners but do not form a significant category
for renters in the township. Among renters, the proportion of three-
person households has declined slightly, and the difference has
been redistributed among other household sizes.

Table 2: Tenure by Household Size, Oshtemo Township

Household 2016 2016 2021 2021
size Owner Renter Owner Renter
Occupied Occupied Occupied Occupied

1-person 1 5 ea 24.5% 2,389 47.8% 1125 21.5% 2,498 48.6%
Household

2-person 2,432 46.9% 1,230 24.6% 2,064 39.4% 1,287 25.0%
Household

Hiﬁ:;‘;?d 527 10.2% 968 19.4% 789 15.0% 834 16.2%
Htﬁf;‘g’l‘d 619 11.9% 350 7.0% 794 151% 431 8.4%
,_fOE:;‘;’I‘d 243 47% 61 12% 297 57% 90 1.8%
6-person o i

Household AR YO ) 125 24% - -

7 + person 33 0.6% ) ] 19 0.9% _ _

Household 070 9%

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

From 2016 to 2021, the population of Oshtemo Township became
more racially diverse. The fastest-growing ethnic/racial group is
the one categorized as “Two or More Races,” whose proportion
increased by more than 4 percentage points over the five-year
period. Both the proportion and the total number of residents
identifying as “White” decreased during the five-year period.

Table 3: Race 2016-2021, Oshtemo Township

Population Population

R

ae 2016 2021

Two or More Races 1,093 49% 2,203 9.3%
White 16,854  75.0% 16,387 69.5%

Black or African American 2 810 12.5% 3,270 13.9%

Some Other Race 991 4.4% 1,182 5.0%

Hispanic Ethnicity

*Of Any Race 885 39% 1,380 59%

Total Population

22,468 100% 23,583 100%

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

NOTE: Because of the inclusion of “Hispanic Ethnicity,” this table
does not sum to the total population count. Differences in the 2021
total population count (listed in the population section) and the
population count of this table stem from differences in the 2021
American Community Survey’s one-year estimate and the 2021
American Community Survey's five-year estimate.

32

17



Race, cont.

Over half (55.6 percent) of Black households in Oshtemo Township
make less than $20,000 annually, greatly increasing the chances
that they experience a housing-cost burden. They are twice as
likely to have incomes of less than $30,000 a year as White
non-Hispanic households in the township are, highlighting equity
concerns.

Chart 1: Oshtemo Township Houshold Income by Race, 2021

g o o ' 47 47 47 & o 4f .:a-d“

P
o o 2 o = i = ! @ :
u o o £ o o A ﬁ'—.‘--ﬁ oF o o4
/ ¥ ; i o o ™ : ot ;
_:\F:' o mq,'.‘#‘ mq,'.ﬁ' Q\.‘.ﬁ- j& ld."i- .d."i- J:H-#n oy -‘:F‘.:
o o HE iy o oy o A i S -
* ] o L i S '
i
H Bl B Hapanig R D R B Somae Ciferr Roe B Tasn O Morg

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment



Table 4: Oshtemo Township Income By Race, 2021

Income White Black or Hispanic Two or Some Other
Non-Hispanic African American  Ethnicity More Races Race
Less than 0 79 18,5 479, 0.0% s 5o
$10,000 L7 D% 7% 0% 8%
$10,000- . . . ) )
$19.999 6.5% 371% 3.8% 21.1% 1.5%
$20,000- . . . ] o
$29,999 13.5% 2.5% 15.7% 20.4% 4.0%
$30,000- . . ) ) o
$39990 10.9% 11.0% 22.0% 19% 8.9%
$40,000- ] . ) ] ]
$49999 7.4% 3.3% 32.9% 17.1% 11.0%
$50,000- ] . . ) )
$59,999 4.3% 6.4% 4.4% 3.6% 10.5%
$60,000- . . . ] ]
$74,999 11.6% 4.6% 0.0% 20.2% 9.8%
$75,000- ] . . ) )
$96,999 1.3% 4.7% 10.3% 0.0% 12.4%
$100,000- . . ) ) )
$149,999 14.0% 10.7% 4.2% 12.4% 2.4%
$150,000- . . . ) o
$199,999 10.5% 1.2% 0.0% 1.3% 0.3%
$200,000 or S 5oL 0.0% 00m Lo -

more
Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment



Map 3: Osthemo Township Population Percent Change, 2016-2021

Population, 2016 to
2021

Percent Change, by
Census Tract

Bl .77 - 0.00%
[ 0u01% = 10.00°%
I 10.01% - 20.00%
B Cektemo Toanchip
m—— Prirnafy Roads

Souros: ACS M2 5 Yr EStirmates,
ACS BG5S Y Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

35

20



Age Chart 2: Michigan Population Pyramid, 2021

Oshtemo Township’s location next

to Western Michigan University,
Kalamazoo College, and Kalamazoo
Valley Community College ensures
that young adults make up more of
the township’s population than is
typical across the state. Michigan’s
proportion of 20- to 24-year-olds is
6.8 percent, while the proportion in
Kalamazoo County is 11.8 percent
and the proportion in Oshtemo
Township is 13.5 percent—double
the state average. Communities

with a high number of university
students are unique in that many
students who did not grow up in that
community return to their hometowns
between semesters, which causes the
population to fluctuate throughout the
year. American Community Survey
and census population estimates
include the student population at its
peak.

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

-1

Machigan 2021

2,

]

5 §

.|‘| 1‘
- R :
i35

L.

Popaitation

Chart 3: Oshtemo Township Population Pyramid, 2021

Oshtermo Townshp 2021

Popas

i

7 a
g dF
i

¥

1N

21



Senior-aged individuals—those 65 years of age and older—
comprise nearly one-fifth (18.8 percent) of the township's
population. This is a slightly higher proportion than that of the
overall population of Michigan seniors, who make up 17.2 percent
of the state’s total population.

The proportion of Oshtemo Township’s residents aged 19 or
younger matches that of the state as a whole, at just under one-
quarter of the population.

Chart 4: Kalamazoo County Population Pyramid, 2021
Kalamazod County 2021

]
| i
|

"
]

]
|| ¥
.F

F

i r
|I=:.|
= ]

]

‘r
H

-
]
]
#‘

i
i

-
=

=
=

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment



Age and Income

The high proportion of university students in Oshtemo Township
likely lowers the median income. Residents under the age of 25
making less than $20,000 a year account for twice the average
rate in Oshtemo Township as they do statewide. Nearly one-
third (32.1 percent) of residents under the age of 25 make less
than $20,000 a year, while 16.5 percent of township residents
overall make less than $20,000 a year. While some students
have supplementary forms of income not included in the census
estimates, others do not and may struggle to afford housing. The
median annual income needed to afford rent in the township

Chart 5: Oshtemo Towlncome Income Distribution

7.3%
5%
k. 5%
o I
& ,.-"'ﬁ .._:. .\_:"':-

e

7.8

o B al S S B "
i X 4 ¥ : 4 5 4

o & _ L] L 5 L L

h e % o I e ] . - B

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

%
o 6.5%
£ 1N £
5%
54
4.5%
I H..l I
O = = =3 -1 =
& £ & o &t & P
o, = .~ -l

without being housing-burdened ranges from $23,880 to
$29,220. Nearly 60 percent (58.3 percent) of all senior-
aged individuals in Oshtemo Township either pay rent or
make a mortgage payment. Over 15 percent of the senior-
aged population in Oshtemo Township make less than
$20,000 annually, and 28.1 percent of Oshtemo seniors
make less than $30,000 annually, indicating that some
seniors likely struggle to afford housing without being cost-

burdened.

12

,,r"} __-F‘ =

rad

38

23



Chart 6: Oshtemo Township Income by Age, 2021

a4F 4 i 3 o 4 g 4 4 # -F"i'r-

oy oy A : 5 50 e a7 =
o o F 5 F & o # $ 3 ¢

Einder Mloyesss W2icoddwesrs WAoo dd B Ower 65 pean

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment



Tenure

Overall, the number of owner-occupied housing units in Oshtemo
Township increased by more than 50 from 2016 to 2021. However,
there was a decline in homeownership in Census Tract 29.05

(the section of the township south of the Amtrak line and west of
Interstate 131) by 1.81 percent. Tracts 29.03 and 29.04 both had
increases in the number of owner-occupied units, by 5.86 and

2.88 percent, correspondingly.

Chart 7: Housing Tenure in Oshtemo Township

1
]
il ]
nr

18]

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

| Qe mh ta St

D

40

25



Oshtemo Township’s median owner-specified value is more than
$50,000 higher than that of Kalamazoo County. The township’s
median owner-specified value is also higher than that of Alamo
Township, Kalamazoo Township, and the City of Kalamazoo, but
lower than that of Texas Township.

Table 8: Median Owner Specified Value of Owner-Occupied Housing Units
5350

5300

4250

2100
35
-

D vt Twp Alarms T Texas Twp Kalamarao Twp. Kalamaroo [City) Kalarma o
Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

W
=

THaLSarnds

Lol
=Y
L]

[

i

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment



About 19 percent of owners identified a value of less than
$150,000, with 34.7 percent identifying a value of less than
$200,000. A majority of owners (61.4 percent) identified a value
of between $200,000 and $500,000.

Chart 9: Owner Specified Value of Owner-Occupied Housing Units

Less than 550,000 _
550,000 10 599,999 .

% 100, 000 1o 5149,550

£150,000 1o 5199,599

% 300,000 to 5459,599

S500.000 fo 5599 %99 -

51,000 Ol & imdra

0 1000 1500
Mumber of Housing Linits

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

42

27



Tenure Comparison

Within Oshtemo Township, about half of all units are multifamily;
the remaining half are mostly single-family dwellings (both
attached and unattached), and approximately 5 percent are
mobile homes. Since 1990, the housing stock in Oshtemo Township
has become comprised of proportionately more single-family
dwelling units. The proportion of single-family units has grown by

6 percentage points, while that of multifamily homes and mobile
home sites have both declined by about 3 percentage points each.

Chart 10: Houing Units by type: Oshtemo Township

EdF

q
3
1551 JIAK) JUNL SOFE kgl

B il Ty m T darmibyy’ Rbgdiphe Tesily A Gl B Silin

=

&

=]

L
o

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

43

28



Table 5: Housing units by type, Oshtemo Township
1990 2000 2010 2020 2021

Units % Total Units % Total Units % Total Units % Total Units % Total

Single family 2,665 40.8% 3,627 454% 4,815 46.6% 5022 46.0% 5235 459%

Two family/ Multiple

il 3,399 52.1% 3,570 44.7% 4,857 A47.0% 5222 A478% 5609 492%

Mobile home sites 461 71% 791 9.9% 664 6.4% 674 6.2% 550 4.8%
Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Table 6: Housing units by location

Oshtemo Twp. Cooper Twp. Kalamazoo City Alamo Twp. Kalamazoo Twp. Texas Twp. Kalamazoo County

Single family 459% 84.0% 53.1% 83.6% 62.5% 91.7% 67.5%

Two family/ Muliiple o 5o/ 14.9% 459% 8.2% 31.7% 3.3% 29.6%
family

Mobile home sites 4.8% 1.2% 1.1% 8.3% 5.8% 5.0% 2.8%

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment 44

29



Compared to its neighboring areas, Oshtemo Township has a
bigger proportion of multifamily units, with approximately half of all
homes in the township having more than one unit. In fact, Oshtemo
Township is comprised of multifamily homes at a rate that is nearly
20 percentage points higher than that of Kalamazoo County
overall.

Chart 11: Percent of Total Housing Type

sbaind Twg

Adaa Twp

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

Ealamazod Twp

u Mab

& hoame 4

K

__..

i iy

Kbl siss Conmnily

45

30



Oshtemo Township had relatively more growth in owner-occupied
units over the past 30 years than the larger geographic areas in
which the township is situated. That noted, the owner-to-renter ratio
in the township has grown modestly, at 1.5 percentage points since

1990.

The average number of persons per household in Oshtemo
Township, at 2.3 persons per household, is lower than in
neighboring areas, reflecting the high rate of multifamily dwellings.

Table 8: Housing characteristics, 2021

Oshtemo Twp.Cooper Twp. Kalamazoo City Alamo Twp. Kalamazoo Twp. Texas Twp. Kalamazoo County

Housing units 11,394 4,192 32,349
Total population 23,583 10,442 74,020
Average household size 2.3 2.5 2.3

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

Table 7: Owner and renter occupied rates

Percentage
Points Change

Owner occupied units 1990 2021

Oshtemo Township 49.0%  50.5% 1.5
Kalamazoo County 64.4%  63.7% -0.7
Michigan 71.0%  73.2% 0.02
United States 64.2%  65.4% 0.01

Percentage

Renter occupied units 1990 2021

Points Change

Oshtemo Township 51.0%  49.5% -1.5
Kalamazoo County 35.6%  36.6% 1

Michigan 29.0%  26.8% -0.02

United States 358%  34.6% -0.01

1,709 11,394 6,147 113,570
3,823 23,583 17,477 261,280
2.4 2.3 29 2.4

46

31



Tenure by Age Chart 12: Seniors In Oshtemo Township, 2021

100r%
Some 65.7 percent of Oshtemo Township seniors own their homes,
a rate substantially lower than the 79.7 percent of Kalamazoo
County seniors who own their homes. This 14 percentage point
difference could be due to the high number of nursing homes and

assisted living centers located in the township: one quarter of _—
the township's senior-aged residents live in buildings with 50 or
more units. Residents under the age of 34 years have the highest 60

rate of apartment-building dwellers: 71.5 percent live in buildings
with more than five units. The majority of residents in that age
group (43.2 percent) live in buildings with 9 to 15 units. Oshtemo
Township residents between the ages of 35 and 64 are the most
likely to live in a single-unit building, with 67.5 percent doing so.

10rs
Table 9: Number of Units by Age, Oshtemo Township
Number of 15-34 35-64 65+ iy
Units LS YECES years B Chwel, i MO i Chaart. W a =

1, detached or

attached 16.3% 67.5% 57.0% Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates
che
2to 4 6.5% 2.6% 6.9%
5t0 19 43.2% 15.0% 8.5%
20 to 49 15.9% 4.1% 0.6%
50 or more 12.4% 3.8% 24.4%
Mobile home, 0 0 o

boat, RV, van, etc. S S e
Total: 100% 100% 100%

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

47

32



Tenure by Houshold size

Oshtemo Township has grown by 205 households since 2016.
Among homeowners, one-person households and two-person
households have declined by 3.0 and 7.5 percentage points,
respectively. The proportion of homeowners living in three- or
four-person households increased by 8 percentage points.

Larger households of six people or more have increased in their
proportion of homeowners but do not form a significant category
for renters in the township. Among renters, the proportion of three-
person households has declined slightly, and the difference has
been redistributed among other household sizes.

Table 10: Tenure by Household Size, Oshtemo Township

Household 2016 2016 2021 2021
Owner Renter Owner Renter
Occupied Occupied Occupied

size

Occupied

JOE:EZT ', 1,267 24.5% 2,389 47.8% 1,125 21.5% 2,498 48.6%
HQOE:EZT | 2,432 46.9% 1,230 24.6% 2,064 39.4% 1,287 25.0%
Htﬁ:;g;‘d 527 10.2% 968 19.4% 789 15.0% 834 16.2%
HA(;E:EZL 619 11.9% 350 7.0% 794 151% 431 8.4%
jOE:;EZTd 243 47% 61 12% 297 57% 90 1.8%
6-person . .

Household 59 1.1% - - 125 2.4% - .

7 + person 33 0.6% ) ] 19 09

Household 070 9% - .

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

Survey Responses

What are/were you looking for in housing
that you cannot find?

“We wanted a 2/bed single family home within our budget
and couldn't find one.”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

“Decent starter homes for my kids as they come back from

college.”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

Chart 13: Living Arrangements of Adults, Oshtemo Township 2021

48

33



The American Community Survey asked adult respondents about  relatively even distribution of living arrangements across all the categories.
their living arrangements. Just over half (53.9 percent) live witha  Seniors are the most likely to live alone out of all the age groups: 4 out of
spouse or a partner. Approximately 2 out of 10 respondents live 10 senior-aged individuals report living alone.

alone. Eight percent live with roommates that are not related to

them. Other categories include living with other relatives and being  NOTE: This question asked only about those over the age of 18 and does
the child of the householder. Breaking these categories up by age  not provide information about children.

reveals a greater diversity in living arrangements for young people;

for instance, Oshtemo Township residents aged 18 to 34 have a

Chart 14: Living Arrangements of Adults by Age, Oshtemo Township 2021

| EK 1 5.5&
EL
IE™ id 1% A
19%
i 1% 118 1%
LEE
15 9%
5L %
k%
15.0%
1H1%
TR 1154
18 b 34 years 15 1o B4 years % wears and oeer
Wlhasalges Wlvisgwihiposse W Uving with vamamied parner B0l of howsekolder | BOther relathees Oty nosnelatiees

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment 49

34



Map 4: Oshtemo Township Homeownership Percent Change, 2016-2021

Homeownership, 2016
to 2021

Percent Change, by
Census Tract

B -1.51% - 0.00%

[ 0.01% - 5.00%
B 5.00% - 10,00%
B Cshtemo Township
m— Primary Roads

Van Kal

N
Mikira.
[§] 0.5 1
[ | |

Source: ACS 2021 5 Y1 Estimates,
AF WA § ¥r Poifenae

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

50

35



Table 11: Homeownership, Oshtemo Township

2016 2021 2021 Change in %
AT % Homeowners APV % Homeowners % HO. Ad;. points

29.06 5.8

29.03 10.1 9.8 -0.3
29.07 11.4
29.08 91.5

29.04 72.9 74.0 1.2
29.09 57.5
29.10 62.9

29.05 53.0 50.4 -2.6
29.11 39.6

Source: 2021 & 2016 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment



Income to Afford Rent

The tract in Oshtemo Township with the highest yearly incomes
needed to afford median rent is Tract 29.10 (the section of the
township south of the Amtrak line and west of Ninth Street), at
$29,220. Tracts 29.02, 29.07, and 29.11 are the next-highest at
$27,420, $24,690, and $23,880. Tracts 29.08 and 29.06 had

too low of a sample size to calculate this variable.

Survey Responses

“What do you like/ dislike about Oshtemo
Township housing”

“Not enough independent senior living”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

Chart 15: Oshtemo Township Homeownership by Age

25%

L=
] ) 7

Pevesrt of Age Groug that Own Hame

_.
=3

1544 4554

 m_ II I| ‘l II |I ‘l I| 1y |
L] 1514

5555

6064 B5-T4 T5-E4 E5e

Age of Househokier

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

0N W02

52

37



Map 5: Osthemo Township Income Needed to Afford Median Rent, 2021

Income Needed To
Afford Median Rent

Yearly Income, by Census

Tract

[ $23.880 -
= £26,000
= £28,000
= £30,000

I s24,001
B 001
B 6001
[ R

Hal 4,000

B Dshtemo Township
s Prirmary Roads

Mikes
0.5
1 i

Sounce: ACS 2021 5 Yr Ectimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

53

38



Cost Burden

A household (whether owning or renting) is cost-burdened when it
is spending more than 30 percent of household income for housing
(rent or mortgage plus utilities, taxes, insurance, efc.). Severe cost
burden is when a household is spending more than 50 percent of
household income for housing.

The largest percentage of cost-burdened homeowners (with a
mortgage) in Oshtemo Township are in Tracts 29.07 (the section of
the township south of the Amtrak line and west of Ninth Street) and
29.10 (the section south of West Main and east of Interstate 131),
at 32.26 and 25.93 percent. Tract 29.06 follows, at 23.4 percent,
then Tract 29.11 at 16.06 percent. Last, Tracts 29.08 and 29.09
have the lowest percentage of cost-burdened homeowners (those
with a mortgage), at 5.88 and 8.50 percent.

The largest percentage of cost-burdened renters in Oshtemo
Township are in Tract 29.09 (the section of the township that is
south of West Main, west of Interstate 131, and north of the Amtrak
line), at 75.98 percent. Tracts 29.07, 29.11, 29.10, and 29.06
follow, with percentages of cost-burdened renters at 49.11, 46.49,
32.55, and 32.04 percent. Tract 29.08 had too low of a sample
size to calculate this variable.

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

Survey Responses

What are some of the things you like or
dislike about housing in Oshtemo Township?

“| make a pretty good living but | don't fall into the category
where | can get reduced rent so I'm spending the majority
of my earnings on a place to live so | struggle with having
to pay my car payment, insurance and groceries (food and
household necessities) because rent is so high.”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

54

39



Map 6: Oshtemo Township Cost-Burdened Homeowners, 2021

Cost Burdened
Homeowners

With a Mortgage, by
Census Tract

5.88% - 10,00%
[ 10.01% - 15.00%
B 15.01% - 20000%
B 10.01% - 25.00%
B 25.01% - 32.26%
B Cahitems Township
= Prirary Roads

Source: ACS 2021 5 ¥r Estirmates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

16:06%6

55

40



Map 7: Oshtemo Township Cost-Burdened Renters, 2021

Cost Burdened Renters

By Census Tract
[ 0uo0% - 32.04%
I 32.05% - 32.55%
B 32.56% - 46.49%
B 45.50% - 49.11%
B 49.12% - 75.98%
B A

B Cshtemo Township
w— Prirnary Rosds

GEROE

e e : 29411
o 0.5 1 A e 467499,

Source: ACS 2021 5 ¥r Estirmates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment 56



Housing Units

The number of housing units in Oshtemo Township increased by 4.5
percent between 2016 and 2021. Moreover, all tracts in Oshtemo
Township saw an increase in housing units between 2016 and
2021. Tract 29.03 (the section of the township east of Interstate
131) increased by 9.56 percent, Tract 29.05 (the section south

of the Amtrak line and west of Interstate 131) increased by 3.33
percent, and Tract 29.04 (the section of the township north of the
Amtrak line and west of Interstate 131) rose by 1.27 percent.

Table 12: Oshtemo Township Housing Units

Survey Responses

“Can you find (or have you found) housing
that aligns with your earnings?”

“| live with my father, so yes (for now). But there is a lack of
starter family homes in this township that | love”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

The cost of my house aligns with my earnings, however if |
were buying my house now, | could not afford to purchase it
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

"

2016 2021 2021 Percent
AL ] Housing Units AT Housing Units Housing Units Adij. Change
29.06 1008
29.03 3201 3507 9.6
29.07 2499
29.08 1901
29.04 3865 3914 1.3
29.09 2013
29.10 1841
29.05 3845 3973 33
29.11 2132

Source: 2021 & 2016 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

57

42



Aging Housing Stock

Buildings require more repairs and maintenance as they age. Older
homes are more likely to have the problems Kalamazoo County
residents listed as worries in the housing survey . Oshtemo Township
has newer housing stock than the county overall. Over 40 percent
of the structures in Kalamazoo County are older than 50 years old,
while close to 17 percent of Oshtemo Township's structures are.
Both are lower than the state of Michigan’s proportion of structures
of that age. Michigan’s median-year structure was built in 1972.
Structures within the census tracts that make up Oshtemo Township

Table 13: Year Structure Was Built, Oshtemo Township

Year Built Michigan Oshtem.o
Township

2020 or later 0.1% 0.1%
2010 to 2019 3.7% 51%
2000 to 2009 9.9% 20.1%
1990 to 1999 13.0% 18.3%
1980 to 1989 9.8% 14.9%
1970 to 1979 15.3% 24.6%
1960 to 1969 11.8% 7.4%
1950 to 1959 14.6% 4.7%
1940 to 1949 7.2% 1.2%
1939 or earlier 14.5% 3.5%

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

were built more recently on average, with median years of 1976,

1983, 1984, 1993, 1993, and 1995.

In the Kalamazoo County Housing Survey , county residents
voiced the concern that many senior-aged individuals struggle
to maintain their homes in good upkeep. This challenge is
exacerbated when a home is old. Nationally, 55 percent

of senior-aged individuals live in homes built before 1970;
however, within Oshtemo Township, that proportion is much
lower, at 8.3 percent.

Table 14: Year Structure Was Built for Seniors Oshtemo Township

Year Built Homes of
Seniors

2020 or later 0.0%
2010 to 2019 0.0%
2000 to 2009 16.9%
1990 to 1999 8.0%
1980 to 1989 35.8%
1970 to 1979 31.0%
1960 to 1969 4.0%
1950 to 1959 1.4%
1940 to 1949 2.9%
1939 or earlier 0.0%

Source: 2021 ACS, 5 yr Estimates

58

43



Map 8: Oshtemo Township Housing Units Percent Change, 2016-2021

Housing Units, 2016 to
2021

Percent Change, by
Census Tract

[ L27% - 200%
B :01% - 4.00%
B 5.00% - 9.55%
= Cshtemo Township
m— Priany Roads

K
N £
Mikes A
] 0.5 i
| i |

Sounte: ACS 2021 5 ¥r Eglirmales,
ACS HE 5 Y Estimaltes

-

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

Pt Byl

59

44



Price and Wages

Chart 16 shows weekly earnings and home prices in Kalamazoo
County, indexed to First Quarter 2011. Housing prices and weekly
earnings were trending generally together until 2018. Then, wages
stagnated until the end of 2020 before rising steadily through
2021. During the same period, home prices rose steadily until
flattening in 2022. The resulting gap is stark, making many homes
unaffordable even as wages are rising.

Chart 16: FHFA Price Index and Average Weekly Wage Index

210 1
166 4 mmPirine imdex
% 170 4 —vprage Weekly
s Earnings
=150 A
i
=
513{3-
E
110 4
S0 T T T T T T T T T
L N Y o2 -'E" o
FEFFTTE S FF P

Source: Federal Housing Finance Agency & Bureau of Labor Statistics Current
Employment Statistics

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Assessment

Sale Price and Housing Inventory

Looking closer at the home market, Chart 17 shows inventory and
average sale price from Jaqua Realtors. Lower inventory is one of
the drivers of higher prices: demand for housing is high, but there
are fewer available homes. The housing market is seasonal, and the
prepandemic lows are greater than the peaks of 2021 and 2022.
Average sale price fell slightly in 2022 but in 2023 has rebounded,
as inventory has continued to be low.

Chart 17: Inventory and Average Sale Price, Kalamazoo Market

1200 - - 350
E
& 1000 4 [ 300
£ L 250
§ wo :
200
S 500 | Z
i 150 g
5 400 f 100 &
i
__%2':":" 50
0 0

1E 2019 2020 2021 2022 Pl P

—Homes for Sale  =——fverage Sale Frice

Source: Jaqua Real Estate Market Report

60

45



3

Oshtemo Responses to the
Kalamazoo County Survey



About the Data

The Kalamazoo County Housing Survey asked respondents,
“Which of the following are your top three priorities for supporting
housing?” and presented them with a list of options. Chart 18
presents responses from the respondents living in Oshtemo
Township, split into homeowners and renters. Homeowners and
renters ranked priorities in similar orders, selecting three out of
four of the same priorities to top their rankings. The most selected
priorities shared between the two groups include “Support services
[mental health, financial literacy]” “Affordable housing for those
who are low income, vulnerable, etc.,” and “Senior housing.”
Priorities that diverged between homeowners and renters include
“Maintenance cost support” and “More units,” each of which

Chart 18: Top Three Priorities for Supporting Housing

Craniers
Afariabin sy
llllll e
g e s e b e . b s
il ey L]
P
eyl |
ik i
e
sarirare i v [ rem

s

MR
pradinoagell | iy —
o Py et e
e .
P T rmeemy Pt i
e
e 0 e N
" e ]
. wanyie [
[ | —
Tsyrd b
(UNOTERRIT——— | pptplnagll |
i r—arue i
[P— |

L) 108 L Fo L

Source: Oshtemo Responses from the Kalamazoo County Housing Survey

ranked in the top three for one group and appeared last or not at
all for the other group.

Survey Responses

“What are (or were) your greatest
challenges when looking to find housing in
Oshtemo?”

“l am a working professional (teacher). | do not want to
live in the “student ghetto’ in Kalamazoo but all other rental
options are out of my price range. | make $60,000/year. |
should be able to afford a 1-2 bedroom apartment that is not
deplorable looking...”

-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Oshtemo Responses from the Kalamazoo County Survey Results 62

47



The Kalamazoo County Survey reveals that the most prominent lead than are homeowners. Top concerns shared between the two
worries of Oshtemo Township residents differ by whether they are groups include structure, pests, and mold.

owners or renters. The survey asked, “Which of the following do

you worry about in your home or apartmente” Chart 19 showcases

the responses of Oshtemo Township residents, categorized by

homeowners and renters. Homeowners selected “None” as the

most-often-chosen concern. Renters voiced that their biggest

concern is mold. Proportionally, more renters are concerned about

Chart 19: Which of the Following Do You Worry About in Your Home or Apartment

Owners Renters
None Miokd
Stracture I e ——
iy Pests
Mold I Lead
Electrical I hiong
Lead Elctrical I
Don't Know [ dshesto: I
Plumbing 1N Water (heaality (I
hibeitos [ Redon [N
Water Chadlity W D't Kniew
Radon Flumbing
Fooding I Flocding
0 50 100 150 0 2 4 § B 10 12 M 16 1%

Source: Oshtemo Responses from the Kalamazoo County Housing Survey

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Oshtemo Responses from the Kalamazoo County Survey Results 63

48



The survey asked participants, “What five factors are most choice of a home. Renters’ top response indicates a desire to live

important to you when choosing your home?2” They chose from in a mixed-income neighborhood. They also prioritized proximity
a list of options or wrote a response in the “other” category. In to work more highly than homeowners did. Homeowners'
contrast to the similarity of the responses for “Top three priorities responses most often prioritized factors often associated with

for supporting housing,” renters and homeowners differed greatly family life, such as parks, schools, and proximity to family.

on the order of factors. Exceptions to this divergence include cost,
safety, and the features of the dwelling, all of which rank highly as
factors that Oshtemo Township residents indicate play a role in their

Chart 20: What Five Factors Are Most Important to You When Choosing a Home

Foaturen of dave By Flagd lncoms
Lalpiy Do
Felfng Dlean, pounlry, o8] I Tfely
Corit FRanye I
Faris Fromamely Lo work IR
Sl (R Tertting [t oy, #ic)
CR3E 0o lafaly I Ereriy Cont
Lreerpy Costs I BTy 10 L —
Fromsvity by thaopery (I Parki
Proaimiry oo v — drr ety (enaon, daabsiten | E—
HERE O (BT [ i Bt
Kalbmaisd Fromas IS Wolahiity BB
dezrwruabale® deaabwid —
ko sk, g Terung &l awidibdly I
1 ' ek il
Emang ! oy — o i -
Walkabdty [N
Laraibard siotpts rervlsl wsslene 0
hmed ool oo Popggibedbeiaid
(anre in femly B
Froniesty o el @
Tasst 1 e o fomeutity B
Landiisd scorpt rpalsl arinkarge | Tehwadi
Fani

=

106 50 g

[=]
-
2
=
s
=
E
-
=

[ 1]

Source: Oshtemo Responses from the Kalamazoo County Housing Survey

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Oshtemo Responses from the Kalamazoo County Survey Results

64

49



Respondents to the survey were prompted with the following Image 2: Urban Transect

questions: “What was the income for your entire household in the
past 12 months2” and “Which of the following describes the area in
which you live2” — which were synthesized to create chart 21.

Urban transect definitions can be found on page 105

Chart 21: Percent of Income That Goes to Housing Expenses, by Income Level (in Thousands)

g T

Freae o Uromeciees s

Sk | g

Wil ihan I0% @ 21N G0 WM UM o 40 WS o w e M

Source: Oshtemo Responses from the Kalamazoo County Housing Survey

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Oshtemo Responses from the Kalamazoo County Survey Results

65

50



Respondents to the survey were prompted with the following
questions: “About what percent of your take-home income goes urvey Responses

to housing expenses2” and “What was the income for your entire
household in the past 12 months2” From these questions, Chart 22
shows, by income level, the respondents’ percent of income that
goes toward housing expenses. A household (owning or renting) is
cost burdened when it spends more than 30% of household gross
income for housing (rent or mortgage plus utilities, taxes, insurance,
etc.). Generally, the more money a household makes, the less likely
the household is to be housing burdened; respondents to this survey

What are some of the things you like or
dislike about housing in Oshtemo Township?

“Convenience to shopping and highways. Oshtemo township
has good green space. Need to have newer and affordable
single housing options”

-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

are no exception.

Chart 22: Percent of Income That Goes to Housing Expenses, Renter vs Owner

¥

¥ Argandenis
= (=1

Perceni ¢

B Cean (H Aenk

(. I I
1
1]
Ii l I I
o
Ly Bhan JiFN 4 1% R0 I N1 b A

4% 80 % BAE Ehan SO

Source: Oshtemo Responses from the Kalamazoo County Housing Survey

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Oshtemo Responses from the Kalamazoo County

Survey Results

66

51



Kalamazoo County Housing Survey respondents from Oshtemo
Township replied “Yes” or “No” to the question of whether they urvey Kesponses

felt their housing was affordable. Responses differed greatly

by whether respondents owned or rented: 88.7 percent of
homeowners indicated they perceived their housing as being
affordable. This contrasts with responses from renters in the
township, a the majority of whom (52.8 percent) felt their housing
was not affordable.

“What were/ are you looking for in housing
that you can not find?

“Starter family houses in a starter family price point
($125,000-$250,000)"

-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

Chart 23: Do You Feel Your Housing is Affordable, Renter vs. Owner

{3,

s

R,

T

i rach Camegiery

i,

ol Brnprocabi i

Pergirg

i
=

{anten's

mHa WY
Source: Oshtemo Reponces from the Kalamazoo County Housing Survey

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Oshtemo Responses from the Kalamazoo County Survey Results

52



4

Oshtemo Survey Results



About the Data Survey Responses

The survey asked participants “How long have you lived in P

Oshtemo Township2” They chose from a list of options that h“’,”"at are (0’:' W‘;-'re)k),'ou';_ g;,ecg?’s" .

contained a range of time frames. More than half of respondents cnaienges when looking fo find housing In
Oshtemo?

had lived in Oshtemo township for over 10 years. Homeowners

form just over half of Oshtemo Township's residents but represent

over 85 percent of respondents. Nearly two-thirds of renters have

lived in Oshtemo for five years or less.

“Houses were too big for a single person.”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

“Options for building my own home”
Note: There were 503 responses to both Home Type and -Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

Residence Length questions. Of the 503 who answered both home
type and residence length, 9 were neither renters nor owners.

Chart 24: How long have you lived in Oshtemo Township?

Craners 'y

[

0

o

[
o

10r%
Herders

Wiless than L year | R EEAT S W5 o B0 years ® More than 10 years B[ am nat an Oshtemo Towrahap resident

Source: Oshtemo Housing Survey

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Unhoused Survey Results 69



The age profile of residents is different between renters and owners.
Homeownership skews older, with half of owners aged 55 to 74.
Students are not the only renters, however: the age distribution of
renters is more evenly spread across the age groups. In fact, renters
aged 18 to 34 represent a lower percentage of renters than those
aged 55 to 74.

Over 85 percent of respondents were homeowners. These
demographics do not match the U.S. Census Bureau’s American
Community Survey, which has owners and renters more evenly
split, at 52 percent and 48 percent, respectively.

Chart 25: How old are you?

GO

a0

30
: I I
) I
o .

FeEntoert

Survey Responses

“What are (or were) your greatest
challenges when looking to find housing in
Oshtemo?”

“A lot of large lots have been split or subdivided into smaller
less desirable parcels”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

Note: There were 503
responses to both Age and
Home Type questions. Of
the 503, 494 were either

renters or owners.

ChRTEET fil

W 18-34 W335 ELT] EIFe

Source: Oshtemo Housing Survey

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Unhoused Survey Results

70

55



Most respondents were able to find housing within their budget

in Oshtemo Township. Nearly 90 percent of renters found a

home that aligned with their earnings. In the county, many renters
struggle with finding a home that is affordable, but over 65 percent
of renting respondents agreed that their rent aligned with their
earnings.

In response to the below question, about 8 percent of respondents
chose to provide a detailed answer rather than a “yes” or “no”
answer. Some of these respondents indicated that they had found
housing appropriate to their income, but only with assistance, often
family-based. Others indicated that they had found housing that

was appropriate for their income, but they did so many years ago
and doubted that they would be able to do so today. Some cited
property taxes as a barrier to finding affordable housing. Another
group reported that they were able to find housing that met their
income, but just barely—it was, or is, a struggle.

Note: Excludes residents living in Oshtemo Township for five or
more years. There were 478 responses to both the Found Housing
and Home Type questions. Of those 478, 131 had lived in Oshtemo
for less than five years. Of those 131, three were neither renters nor
owners.

Chart 26: Can you find (or have you found) housing that aligns with your earnings?

L] L]

Source: Oshtemo Housing Survey

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Unhoused Survey Results

71

56



Survey respondents believe Oshtemo should be a place to live for
people at all income levels: over 70 percent of respondents felt that
it was either somewhat or very important for housing options to be
available for a variety of incomes in Oshtemo Township.

Notes: *480 responses

Survey Responses

“What do you like/ dislike about Oshtemo
Township l{ousing. ”

“The Township taxes and sewer requirements keep making it
more and more expensive to live here.”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

Chart 27: How Important or unimportant is it to have housing options for a variety of incomes in Oshtemo?@

1™
) - l -
- i

M i all e iand Bd s v g s

Source: Oshtemo Housing Survey

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Unhoused Survey Results

Ve crpEr e

ekl el s

72

57



There is a stark contrast between renter and owner respondents on

the question of multifamily housing. Renters strongly agreed that urvey Responses

multifamily housing options were important. Responses skewed . . . .

toward agreeing that it is important to build multifamily housing. What were/ are yo.;’ looking for in housing
y that you can not find*?

The largest percentage of renters—over 45 percent—"strongly

agree[d].” Owners were more evenly distributed but seemed

generally to be not in favor of multifamily housing, with “strongly
agree” having the smallest percentage of responses.

“There are not enough condos in the below $ 180000 price
range. When | cannot do stairs and need an inexpensice
condo | don't think | will be able to find one in Oshtemo”

Note: There were 472 responses to both the Multifamily -Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

Importance and Home Type questions. Of the 472, eight were
neither renters nor owners.

Chart 28: Do you agree with the statement “ It is important for our community to build more multi-family housing options”

W Loreegiy dinsgraw il Dagre CLETECPEpe] = EEpe WD L% AT

Source: Oshtemo Housing Survey

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Unhoused Survey Results 73



Owners and renters have different challenges when it comes to
finding housing. While responses to an earlier question suggest
renters were able to find a unit in their budget, renters’ primary
concern is price, implying that there may have been a struggle to
find the right-priced rental unit with the amenities or quality they
needed. Second and third among their concerns were the pace

at which units were leaving the market and the housing options
available to them. For owners, the issues were more evenly
distributed, but the pace at which homes were leaving the market
was the most frequent issue drawing a response. Being outbid was
the lowest response for both renters and owners. Note that for this
question asking about their greatest challenges, respondents could
select multiple challenges.

The survey instrument allowed respondents to select more than

one answer to this question; approximately 17 percent provided a
written response. Many of these respondents expressed that it was
difficult to find the specific housing option they were looking for,
whether it was a larger lot size, a smaller home more suitable for a
single person, or a quiet neighborhood. Respondents commented
on an overall lack of options. Specific concerns include difficulty
finding suitable senior housing, difficulty finding land to build on,
and a need for more/better condominiums and good-quality rental
options in the area. A portion of respondents indicated that taxes or
utility prices were a barrier.

Chart 29: What are (or were) your greatest challenges when looking to find housing in Oshtemo?

Source: Oshtemo Housing Survey

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Unhoused Survey Results

Note: Excludes residents living
in Oshtemo Township for five

or more years. There were 130
responses to the Challenges and
Home Type questions for those
living in Oshtemo less than five
years: 84 from owners, 43 from
renters, and 3 from others/live
with others.

74

59



“What do you like /dislike about
Oshtemo Township housing?”

This question received 363 responses. In answering what they like
or dislike about Oshtemo Township, many respondents described
the direction they hope the township will take in the future. It is
worth reading the series of individual responses to this question, as
perceptions of the township are not uniform among residents, and
at times desires for the community are in direct conflict with one
another.

Oshtemo Township residents expressed appreciation for the green
space and parks in the township. Many respondents like their
neighborhoods. Respondents mentioned enjoying that the township
is not overcrowded—parts of the township feel rural while still
being close to amenities. At the same time, others are concerned
that the township may grow too large and lose its rural feel.
Many respondents appreciated the ease of access to highways,
shopping, restaurants, and the like. Several respondents would
like to see more local/small businesses (rather than franchises)

in Oshtemo Township, especially local businesses within walking
distance of residences.

Some said they liked the diversity and the different types of housing
in the community. Other respondents disliked the apartment
buildings, student housing, and multifamily housing in general.
Several people expressed concern about the crime rate in areas
with multifamily housing.

Some residents perceived the community as not being accessible to
a diverse range of incomes, which they disliked. Others wrote that
they like the township the way it is and do not want to increase the
diversity or availability of housing.

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Unhoused Survey Results

Other examples of dislikes cited include a lack of housing options
for seniors, high taxes, a sense that Oshtemo Township is not
affordable (high rents were often mentioned), Allen Edwin—

style housing developments, too many regulations, not enough
enforcement of ordinances, and forced sewer hookups.

“What were /are you looking for in
housing that you cannot find?

Some 150 respondents followed up on the previous question by
providing details about what housing elements they desired but
were unable to find in Oshtemo Township. The types of housing
desired varied widely. Specific types mentioned include duplexes,
mobile-home options, detached townhouses, condominiums (this
request was common), townhomes, accessory dwelling units
(ADUs), special amenities within multifamily buildings, ranch-style
homes rather than two-story homes, apartment complexes, more
single-family rental options, community housing that is easily
accessible by public transportation, single-family homes with large
lot sizes, high-end housing developments, and homes with large
garages. Several respondents expressed a desire for large lot sizes
or a “rural” feel. A significant number of respondents expressed a
need for better and more senior-housing options. Specific-senior
housing options mentioned include cottage and village-style senior
housing, independent senior living communities, HUD-subsidized
housing, senior carports, aging-in-place options, and zoning for
accessory dwelling units or “mother-in-law” style homes, in which
a separate structure is provided for someone on the property.
Location-based elements such as safety, distance from college
students, and accessibility emerged as themes in the responses.
Taxes and affordability were two additional themes.

Additional details can be found in the appendix.

75

60



S

Housing Supply and Demand



Current Demand

In order to determine housing needs, we must first examine the
current state of supply and demand. It is important to understand
the current demand so that housing strategies can account for that
pent-up demand. We will show three different elements of the
housing market in order to better demonstrate the current needs.
First, we will show housing-cost-burden levels for renters and
owners. Next, we will look at housing preference types. Finally, we
will look at household formation levels and how those compare to
past building trends.

Osthemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Supply and Demand

77

62



Cost Burden

Tables 15 and 16 show the total households in the area by
income and housing-cost burden. Overburdened households

are considered to be paying more than the Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) standard 30 percent of their income toward
housing costs. These figures further separated the overburdened,
showing the “heavily burdened” as those paying 50 percent or
more toward housing. Overburdened households are in need

of more appropriate housing, demonstrating a need to construct
housing that meets their budget. The Oshtemo Township portion
of Kalamazoo County Housing Survey showed that 62 percent of
renters and 15 percent of owners considered their housing to be
“not affordable.” These results are not necessarily tied to the HUD
standard of 30 percent of income, as some respondents paying
more considered their housing affordable, and some paying less

did not.

There are more than 2,300 overburdened renting households

in Oshtemo Township. Shown in chart 30, these households are
concentrated on the lowest end of the income spectrum, most
earning below $20,000 per year. These are most likely college
students and some seniors with fixed income, that could afford
rental units of below $500 per month in order to be unburdened.
Figure aaa shows the number of units needed by price in order to
relieve the housing burden. While it is unrealistic to expect that any
geographic area can completely eliminate housing burden, it is
important to understand the magnitude of need.

Chart 31shows fewer overburdened homeowners. Roughly 53
percent of the township own their homes, and fewer than 1,000 are
overburdened. Overburdened homeowners are spread through

Osthemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Supply and Demand

more income ranges than renters, with over 300 households at
$35,000 to $49,999 per year. These households would need
homes of between $115,000 and $163,000 (depending on
property taxes and loan parameters) to afford payments of $875
to $1,249 per month.

Table 15: Affordable Unit Levels Necessary to Alleviate

Overburdened Renters in Oshtemo Township
Annual Income Units Rent Per Month ($)

<$20,000 1,186 <$500
$20,000 to 34,999 707 500 to 874
$35,000 to 49,999 377 87510 1,249
$50,000 to 74,999 47 1,250 to 1,874
$75,000 to 99,999 42 1,875 to 2,499
$100,000 or more 0 2,500 and higher

Source: The American Community Survey of the U.S. Census, 2017-2021 average, and
Claritas.

Table 16: Affordable Units to Alleviate Overburdened
Homeowners in Oshtemo Township
Household

Estimated Home

Price ($)*

Payment Per

Units Month ($)

Annual Income

<$20,000 327 <$500 Less than 65,000
$20,000 to 34,999 166 500 to 874 65,000 to 114,000
$35,000 to 49,999 323 875t0 1,249 115,000 to 163,000

$50,000 to 74,999 129 1,250t0 1,874 164,000 to 245,000

$75,000 to 99,999 24 1,875t0 2,499 246,000 to 326,000
$100,000 or more 15 2,500 and higher 337,000 and higher

* Purchase price with 5 percent down, 6.0 percent interest, a 30-year fixed rate,
private mortgage insurance (PMI), and property taxes.

Source: The American Community Survey of the U.S. Census, 2017-2021 average, and
Claritas.

78

63



Housing Preferences

The types of homes preferred in the survey are different from
existing homes. Respondents were allowed to vote for more than
one type of housing and the results show a range of preferences.
Among homeowners in the Township, the housing survey suggests
that the primary demand is for single-family homes, but types such
as cottage courts and duplex or triplex received a lot of support.
Few homeowner respondents wanted large apartment complexes
and “No more housing” received nearly as many votes as ADU'’s
and Duplexes. For renters the preferences were more varied with
medium sized apartment building in the lead and no clear favorite
in second place. Only two renters voted for no additional housing.

Constructing higher-density housing may offer a solution to
improving affordability while also meeting preferences for a variety
of housing types. The current housing market suggests there are
households who are in homes they cannot afford and types they
do not prefer. Development of affordable mid-density types would
create more affordability than single-family detached homes and
more quality than mobile homes. Higher-density options that fit
with the character of the communities in Oshtemo Township may
include duplexes, triplexes, and cottage courts. Other multi-family
developments such as large apartments would be appropriate

in more dense urban areas around existing developments like
Meiier. For the eastern sliver of the township where student rentals
are already present, small and midsized apartment or condo
developments may be more appropriate.

Osthemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Supply and Demand

Chart 30: 2021 Income and Housing Burden for Renters in
Oshtemo Township

Source: U.S. Census American Community Survey, 2017-2021 average, and Claritas.

Chart 31: 2021 Income and Housing Burden for Owners in
Oshtemo Township.

Source: U.S. Census American Community Survey, 2017-2021 average, and Claritas.

79

64



Chart 32: Housing Preferences for Renters and Owners, Oshtemo Township

o Bdgre Moy ing
B Renl

B Char

B Ty |
IFEE APRMTTEN Lo
FéleihawT Aparimaend Comp

TownhomeRowhome

Cottage Courtd

gl Family

16 1% i

Percent of Vihe

Source: Oshtemo Housing Survey

Osthemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Supply and Demand 80 65



Nationwide, housing preferences have shifted away from single-
family detached units for young families. While the standard single-
family house is still preferred by the majority of young families, it

is a slim majority: only 52 percent of upper-class young families
with kids are looking for a stand-alone house. There is no one

clear alternative; rather, preferences are spread across a variety of
housing types.

Chart 33: National Housing Preference
70 -

&0 4

:

Tatal Penmils
.Y
&

d 8

"
a

a

Single-Famiby, Detached Single-Family, Atached Small Condos
m Middle class young withaut kids Pligddle class young with Rids

Source: RCLCO & IPUMS USA 2020

Osthemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Supply and Demand

Ligwps-rigas Midd-rine Condos Higih-Rise

W LIpmes Class young withowl kidgs

m Upger cliss young with kids

81

66



Impacts of Great Recession

The Great Recession continues to impact the housing market in
several ways. First, the overproduction of housing prior to the
Great Recession led to very limited construction after it hit: lenders
were less enthusiastic to finance new construction, home builders
were left with many unsold homes or lots, and fewer people

were looking to purchase homes. Annual home building remains
below the pre-bubble level. Second, those in the construction
trades sought work in other markets or other occupations. Third,
many homes fell into disrepair and were demolished; some of
these homes would have been targets for investment as the market
strengthened. Finally, the disruption to employment in 2008-2010

Chart 34: Unit Permitting in Oshtemo Township vs.
Kalamazoo County, 2004-2022

400 4
350 —shitemo Township
Permits
S0
—Halamazros County
250 4 Trend
g
E 200
i
150
1040
50
':' r o LI r ¥ 1 LI r 1 L] Li L L] Li | BT D s
[T = Lo T e T T T T i s e T
COoODoODOoOCcCOoOoOSoO0B S8
o T O I I B T I O - I o o I I |

Source: Township data and U.S. Census building permits.

Osthemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Supply and Demand

slowed the rate of household formation—that is, the rate at which
people create new households by existing households.

Housing-unit construction in Oshtemo Township has remained

low following the housing crash of the Great Recession. Chart 32
shows the number of housing permits in the township compared

to the trend in the county. As the housing bubble burst, Oshtemo
building remained elevated, while overall county permits declined.
Both the township and the county have found a stable level since
the recovery, though Oshtemo has been trending downward since

2018. While the pace of permitting countywide is modest, Oshtemo

Township is missing out on potential growth. Chart 33 shows

the same permit data compared to population. The population
growth is loosely correlated with the permitting, as it slowed when
permitting fell during the Great Recession.

Chart 35: Unit Permitting and Population for Oshtemo Township

A - 25,000
350 4
— R 200

300 4 Township Permits

# 250 4 —— Papulation 15 OO0

E 200 -

& 10,000
150 4 L
10 4

5,000

50} -

L e oo e e e I
I VY L EPEEL R ERER
EEEES3Sooco0oooonooOg
=R Il R P i R i I

Source: Township data and U.S. Census population estimates.

82

Population

67



Future Demand

According to our data, the area’s housing needs stem from or more. Nonetheless, the need for housing units that meet the
demographic and preferential mismatch rather than just rising needs of lower-income households will remain due to the existing
population. According to household estimates from Claritas, the unrealized demand for units at the lower end of the income

area is projected to grow by 3.5 percent from 2021 to 2026; spectrum and the projected persistence of households in that
Institute staff estimates project continued growth through 2023. income range

Nonetheless, demand from the existing population exists; the area
has many unformed households because some are unable to form
new households due to a lack of available housing units.

Chart 34 depicts the income levels and the number of households

in 2026. These new households are projected to be at the higher
end of the income spectrum, those earning $100,000 a year

Chart 36: Units Needed in Oshtemo Township by Income Level

3000

5 i mFEentee B Dwney

2000

AT E

SR FIO000 3000 SIN000-40.590 $R0000 T §TR000-00.950 $00.000 o meee

Source: The American Community Survey of the U.S. Census Bureau, 2015-2019 average, and Claritas.

Osthemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Supply and Demand

83

68



Looking beyond Oshtemo Township, we have included, for the
entire county, potential demand by renters for homeownership.
The county has roughly 36,000 households paying rent.The survey
results indicate nearly 28 percent of those renters are looking to
buy, which would be 10,000 homes. Chart 35 shows most of

the interest in buying comes from those aged 25 to 34 and those
aged 35 to 44. Osthemo Township is certainly not expected to
meet the entire demand, but there are many reasons why first time
homeowners would be interested in Oshtemo Township. Proximity
to the city of Kalamazoo, being eligible for the Kalamazoo
Promise, and available areas to build mean growth potential for the
township.

The housing market has cooled from the peaks of the last few years
but demand remains elevated. There is a demand for housing

due to net growth, but there is also demand due to mismatch of
preference, price and availability of homes. Third-party estimates,
such as the one from Claritas, suggest net growth of merely a few
hundred households in the next five years. Forty-six percent of
renters are paying more than 30 percent of their income for rent,
and not all of these households are college students.

Survey Responses

What are some of the things you like or
dislike about housing in Oshtemo Township?

“We already have an abundance of mid-rise apartments

for rent. I'd like to see more efforts toward “Habitat for

Humanity” type projects with a funding base, etc.”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

Osthemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Supply and Demand

Chart 37: Renters Planning on Buying a House in the Next Three
Years by Age

H NG BLUAfund WYk

Source: Oshtemo Reponces from the Kalamazoo County Housing Survey

Chart 38: Renters Planning on Buying a House in the Next Three
Years

Source: Oshtemo Reponces from the Kalamazoo County Housing Survey

84

69



Table 17: Units Needed to Meet Demand from Growth Over the Next Eight Years

Cottage courts, Mid-sized Apartments o
Single family Duplex-quadplex, ~ finy homes, . Live/work (g n:-:url:rl\;f:n::l:nd (low, mid, chc‘:;:;y
Geography detached Condos Benegicamenl units ? condos) large) units
1 Unit 2-4 Units 1 Unit 4-25 Units  4-25 Units 25+ Units +1 Units Total units

Rural 75 50 50 25 200
Suburban 150 75 125 50 40 440
General urban 20 75 15 110
Total 225 125 175 20 50 75 80 750

Estimated cost to

. . $350,000 $200,000 $250,000 $190,000  $175,000 $150,000 $75,000
build per unit

Total cost by type  $78,750,000  $25,000,000  $43,750,000 $3,800,000 $8,750,000 $11,250,000 $6,000,000 $177,300,000

Housing needs in Oshtemo Township are influenced by many factors. Those factors include population projects, economic-condition
projections, pent-up housing demand, housing-type preferences, and existing housing stock. When analyzing these factors together, Institute
staff find a substantial demand for new housing units in Oshtemo Township through 2030. The current and future demand for housing

units is different from the demand in decades past, as new and current residents are increasingly interested in higher levels of density and
walkability. Nonetheless, single-family houses remain attractive to many. In the chart above, we estimate the number and location needed
for each type of housing.

According to our estimates, the Township needs to enable the development of 750 new housing units. This will require a substantial
investment from public and private entities—an estimated $177 million. To create this estimate, Institute staff collected construction costs
from local developers and state and national reports. The results of this work indicate that construction costs for single-family homes range
between $300,000 and $500,000, duplexes are in a similar range but offer two housing units per building, midsized multifamily projects
are slightly less expensive at approximately $150,000-$250,000 per unit, and low- and midrise apartments are even more cost-effective
at $125,000-$200,000 per unit. The cost to add an accessory dwelling unit can vary widely, depending on the relationship to an existing
home (utilizing the existing house envelope and infrastructure is far less expensive than building a stand-alone building on the same
property), square footages, and the quality of the finishes. This report estimates an average cost of $75,000 per accessory dwelling unit.
Multiplying the average cost of each unit by the number of units needed reveals a total investment needed of around $177 million to meet
the future housing demands in the Township. Table 13 outlines these calculations, along with the number of units needed by location.

Osthemo Township Housing Plan: Housing Supply and Demand 85

70



6

Goals, Obijectives,
and Strategies



Collaboration

No single group or solution will solve the housing crisis. As such,
many individuals and organizations were asked to contribute to
the creation of this housing plan. Our stakeholder groups were
composed of municipal leaders, realtors, developers, employers,
nonprofit agencies, and residents. These individuals volunteered
their time and expertise to help guide areas of focus. The Planning
Commission worked as the steering committee to provide critical
direction and innovative ideas to the planning process, which in
turn guided the goals and obijectives of this plan. Stakeholders'’
input on these strategies is vital, as their knowledge of local
conditions and politics helps determine which are likely to succeed.
In addition to the public planning-commission meetings, eight
special public meetings in the evening and on weekends were held
to collect feedback on preliminary results. Survey responses were
collected from 503 residents in the Oshtemo targeted survey. Some
435 more were received from Oshtemo residents countywide in
the Kalamazoo County survey. The strong participation showed
the level of concern and passion people have for coming up with
housing solutions for Oshtemo Township.

Formulating this housing plan would not be possible without the hard
work of the Planning Commission and the Community Development
Department at Oshtemo Township. Additional support provided by
township volunteers was invaluable in getting the word out about
the housing survey. In addition to those who answered the survey,
we had around 55 participate for in-person and Zoom meetings.
We are grateful for the collaboration and partnerships that formed
during this process.

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Goals Objectives and Strategies

ELCEL TN P ST TE ¥ N

B emdie ey W11

I dywad

87

72



The goals, objectives and strategies below were created based

on data, stakeholder conversations, and public feedback. Details
and specifics of strategies will need to be further discussed with the
Planning Commission and/or Township Board prior to implemen-
tation. Additionally, increased capacity at the Township is needed
to fully implement the goals. Many of these strategies would not be
possible without the creation of additional dedicated staff and/or
a department to address housing needs.

Goal One

A township where housing-unit production and
preservation result in a supply of ownership
and rental options that are safe, healthy, and
affordable to people of all income levels and
demographics.

Objective

Produce a supply of rental and home-ownership housing to
meet current or projected needs.

Strategies
1. Update zoning to allow for accessory dwelling units (ADUs)
township wide.

2. Open R1 and RR zoning to allow duplexes by right and
allow legal conversion of single-family to duplexes, with design
standards that will blend with single-family homes.

3. Remove zoning barriers for housing projects in designated areas
such as, but not limited to, reviewing the minimum requirements

in zoning, including parking setbacks, single-family lot size, and
building square footage required.

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Goals Objectives and Strategies

4. Participate in the Redevelopment Ready Community program for
long-term and future development.

5. Expand administrative-review ordinance for site-plan approval.

6. Create preapproved plans to remove barriers to development
for small first-time builders such as, but not limited to, accessory
dwelling units and infill duplexes.

7. Allow tax incentives such as, but not limited to, NEZ, PILOT, and
TIF.

8. Update zoning ordinance to allow multifamily residential and/
or mixed use development in all commercial zoning districts.

9. Consider adopting more recommendations from the Michigan
chapter of the American Planning Association’s Zoning Reform
Toolkit. https://www.planningmi.org/zoning-reform-for-housing

Objective

Preserve good-quality rental and ownership housing for
households of all incomes.

Strategies:
1. Expand housing opportunities with housing-choice
vouchers.

2. Expand rental-code enforcement for properties
five or fewer units to ensure the health and safety of

the residents.

3.Review and improve the rental ordinance and rental inspections.

88

73



Goal 1 Cont.

4. Connect and inform residents of opportunities for affordable
home repair such as, but not limited to, creating a local lending
library.

5. Provide outreach and education about existing opportunities
for homeowner repair programs such as, but not limited to,

a newsletter, website, and pampbhlets for Tuesday toolman,
weatherization, USDA loans, MI Saves, etc.

6. Create an Airbnb ordinance.

7. Explore ways to help minimize HOA fees by setting appropriate
development standards for roads and water retention.

Objective

Consider housing demand and needs for future generations
and life stages.

1. Allow zoning for alternative housing types such as, but not
limited to, condos, tiny homes, cottage courts, townhomes, and
accessory dwelling units (ADUs).

2. Allow single-family conversions to duplex or multifamily homes.

3. Encourage and allow cooperatives, community land trusts (CLTs),
and resident ownership models in mobile-home parks to diversify
options and opportunities. Include encouragements such as, but not
limited to, subsidies for costs of development.

4. Promote and incentivize mixed-income and senior housing
development projects.

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Goals Objectives and Strategies

5. Encourage new buildings to be built to meet the standards for
American National Standards Institute (ANSI) Type A homes that
adds an accessible threshold throughout the home rather than
ANSI Type B homes that is limited to items such as grab bars.

Survey Responses

“What were/are you looking for in housing
that you can not find?

“Affordable single family homes in a rural area”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

“Quality construction at the right price point”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

89

74



Goal Two

A township where housing contributes to a safe,
desirable, environmentally responsible and
sustainable community.

Strategies:
1. Create process and encourage the creation of neighborhood
organizations for community relationship building.

2. Establish structural housing grant programs for low-income
homeowners.

3. Make incentives for landlords to reinvest in outdated apartments.
Improvements could include landscaping, lights, and interior
updates for health, safety, and energy efficiency.

4. Allow existing structures to be rebuilt for up to one-to-one
replacement.

5. Prioritize housing close to existing infrastructure or planned
nodes/zones with amenities like stores, farmers’ markets, and other

services.

6. Update rental-code enforcement for all rental properties.

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Goals Objectives and Strategies

Strategies:

1. Increase education and outreach on existing rebates, and
weatherization financing for homeowners and landlords, such as,
but not limited to, consumer rebates, M| Saves, and PACE.

2. Encourage more environmental design in zoning approvals for
sustainable buildings, such as, but not limited to, rain gardens, solar
panels, taller native grasses, permeable pavement, and multifamily
parking, with one tree for every four cars.

3. Allow density bonuses or other incentive programming for LEED
project meetings, Passive House, Enterprise Green communities, and
Energy Star.

4. Require minimum recycling percentages for demolition.

5. Create opportunities for composting facilities for homeowners.

Survey Responses

What are some of the things you like or
dislike about housing in Oshtemo Township?

“enjoy green spaces and outdoor recreation. smaller

developments in clusters with adjoining green spaces would

be preferred over high-density mega developments”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

90

75



Goal 2 Cont.
Objective

Promote livable neighborhoods with a mix of housing types
and incomes, high-quality design, and a scale and character
that respect unique residential neighborhoods.

Strategies
1. Expand the allowable uses in existing zoning, including for

housing types.

2. Prioritize housing close to existing infrastructure or planned
zones with amenities.

3. Zoning should reflect measures to support new construction with
good-quality design, scale, and character.

4. Encourage traffic-calming measures for new and existing roads.

5. Provide incentives to change existing exterior common-area
lights to LED and Dark Sky-approved lights.

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Goals Objectives and Strategies

Survey Responses

What are/were you looking for in housing
that you cannot find?

“Housing that is in a location where i can walk to shopping
and services”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

91

76



Goal Three

A township that values usable open space and
the preservation of natural features.

Objective

Balance competing demands to create housing options and
preserve open space.

Strategies
1. Promote housing developments that maximize usable open
space, such as, but not limited to, gardens and natural features.

2. Create incentives for developments to add usable open space
that connects to existing natural areas, including buffers and parks,
and incentives such as, but not limited to, density in height and lot
widths.

3. Prioritize housing close to existing infrastructure such as sewer
lines, or planned zones with amenities.

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Goals Objectives and Strategies

Objective

Develop standards in housing developments to embrace
natural features.

Strategies

1.Create incentives for tree planting and landscaping programs for
existing owners and landlords/renters. This could be done through
neighborhood associations.

2. Provide education and outreach on native lawn options and
seed mixes.

3. New housing developments should meet the landscaping site-
plan requirements.

Survey Responses

What are some of the things you like or
dislike about housing in Oshtemo Township?

“The rapid increase in housing without consideration for
the preserving natural elements and the environment. The
resultant increase in noise as more cars and trucks move
through the area.

-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

92 77



Goal Four

A township that collaborates to support housing
opportunities without discrimination.

Objective
Support aging in place.

Strategies:
1. Support local zoning that is appropriate for older-adult housing
options, such as accessory dwelling units.

2. Develop or enhance local aging-in-place education and
resources for older adults, their caregivers and families, and
landlords, through housing counseling agencies, Area Agencies on
Aging (AAA), and home and community-services agencies.

3. Support programs aimed at transitioning older adults out of
nursing homes, as medically appropriate, and into housing where
they can receive in-home care services.

Objective

Support equal housing opportunities.

Strategies:

1. Create an antidiscrimination ordinance that applies specifical-
ly to housing. (For example, federal law prohibits landlords from
charging higher security deposits to people in wheelchairs or to
families with children. The law also requires landlords to allow rea-
sonable accommodations and reasonable modifications, as need-
ed, for people with disabilities to fully use and enjoy their homes,
and it prohibits discrimination on the basis of source of income.

2. Establish a library of resources to inform residents of their rights.

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Goals Objectives and Strategies

Objective

Support an adequate supply of transitional and/or
permanent housing services throughout Oshtemo that are
appropriate and meet the specific needs of those who are
housing-insecure in the township.

Strategies:
1. Support the creation of transitional or permanent
housing opportunities in Oshtemo Township.

Obijective:
Support Housing First initiatives in Kalamazoo County.

Strategies:

1. Create working relationships with the local Kalamazoo County
Continuum of Care, shelters, and nonprofit partners to assist with
temporary housing for those in Oshtemo Township.

Survey Responses

What are/were you looking for in housing
that you cannot find?

“Aging in place options are hard to find. | need attached

garage, one level living, main floor laundry, more than 2

bedrooms all at an affordable retirement price.”
-Anonymous, Oshtemo Township Survey

93

78



Appendix



Qualitative Responses to the Oshtemo Township Survey

Question 3:
“Do you own or rent your home?”

* “Going to build on our property.”

* “Too much money when it should be going for a house.”

* “We own our manufactured home but on rented

property.”

* “Own Condo with Home Owner Association & management”

Question 5:
“Can you find (or have you found) housing that aligns with
your earnings?”

Support equal housing opportunities. In response to the above
question, about 8 percent of respondents chose to provide a
detailed answer rather than a “yes” or “no” answer. Some of these
respondents indicated that they had found housing appropriate to
their income, but only with assistance, often family-based. Others
indicated that they had found housing that was appropriate for
their income, but they did so many years ago and doubted that
they would be able to do so today. Some cited property taxes as
a barrier to finding affordable housing. Another group reported
that they were able to find housing that met their income, but just
barely—it was, or is, a struggle.

Respondent was able to find housing that aligns with their
earnings only through assistance of some kind:

* “Difficult - We had parental support at purchase time.”

* “I live with my father, so yes (for now). But there is a lack of
starter family homes in this township that | love.”

* “ONLY with assistance.”

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

Respondent feels that property taxes are a barrier:

* “Yes, but the property taxes are slowly pushing us to seek other
options.”

* “Property taxes need to be lower.”

* “l own but the taxes are so high | can’t afford to stay here too
long.”

* “Finding a home at a reasonable price in KPS district has been
challenging. Condo prices are as much as a home, or more. We
overpaid for our home but had no choice. Rental prices are also
very high, or locations are unsafe in Oshtemo - our son is looking
for a place. Not to mention being gouged by township taxes with
very little in return (sidewalks, streetlights, road maintenance.”

* “Yes, except for the crazy amount of taxes that we pay here. And
they only continue to rise. This is difficult in our current economy.
Our monthly mortgage payment is more than when we purchased
the house due to taxes.”

* “Fear being taxed out of my home.”

Respondent was able to find housing that aligns with their
earnings in the past, but is not sure that they would be able to
now:
* "Yes, that was 15 years ago”
* “Bought 30 yrs ago.”
* “Barely, housing market has increased since | purchased and is
now above what | could afford to buy.”
* “Built here in 70’s.”
* “50 years ago, but it wouldn’t now.”
* “Prices are increasing”
* “The cost of my house aligns with my earnings, however if | were
buying my house now, | could not afford to purchase it.”
* “Currently yes. However, if and when | have to move, I'm
concerned.”
* “At the time of move in yes.”

95

80



* “Only because we bought a repo over 20 years ago.”

Respondent reports that they were/ are able to find housing that
aligns with their earnings, but just barely or it was/is a struggle:

* “Barely, it was extremely hard.”

* “Since the coronavirus pandemic the price of housing has
increased. It is very difficult to maintain affordable housing in this
area.”

* “Yes but it's expensive and | work multiple jobs in order to live
here.”

* “Everything is too much these days, especially in Oshtemo.”

* “The monthly charge for condo owners is INCREASING VERY
FAST - too much for my income; | retired in year 2000.”

Question 9
“What are (or were) your greatest challenges when looking
to find housing in Oshtemo?”

The survey instrument allowed respondents to select more than

one answer to this question; approximately 17 percent provided a
written response. Many of these respondents expressed that it was
difficult to find the specific housing option they were looking for,
whether it was a larger lot size, a smaller home more suitable for a
single person, or a quiet neighborhood. Respondents commented
on an overall lack of options. Specific concerns include difficulty
finding suitable senior housing, difficulty finding land to build on,
and a need for more/better condominiums and good-quality rental
options in the area. A portion of respondents indicated that taxes or
utility prices were a barrier.

Respondent could not find the option they wanted:

* “Not enough options when buying.”

* “Hard to find properties with rural character that made me look
to Oshtemo.”

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

* “Hard to find a quiet neighborhood.”

* “Houses were too big for a single person.”

* “Not great single family renting options. I'm not in a position to
buy and am a single parent. Individual rentals go so fast and | have
a dog so I'd prefer not to be in an apartment. So the only option is
unfortunately a trailer park.”

* “Lack of options, other than single family homes”

* “Hard to find modest sizes homes, less than 4 bedrooms”

* “| am a working professional (teacher). | do not want to live in
the ‘student ghetto” in Kalamazoo but all other rental options are
out of my price range. | make $60,000/year. | should be able
to afford a 1-2 bedroom apartment that is not deplorable looking,
like the ones in Kalamazoo.”

* “| felt like there weren't many options when | needed something
quickly. I took a job offer and was expected to move within the
month and it was difficult.”

* “There are only a handful of housing options in Oshtemo.”

* “We need housing in areas that's not so noisy away from
highways and main areas.”

* “Hard to find homes for sale in the specific area | wanted.”

Respondent voiced a need for more or better-quality senior
housing:

* “Need housing for seniors-affordable.”

* “Having been swindled by the landlord of a senior subsidized
apartment/housing complex, | ended up in an overpriced
tenement run by crooked con artists.”

* “More senior housing for folks living on social security.”

The respondent feels that taxes or utility prices are a barrier:
. “Taxes too high”
* “Taxes were too high for equivalent house in neighboring
areas.”

96

81



* “High prices with added upcoming fees for sewer/water Miscellaneous:

hookups” * “Don't feel safe within the community.”

* “Taxes are high considering what they pay for. Kalamazoo * “"Have not looked, but looking to own in the next 5 years.”
City’s are way lower and offer leaf and bulk trash pick up. * “Past credit history. Not to be confused with rental history.”
Portage are comparable and again offer leaf and bulk trash pick * “"Hud section 8"
up.” * “Housing next to green.”

* “Taxes are ridiculous for services.” * “Single story.”

* “Property taxes relative to services out of proportion.” * “Unfettered urban sprawl. Lack of green space (unimproved

* “Taxes are very high, aligned with Chicago.” parks)”

* “Property taxes are outrageously high compared to * “"Houses are overpriced. Shopping & nicer restaurants are
surrounding communities.” lacking - there are hardly any sidewalks for safe walking to parks,

stores, etc. Old Chime building area could be developed into
The respondent notes a lack of condominiums: housing. And space closer to Mattawan and KVCC”

* “Need more condo’s.” * “Finding one clean enough to even think about buying”

* “Free standing condominium” * “Renting with son from daughter”

* “Limited number of the site condo (detached condo) option * “"Have not looked, | own my home and want to sell.”
that we were looking for” * “Inflation has hit all of the USA and the world.”

* “No high-end condos and lack of luxury single family” * “Very few accept pets even if you have an excellent record.”

* “We need more condominiums, there just aren’t any good
options.” * A few respondents report not having been in the housing

market for many years or that they find this question does
The respondent sought or is seeking land to build on: not apply to them for some other reason.

* “Options for building my own home”

* “Open land to build what | want”

* “Availability of lots to build ranch style home”
* “Alot of large lots have been split or subdivided into smaller
less desirable parcels”

* “We purchased acreage and built”

* “Built new”

* “Built a home on open rural land”

* “Hard to find rural/ag land”

* “Hard to find a lot to build on.”

* “Land/lots”

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix 97



Question 10
“What were/ are you looking for in housing that you cannot

find?”

Some 150 respondents followed up on the previous question by
providing details about what housing elements they desired but
were unable to find in Oshtemo Township. The types of housing
desired varied widely. Specific types mentioned include duplexes,
mobile-home options, detached townhouses, condominiums (this
request was common), townhomes, accessory dwelling units
(ADUs), special amenities within multifamily buildings, ranch-style
homes rather than two-story homes, apartment complexes, more
single-family rental options, community housing that is easily
accessible by public transportation, single-family homes with large
lot sizes, high-end housing developments, and homes with large
garages. Several respondents expressed a desire for large lot sizes
or a “rural” feel. A significant number of respondents expressed a
need for better and more senior-housing options. Specific-senior
housing options mentioned include cottage and village-style senior
housing, independent senior living communities, HUD-subsidized
housing, senior carports, aging-in-place options, and zoning for
accessory dwelling units or “mother-in-law” style homes, in which
a separate structure is provided for her on the property. Location-
based elements such as safety, distance from college students,

and accessibility emerged as themes in the responses. Taxes and
affordability were two additional themes.

Respondent would like more options for housing types:

* “More of a selection”

* “MOBILE HOME PARK WAS NOT LISTED AS A HOUSING
OPTION. | BELIEVE THE TOWNSHIP  NEEDS MORE MOBILE
HOME OPTIONS”

* “Duplexes and independent townhouses”

* “Community housing within walking distance of shopping,

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

library, and public transportation.”

* “Condo with 3 car garage. In high demand but aren’t any in
Oshtemo.”

* “Free standing condominium”

* “I'm looking for a townhome or condo that fits within my price
range. A price range that allows me to live comfortably and not
‘housing poor’ regardless of my income level.”

* “There are not enough condos in the below $180000 price
range. When | cannot do stairs and need an inexpensive condo |
don't think | will be able to find one in Oshtemo”

* “Multiple site condo (detached condo) options. | know of only 2
such neighborhoods in Oshtemo”

* “Duplex, ADU”

* “More free standing condos”

* “Specific floor plan in a condo with specific amenities”

* “High end luxury condos with clubhouse, swimming pool, work
out rooms, etc.”

* “Condominiums west of 131. The lack of city sewer makes
building them impossible.”

* “Smaller than 1600 square foot homes”

* “Duplex”

* “Hard to find ranch style homes or condos”

* “Looking for Condo. | waited and found perfect location.”

* “Condo”

* “Apartment complexes and smaller homes”

* “See answer 9. More single-family rental options.”

* “Renting prices keep going up. Limited renting options in this
area.”

* “Affordable housing that is friendly to children, and has a pool,
workout center, and clubhouse that can be rented.”

* “Affordable rate on nice apartment took over a year to get off
waiting list when | did not want to live in a huge apartment building
that felt unsafe.”

* “Affordable young adult apartments”

98

83



* “Single family homes in a neighborhood with large lots”

* “Were looking for area with single family homes in a
neighborhood. Found it.”

* “A ranch with more than 1299 sq ft that is relatively new and not
too far out in the rural area”

* “Walk out ranch style home in my price range and location”

* “Open floor plan, a kitchen in the back of the house, three or
more bedrooms, a safe neighborhood and lots of closet space.”

* “Portage- smaller homes were outdated ranches, tight lots”

* “4-5 bedrooms”

* “We were looking for a ranch home and it was hard to find.
More 2 story homes available”

* “Quality single family homes.”

* “High-end housing communities”

* “Nice subdivisions that have curbs and people care about their
homes. That are not built by Allen Edwin.”

* “More upscale home developments”

* “"Houses will more acreage, houses with outbuildings, houses
with main level bedroom, houses with additional mother-in-law
suite”

* “Quality construction rather than poorly built, but still high price
homes”

* “With Verizon cost of food prices that would be wonderful if
there could be housing with an area where we could have gardens
or bigger balconies where we can have more planters.”

* “More soundproof walls. Individual garages.”

* “A garage within the allowed setback”

* “Large garage for needs”

* “"House with extra car storage or lot that would legally
accommodate second car storage building”

Respondent would like a sense of being “rural” or more
land:
* “2003- country feel without living too far out”

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

* “Green space and large lot size.”

* “Larger lot”

* “Affordable single family homes in a rural area”

* "Quiet location with large lot/yard”

* “Tough to find much for sale with more than 2 acres of land for a
reasonable price. If Oshtemo needs more of something it's keeping
lot sizes large and stop letting people split them up.”

* “Land. Wish there was more land and investment in sidewalks
and nature trails. Please protect the trees. | fear West Main will look
like Westnedge. And please stop with the credit unions for the love
of all that is good.”

* “Space and land!!

* “Big lots, beautiful homes”

* “More space, bigger lot with privacy”

* “l was looking for a large lot (5-10 acres). | settled for 3 acres,
although | am happy with where | live.”

* “Rural with more than 20 acres.”

* “Large lot/acreage”

* “Open lots, 1 to 2 acres”

* “Green space, low traffic and quiet are all critical for housing
environments”

* “Land/acreage”

* “We wanted a move in ready house on 2+ acres of land. Most
houses that come with land are very old and outdated, but priced
high.”

* “Acreage”

* “Bigger yard”

* “Yard space”

* “Couldn't find housing so decided to build, and even lots were
hard to find.”

* “10+ acre lot, machine shed and/or hanger.”

* “Lots of land and large house for big family. Had to buy and tear
down/rebuild.”

* “Quiet road with land (we found it but it is getting busier by the
minute)!”

III

99

84



Respondent notes a need for better or more senior housing
options:

* “The lack of housing for seniors who are handicapped or
difficultly with stairs.”

* “Single family homes for adults 55 and older.”

* “Independent senior living”

* “Aging in place options are hard to find. | need attached
garage, one level living, main floor laundry, more than 2 bedrooms
all at an affordable retirement price.”

* “Senior housing the Villages up here would be great.”

* "Affordable senior apartment/condo housing”

* “Senior subsidized housing”

* “Affordable senior housing for social security incomes”

* “HUD Subsidized housing for seniors.”

* “Carports for senior living”

* “More safe HUD housing; elderly/ disabled”

* “Housing that met current needs and allowed aging in place for
as long as possible”

* “Would love to have the option to add ADU to my own property
for aging parent. Or would love a tiny home community.”

* “A decent affordable apartment for seniors.”

* “Affordability for seniors, multi family and disabled individuals”

* “Affordable last homes for retirees were difficult to find for
purchase and not rent.”

* “Shared living village concept, with younger people assisting
seniors, like in Europe, to minimize the need for assisted living and
nursing homes.”

* “Affordable senior housing | had to go back to work because
| can’t make ends meet because housing is more than 30% of my
income.”

* “More duplexes! Also, zoning reform that allows more
accessory dwelling units. | wanted to live on my aging parents’
property in a freshly constructed ADU, but zoning rules had

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

obviously been carefully written to exclude them, so | didn't even
try to pursue that.”
* “Senior housing, cottage type.”

Respondent commenting on taxes, regulations, or utilities:

* “Average housing with taxes that are similar to other areas. Have
to settle for less house because taxes are so much per month.”

* “Tax rates lower than Kalamazoo. Government that works for
the citizens.”

* “Lower property taxes, because surrounding communities seem
to have lower property taxes. According to my friends who live
in the heart of kzoo, portage and portage outskirts, school craft,
mattawan, and Alamo township— Oshtemo seems to be the
highest when it comes to property taxes. This makes it hard to even
purchase a smaller-midsize home due to such high taxes.”

* “A township that will keep it hands out of my pocket”

* “Less government interference”

* “Consider moving out of the township. The board members are
very unprofessional and unfairl Many board members are crooks!”

* “The opportunity to own my home and land without interference
from the current township board’s fictitious “go green” initiative
which only applies to areas outside of their properties (yes we
know where you live) and their overzealous desire for roads
and parks that just drive-up taxes. We were looking for a
housing situation that did not involve constant tax increased and
unwarranted assessment s and mileage increases.”

* “| find it increasingly hard to find housing where local
government leaves owners alone.”

* “What | found in a house in Oshtemo is a house that needs
updating. However, with the threat of a sewer upgrade, rising
taxes, and higher than normal property tax, it is difficult to upgrade.
So we continue to live in the 80s.”

* “Public utilities (sewer), large BUT functional yard - not so tree
covered that grass wouldn't grow or grade changes that effected
usable space, access to trails.”

100

85



* “Connected to municipal utilities, affordable.”

* “Good internet connections”

* “We found a new home but overpaid. No sidewalks, streetlights
far apart. Poor snowplow response time. Road maintenance is
cheap, same potholes every year with the same sand pebble
refill. Kids don’t have smooth roads to play on. High traffic busy
roads with no walkability to benefits like parks and library. All
affect housing thriving if options are built. Tons of development
opportunity on stadium drive and 9th street.”

Respondent is commenting on the location:

* “Something NOT near rentals.”

* “l found a reasonably priced rental unit, but there is a higher
crime rate in the area which is unsettling.”

* “Smaller one level home in a safe quieter neighborhood but
close enough to town shopping”

* “| wanted something private but easily accessible to amenities
such as shopping and highways. | could find no suitable
alternatives at the time | was looking.”

* “Good neighborhood, nice landscaping, upscale housing, new
designs.”

* “Lot size for good yard, number of bedrooms, still in KPS district”

* “Location”

* “"Housing that is in a location where | can walk to shopping and
services”

* “The size and general location that | wanted, in my price range”

* “A safe community to raise our children. We have have several
break ins to our vehicles and drunk men knocking on our door in
winter trying to come inl NOT AT ALL WHAT | WANT AROUND
MY KIDS.”

* “Single family homes with neighbors that care about their homes
and respect yours. Do you want to buy a house that's next door
to a dump with gutters falling off, dead trees and lousy lawns?

My next-door home is owned by a slum Lord that owns multiple
properties and does nothing to keep up the property. Renters don't

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

care about keeping up a rented property that they don’t own. Rich
multi homeowners that rent their properties can afford to outbid
single families for the properties and many make lousy neighbors.
Home and apartment renters can make lousy neighbors. Pray you
don't find out as new apartments are going up everywhere and
running once nice single-family homes.”

* “Affordable, no students, and safe.”

* “Affordable, not in college areq, preferably with older tenants,
pets allowed, with some yard space.”

Respondent is commenting on affordability:

* “Single family dwellings at affordable price”

* “Affordable safe housing that can accommodate families”

* “Costs”

* “Low income, disabled housing”

* “Starter family houses in a starter family price point ($125,000-
$250,000)"

* “Affordable, safe area”

* “Affordable rents that are not over a $ 1,000 a month for a 2
bedroom Apt “

* “| feel like the limited options of houses for sale has made the
price range we looked at were fixer uppers in the $150-$200k
which was upgrading to us.”

* “"Housing that suits a single person on a moderate income”

* “Affordable housing”

* “Decent starter homes for my kids as they come back from
college.”

* “Affordable housing”

* “Affordable monthly payments”

* “Cost”

* “Affordable, but not run down or unkept. Managed well.”

* “Affordability or even just options. It's sparse and super
expensive. Has been since 2018 or before. At the very least.”

. “We were looking for a single-family home as a starter

101

86



home and it took a long time. Many of the homes on the market
were larger and more expensive than we could afford.”

* “I'm looking for something where | can afford the rent and
utilities (not paying more than $800 for rent) or where the utilities
are included and I'm not paying more than $1,000 per month.”

* “Affordable Single Story”

* “We wanted a 2/bed single family home within our budget and
couldn't find one.”

* “Low-income housing”

* “Lower rent/affordable rent prices for lower incomes.”

* “House in my price range.”

* “Availability and affordability”

* “Affordable homes for single adults, homes that are newer (more
up to date/less repair work), and if possible, environmentally
friendly homes. The only new homes being built lately are well
over $200,000 dollars which single adults can’t afford, thus
condemning them to a lifetime of renting. A home | could afford by
myself is: $80,000-$100,000 max.”

* “Updated or newer house on a large lot in a nice neighborhood
for less than $700,000.00.”

* “Affordability; two car attached garage; fairly updated; dish
washer; washer/dryer on main floor; at least two bedrooms”

* “My house was affordable when | purchased it 7 years ago but
has needed mid-five figures in repairs”

* “Newer that were not too expensive for my budget”

* “Quality construction at the right price point”

* “Affordability, most want 3.5x the rent which is not always
obtainable or a 700 credit score. In unit washers and dryers would
be great. Health care workers need better access as we do a lot of
laundry.”

Question 11
“What do you like/dislike about Oshtemo Township
housing?”

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

This question received 363 responses. In answering what they like
or dislike about Oshtemo Township, many respondents described
the direction they hope the township will take in the future. It is
worth reading the series of individual responses to this question, as
perceptions of the township are not uniform among residents, and
at times desires for the community are in direct conflict with one
another.

Oshtemo Township residents expressed appreciation for the green
space and parks in the township. Many respondents like their
neighborhoods. Respondents mentioned enjoying that the township
is not overcrowded—parts of the township feel rural while still
being close to amenities. At the same time, others are concerned
that the township may grow too large and lose its rural feel.
Many respondents appreciated the ease of access to highways,
shopping, restaurants, and the like. Several respondents would
like to see more local/small businesses (rather than franchises)

in Oshtemo Township, especially local businesses within walking
distance of residences.

Some said they liked the diversity and the different types of housing
in the community. Other respondents disliked the apartment
buildings, student housing, and multifamily housing in general.
Several people expressed concern about the crime rate in areas
with multifamily housing.

Some residents perceived the community as not being accessible to
a diverse range of incomes, which they disliked. Others wrote that
they like the township the way it is and do not want to increase the
diversity or availability of housing.

Other examples of dislikes cited include a lack of housing options
for seniors, high taxes, a sense that Oshtemo Township is not
affordable (high rents were often mentioned), Allen Edwin-

style housing developments, too many regulations, not enough
enforcement of ordinances, and forced sewer hookups. 102

87



Quality of neighborhoods:

* “l love being a part of a neighborhood with children and
families.”

* “| live in an awesome community!”

* “Like-safe quiet place to live in a good location.”

* “Different neighborhoods”

* “Neighborhoods”

* “Quiet, friendly, well-maintained neighborhoods.”

* “Nice neighborhoods”

* “My neighborhood is pretty quiet overall. Most neighborhoods
are well kept.”

* “Love the area”

* “We love living in Oshtemo Township.”

* “Convenient, safe, diversity, quiet.”

* “Some areas are not suitable for families.”

* “| like Oshtemo Township very much. Again, it is the crime rate
which depreciates the area”

* “Nice homes in quiet neighborhood.”

* “Variety of housing, beautiful urban areas”

* “Great neighborhoods with great home values”

* “Small community with good values and easy living away from
the big city problems and drama.”

* “Most of it is older and not designed for modern living”

* “Convenient, safe, diversity, quiet.”

Senior Housing:

* “| dislike the cost of housing. As a retired couple, owning our
own home, | am concerned about a time that we may have to
move and being able to find something within our restricted income
that will meet our needs.”

* “Not enough options for seniors with limited income.”

* “Not enough independent senior living”

* “Not affordable for seniors”

* “Would like independent senior living”

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

Sentiment regarding housing overall and the type of homes
Oshtemo Township “should” build:

* “ltis fine the way itis.”

* “| like the various options.”

* “Good neighborhoods. Presently, infrastructure supports existing
housing.”

* “| like what we have.”

* “| like that similar housing types are mostly grouped together
geographically in the township.”

* “Oshtemo already has a variety of housing options. With safe
communities with affluent families”

* “Seems to be a tremendous amount of upscale homes in the
subs.”

* “Dislike too much high end, too little low to middle income
housing”

* “| like Oshtemo the way it is with more upscale single family
homes. Don't ruin Oshtemo.”

* “| like people making the choice to build or buy what they want
without government to step in and force, limit, or reduce.”

* “"Housing is okay. Probably need more apartments and lower to
middle income housing options.”

* “The push for more high-density units”

* “| think there is enough affordable, well-maintained housing.
Build more & better single- family, senior/ disabled housing.”

* “| like the housing options.”

* “| like that | have a lot of open land near to places | need and
enjoy going. | paid a premium for it though and put a ton into
remodeling, and many do not have that option. | definitely want
affordable housing available for those with lower incomes because
| believe it's the right thing to do morally and the city has no room
to expand. We do. The available land in Oshtemo near public
transportation, however, is limited or priced for big developers
of subdivisions. The township would have to put in money in

103

88



purchasing land as well as putting in sidewalks and expanding
public transportation to make a practical difference in the housing
crisis.”

* “Need simple affordable Mid-income with decent back yards.”

* “Housing in Oshtemo is available for people looking for
opportunities where enrichment for themselves and their families
will reward them with a great place to livel”

* “Dislike trailer parks and subsidized housing.”

* “Variety”

* “ don't like the lack of planning and foresight of areas of new
housing.”

* “Thoughtless and indifferent design that compromises the
environment. Thoughtless sprawl. Realtors and developers that have
no sense of civic mindedness.”

* “None. | live in the country on the west side of Oshtemo Twp. It's
perfect. | think many housing areas in Oshtemo have high crime.
That is always a concern.”

* “| like that's pretty small and they have benefits out here.”

* “More of a small suburb feeling”

* “| like the township the way it is, and as me and my other family
members that have lived our entire lives in Oshtemo, we do not
need more homes, especially multi-family homes or apartments.
People like this township now, the way it is, not for more housing. |
think it is a disservice to try to increase housing for the people that
are already here.”

* “Single family working class or retired.”

* “We like the variety of homes and neighborhoods.”

* “Enjoy green spaces and outdoor recreation. Smaller
developments in clusters with adjoining green spaces would be
preferred over high-density mega developments.”

* “Need more middle-income housing.”

* Need more houses people who work on Oshtemo can't live in
Oshtemo “

* “| do think there need to be more options for low-income

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

residents.”

* “There is a range of housing options, but | think that there could
be more entry level housing and more non-student housing.”

* “Allen Edwin buying all the land around”

* “l love the wide variety of housing characteristics in Oshtemo
Township. There’s only a couple neighborhoods that are ‘cookie
cutter.””

* “Too many Allen Edwin homes”

* “Most are Allen Edwin cheaply built housing”

* “Township Growing too big”

* “We know that single inlet neighborhoods are intrinsically safer
from the standpoint of traffic, vandalism, burgulary, and home
invasion. This ultimately results in higher home values.”

* “While it's nice to see developers build in the area, most of the
newer communities have been Allen Edwin style homes which
are extremely low quality. There has been no higher end housing
development.”

* “Not interested in allowing low quality, small lot homes built in
Oshtemo. A standard need to be defined and adhered to.”

* “Most is unique, built by multiple contractors in the same
neighborhood. Allen Edwin neighborhoods are a blight. Better
to have unique single-family homes and condo/townhomes in a
neighborhood with adequate recreational space in an area. “

* “Almost no small houses. Many, many more people are living
single and the housing builders are still putting up houses that are
way too large.”

* “Dislike cheap quality Allen Edwin housing communities recently
built on 9th street north of West Main Street.”

Comments regarding ordinances and utilities:

* “| wish there were better blight and road parking ordinances.
There are so many areas where multiple large vehicles are parked
near corners or on roads where there are school bus stops and
children walking in those areas are not safe when traffic has to go

104

89



around corners and vehicles without being able to see the kids. Too
many people park half on the road and half in their yards so the
snowplows can't clear thoroughly, you can't see the stop signs, and
people can't easily travel through an area since there are people
parked on both sides of the road in the same area plugging up
those areas. Too many people living too close together without
adequate off-road parking.”

* “Forced sewer hookup.”

* “Choice of tv servers instead of Spectrum only”

* “No leaf pickup like Kalamazoo Township.”

* “The sewer hookup mess”

* “Sewer issues”

* “Septic tanks. What decade are we living in2”

* “The ongoing efforts of the Township to do things that do not
need doing.”

* “Over regulation; Too much interference from local gov't.”

* “Lack of speed enforcement or speed reduction methods being
offered to make neighborhoods safer for pedestrians. This is in
direct context of the cluster of apartment buildings off of Drake on
towards KL ave.”

* “The township doesn't listen well to its citizens. The sewage issue
continues to get pushed in spite of strong resistance from the voters.
There seems to be a strong push for land use restrictions and control
that make it challenging to know what the township will try to push
onto landowners at incremental costs.”

* “The setbacks and lack of willingness to work with homeowners
on garages.”

* “Finally, | live on Green Meadow Road. More traffic calming/
speed abatement is needed. Speed bumps please!”

* “Like proximity to shopping and highways. Dislike high taxes
and lack of public sewer in many areas.”

* “Not enough focus on law enforcement.”

* “Speed limits are far to high on primary roads with all of the new
housing developments and increased traffic. Lack of broadband

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

availability.”

* “I do not like how Oshtemo Township wastes money.”

* “Too much regulation in Oshtemo Township.”

* “Like the convenience of shopping. Dislike sewer project
mandate. Dislike mandatory city water connection in the case if
needing to replace well.”

* “Township board only listens to input of those that agree with
them. Never, in recent history, overturn one of their decisions, even
when the citizenry overwhelmingly rejects or disagrees with their
edict.”

* “We greatly dislike the mandatory sewer hookup push. It has
been proven time and time again that municipal water supplies are
easily contaminated. Let us stay on our well and septic.”

* “| dislike the lack of ordinance enforcement. One can just drive
down any road in our subdivision and see violations.”

* “Too many restrictions on what you can or cannot do with your
own house and animals, such as chickens and pigs and such.”

* “| recommend to others to avoid buying homes in Oshtemo
Township due to issues with the township and many of the board
members.”

* “Dislike the neighborhoods that still utilize septic tanks.”

* “Parks. Trash dump day. Library.”

* “| wish the local government would leave people alone.”

* “LIKES: Great, convenient library; Twp staff (usually) quick to
reply to questions; near to 1-94 & US 131. DISLIKES: road repair is
OFTEN neglected - especially KL, and 9th St; stoplights are NOT
COORDINATED - especially near 9th St & Main; and intersection
of Drake & Main - this wastes TOO MUCH GAS!”

* “Dislike: lack of zoning for Mobile home housing options.”

* “This isn’t about housing per se but | was very disappointed to
learn that Oshtemo is prohibiting cannabis retailers. We could
use the money. It does not attract more crime, it brings in revenue.
Clearly elderly people who still demonize marijuana without
having any knowledge are in charge here.”

* “I love the fact that the houses have a good amount space
105

90



between the homes in subdivisions that have a number of homes.

| like my long driveway and that | do not have a sidewalk to
maintain. What | dislike about the housing in Oshtemo is there are
some neighborhoods where that Oshtemo does not enforce some
ordinances requiring homeowners to keep their property and home
to have a good and clean appearance.”

* “Lack of enforcement of junk cars, trash, building supplies, etc. ,
stored outside homes in the township.”

* “Ordinances are not being enforced. People run auto repair
businesses out of their home in Sky King and drive various
unregistered cars in and out of the neighborhood storing cars at
Walmart. Property values are being tanked.”

* “The sewer requirement we voted against that will cost
me another $7500 plus an estimated $5000+ for hook-up.
Apartments should have dedicated access to main roads instead of
using quieter neighborhoods.”

* “Itis not oshtemo's legal responsibility to force residents to hook
up to sewer. Oshtemo needs to take a step back from the plate and
quit being so pushy on residents.”

* “Dislike- not hooked up to city sewer. Required to pay for
recycling.”

* “Like: less crime than kzoo and a little quieter. Enjoy being close
to campus, food, and shopping. As well as close to the highways-"

* “| like the open and green spaces, SOME ordinances to provide
screening and transition from one use to another. Ordinances tend
to be excessive and minutia, with selective practicality overridden
by “we can't set a precedent” rubber-stamp mentality. We have
friends who have worked in the office and tell us there was a
mentality of way too many people and too little to do. Went home
feeling unaccomplished and left to be productive in the private
sector.”

* “"Having a well and septic”

* “Dislikes: *Roads are not plowed in a timely manner. A fire truck
and ambulance were unable to reach a house to help a patient

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

who needed to get to the hospital ASAP * the possibility of being
forced onto city water & sewer. We love having our own welll “

* “Overly rigid zoning in some cases, with litfle chance of
obtaining a variance.”

* “Sometimes the water is brown especially in winter which makes
me worry about how safe the drinking water/sink/bathroom water
is here. They give notices to water shut offs or spraying a building
for bugs at the very last minute via paper or e-mail (24-hour
notice) giving residents little time to prepair and follow-ups on how
those things went are nonexistent can be stressful. | like the trees/
greenery around my area a lot!”

Making Oshtemo Township more accessible to those with
different financial resources:

* “The housing currently available is great. | think single family
homes are the answer for Oshtemo's future. Low-income housing
should be in Kalamazoo where they have bus lines.”

* “Low income housing lead’s to high crime areas and the facts
show this is an accurate statement.”

* “They only want low income and they want to take away all the
wildlife and greenspace. Fix up homes that need help and in the
Kalamazoo area to use for housing. “

* “Just not enough affordable housing that is kept up.”

* “It's too expensive. Houses are too big.”

* “Not enough single-family residential properties affordable to
young couples”

* “Most housing not affordable for low- and middle-income
families.”

* “All the same - no diversity in ages, income, race ethnicity.”

* “| like that there are many differing kinds of housing.”

* “Financial barriers for many, judgement of those who cannot
afford.”

* “I'm concerned about lower income housing going in right next
to upper income housing, thereby devaluing the upper income

106

91



homes and potentially increasing crime.”

* “| like the proximity to shopping areas for most of the housing
options and the variety of housing types throughout the township.
Although, | do feel we need more options for lower income
earners.”

* “Erroneous to say the community builds housing. Market forces
are at play any distortions will lead to more distortion.”

* “Dislike the lack of options and affordability.”

* “Not enough people w/ varying income levels which leads to
not enough diversity.”

* “Oshtemo sucks ...it"s expensive and there aren’t enough
resources for the poor. | am struggling to make ends meet and the
township keeps jacking up the cost of living. I'm going to have to
sell be | can't afford to live in my childhood home anymore. My
parents have passed, | am alone. So thanks for being greedy,
Oshtemo Township.”

* “| like that there are options near commercial areas. | do not like
that the prices seem to be higher than that of Kalamazoo township.
This creates a gap in the diversity of different incomes to be able to
live in Oshtemo.”

* “Expensive.”

Responses related to a “rural” feel or overdevelopment:

* “Distance we still have from other folks.”

* “| love that we have beautiful homes and offer both urban
and rural settings in our community! | dislike how hard it is to find
housing under $250,000.”

* “Like the rural feel on the west side of the township.”

* “Too many developments. Too many big box retail businesses.
Losing the rural environment that was promised by the township
board several years ago. More violence heading our way or
already here. ie; Stabbing on KL Ave. Danger to the wildlife living
in Oshtemo. Too many truck routes on residential roads.”

* “Rural setting; quiet not crowded yet. Please do not turn

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

Oshtemo into Portage.”

* “| love the rural feeling, with urban amenities nearby.”

* “Too many large developments. Oshtemo used to be more
rural in character now it is beginning to seem more like portage.
Oshtemo allows more building and restricts what can be done on
property, but then doesn’t provide additional services to residents.
Services like leaf pick up or the trash pick up like portage/
kalamazoo. We seem to want to operate like a large city but we
don't provide services.”

* “Oshtemo does not need to be made like the city of kalamazoo
or Kalamazoo township. Let Oshtemo stay the way it is. There is
plenty of varying income housing in the surrounding areas. Stop
trying to fix something that isnt broken. The only thing Oshtemo
needs to do is enforce the ordinances and protect property values.”

* “lt's becoming too crowded. A major part of moving to the area
was that it still felt like country living, but was close to city.”

* “Location is great. Love my neighbors. Resources are
nice. Dislike: the speed of M-43, removing green space to
accommodate unnecessary buildings/parking lots (like Advia), the
impending high cost of moving to city sewer, gravel trucks barreling
down 10th street.”

* “Too much urban sprawl.”

* “Totally happy with current housing. Leave it alone. Do not
make this a small Kalamazoo. That is why many residents moved
to Oshtemo-to escape the city. | guarantee you will lose many
residents if you destroy the “country” feel of Oshtemo. Don't let the
city of Kalamazoo talk you into something that we moved AWAY
FROMIIN”

* “Lower density where we live. Spacious country feel while still
being close to services.”

* “Like the semi-country feeling of the Township. Dislike the wider
choice of living options.”

* “*The country vibes, close enough to run into town for what we
need but far enough out of town to enjoy the peace and quiet.”

* “Housing is getting too congested- traffic flow is difficult.”

107

92



* “Land space, not overcrowded ......until we started going crazy
with unnecessary commercial building, with Banks specifically!”

* “| like how it is still small still, but just a few miles away you have
everything you need.”

* “Area is getting too built up, too much traffic.”

* “Like the country feeling in the township (no crowded housing
areas).”

* “Lot size”

* “Variety, land with house”

* “Rural character, yet fairly close to things needed (at least it has
been)”

* “| appreciate the mix of urban and rural character. | like the idea
of focused areas of live/eat/work/play surrounded by more rural
areas with fields, forest and well-spaced housing. Please don't let
Oshtemo become suburban sprawl.”

* “There are houses in rural areas to be found.”

* “Noise and overuse of property without enough green space
and consideration of traffic flow and risks associated with
congestion.”

* “| like that we have plenty of properties with ample acreage.”

* “Nice size lots, preserved trees.”

* “| like that Oshtemo is more quiet and peaceful than other
townships and areas in the county.”

* “Lots are spacious, for vegetation trees nature. not
overcrowding.”

* “| like the natural, undeveloped areas around that provide
privacy and walking trails for the kids.”

* “Rural, quiet, well-networked. Opportunities here to assist with
housing problems by offering some density options - will raise
property values and give us a more diverse population (age,
incomes, family-types, etc)”

* “| like the country feel.”

* “| like the open space.”

* “Beautiful rural roads and houses that maintain larger tracts

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

of land. Driving under the trees on KL and other streets is
uncommonly beautiful.”

* “Rural feeling (like)”

* “Commercial /retail growth overtaking green space. Example
Advia credit union razed 40 acres of green space and paved
over it for a consistently empty parking lot in front.”

* “Large lots more space.”

* “| like the green spaces here and the fact that everybody is not
squeezed together.”

* “Too close together”

* “Like the open land”

* “| like feeling I am in a rural living but close to amenities.”

* “Open spaces, parks, shopping close by.”

* “Neighbors have gotten too close over the years.”

* “Rural feel but close.”

* “| like that there is some open land areas and it is not too built

up.

* “Wooded lofs, size of lots, location away from Kalamazoo.”

* “| like space around homes. Not so crammed together unless
they wanted to be —like a tiny home lot, then a blank lot, then
something else. Space is good for humanity. Easy access to
walking trails or sidewalks would be a bonus.”

* “| like the rural feeling west of 8th st. | would love to not see
any more subdivisions or have a requirement in place that any
new construction homes be on a minimum of 5 acres.”

* “The rapid increase in housing without consideration for the
preserving natural elements and the environment. The resultant
increase in noise as more cars and trucks move through the area.”

* “Housing which takes more farmland and green space adds
more traffic and congestion- keeping the small feel lowers crime,
preventing noise and light pollution.”

* “Population density is optimum now. Oshtemo is a transition
township smoothly flowing from suburban to rural. | do not wish to
see that change with additional development or sprawl.”

108

93



* “Bigger lots for single family homes in Westport while keeping a
neighborhood feel.”

Responses related to green space:

* “| love that nature matters and not to over build. We are close to
city conveniences but at the end of the day being in the county is
most important. | would also like to see Oshtemo preserve the night
sky. The “light” pollution keeps creeping into our area. “nighttime”
monitoring and giving people more knowledge about how their
lighting choices affects all of us. | not talking about holiday lights
(that's great) | mean bright security type lights that glare all over-
versus bright- directed downward lighting.”

* “Need planned green space.”

* “No central city. Parks are nice but they are on main roads.”

* “Nice mix of country homes and ‘in town living} not too many
‘dangerous neighborhoods’, pride of ownership in many older
neighborhoods. | dislike the ugly homes right on the main roads,
esp stadium and 9th st area. | also dislike the fact that on sunset rd
the woods are being bulldozed to build more condos. We need
more woods and green space not less.”

* “| like that the township acquired the fruit belt trail. | hope it's
never paved. | don't like the amount of development. We need to
preserve more green space and farmland. When building housing
it should be done with a small footprint and built on land already
developed. | hope Oshtemo township will acquire more green
space in the future.”

* “No matter what type of housing is built in Oshtemo Twnp., it is
vitally important that we maintain and preserve plenty of green/
open space. It's a very large part of what is attractive about the
Township, and it's important to not “develop” it away.”

* “Too much focus on parks and trails that are not needed.”

* “The total disregard for the land and animals that inhabit that
land. The township is so money-hungry that they have no respect or
regard for what they are destroying. And that is just the beginning.”

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

* “| love the great amount of unscathed woodlands, but it's sadly
being developed at a high rate of speed.”

* “Like: parks, trails , and near to stores, restaurants and small
professional/ medical facilities”

Responses related to taxes:
* “High taxes”
* “Location, taxes, rural feel”
* “Nice public works services, great schools, reasonable taxes,
close to everything without living in ‘town."”
* “Lower property taxes”
* “High taxes”
* “Dislike township involvement and taxes”
* “High Property Taxes”
* “Taxes and terrible road maintenance”
* “Lower taxes than city”
* "l love the location!! | love the people here. | love the closeness
to shopping. | love lower than Kazoo city tax rates.”
¢ “Love the location, hate the taxes.”
* “Taxes too high”
* “High costs”
* “Property taxes are high.”
* “Dislike-high taxes and possible forced sewer connection”
* “High taxes”
* “Taxes have almost doubled in the 7 years I've lived here.”
* “| like this areq, close to work and a big city. But my taxes are
more on my 2 acres than | was paying on 10 before.”
* “Too many apartment people that don’t pay property taxes.”
* “High property taxes.”
* “Taxes that are absurd and mileages for things we don’t need.
Also paying for schools we don't use.”
* “They are slowly trying to stick their hands deeper and deeper
info my pockets.”
* “Dislike the high property taxes compared to surrounding
communities.”
109

94



* “Taxes are too high! (library, school)”

* “The Township taxes and sewer requirements keep making it
more and more expensive to live here.”

* “The taxes are too high.”

* “Taxes are way too high for services. We are last to be plowed.
There is no spring garbage pickup, no leaf pickup in fall, water
is terrible, roads near us are mostly in need of repair. We will be
leaving soon.

* taxes have continued to go up with no added benefit.”

* “Taxes are too high.”

* “We don't like Oshtemo as much as Portage. They don't deliver
mail on a routine schedule. They don’t shovel our neighborhood
on a routine schedule. They don't pick up leaves they don't fix their
roads. They don’t have walking trails. We have very high taxes
and we get very little back from those taxes. We are very sorry we
moved from PORTAGE to Oshtemo. We lost a lot.”

* “Dislike high taxes.”

* “Real Estate Taxes are way TOO HIGH given all the new
commercial and industrial development. Presumably the new
developments are getting tax breaks, but (if not) a larger burden
should be on the wealthy developers ...not your residents.”

* “Too many renters vote yes for everything but don't share that
tax burden. Our taxes have tripled since the Promise!”

* “There is no need for the “community” ie: the taxpayer,
to provide housing. That assumption drives this survey and is
erroneous.”

* “Too much taxes for too little return of reserves as in leaf pick-up,

ni- un

curb side ““junk”” pickup. It seems a bit contradictory to the ““go
green”” that we all have to load our vehicles and wait in a line to

dump our stuff.”

* “| find the taxes in Oshtemo to be unreasonably high. The cost

of the home is only a part of housing costs. Taxes are greater here
than my home on Long Lake in Portage. And | do not receive any

services such as road care, outside lighting, garbage pick up,

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

etc. If taxes continue to escalate, | will not be able to remain here.
Additionally, | chose to live here because | do not want to live in

a city. | do not want congested living areas, traffic issues, and
increased crime and violence.”

* “Taxes are too high”

* “Taxes and the fact that Oshtemo township has control over
housing issues regardless of the person owning the property and
their financial status.”

* “The housing is great but seems that you pay a lot in taxes with
no advantage to it. Honestly not sure what we pay taxes for.”

* “The taxes here are insane.”

* I like how | am close to town, but not right in it. | like lower taxes
than city of Kalamazoo.”

* “Taxes are too high and continue to rise making it difficult for
seniors to stay in this township.”

* “Dislike the very high property taxes.”

* “Like lower taxes than City if Kalamazoo and Kalamazoo
Township. Generally, it would be great to see more bike paths
and sidewalks along busy streets connecting our neighborhoods to
other neighborhoods and nearby stores and trails.”

* “Our taxes are outrageous, but we did not want to live
downtown Kalamazoo. Please stop trying to gentrify Oshtemo.”

Responses related to a lack of maintenance:

* “Pest problems and lack of maintenance

* “Dislike - property maintenance; lack of care (Exterior and
yards) being presented as ““natural”” or rural character, no
quality standards (Allen Edwin developments) like - character of
established neighborhoods “

* “Some homes are not kept in good repair.”

* “Dislike: Unkept mobile home parks”

Responses related to multi-family dwellings:
* “| dislike the student housing in Oshtemo and feel that it is unfair
for people who live some where four or fewer years to have an
110

95



equal vote on local politics as those who live here, pay taxes, and
raise our children here.”

* “| dislike expanding into mass housing projects. Oshtemo
should be a single family rural community, not a homeless housing
solution. Our safety and health is at risk.”

* “Dislike there are too many multi-family dwellings”

* “Too many big apartment complexes stacked on top of one
another dislike. A friendly community, convenient to downtown
and many other small communities, like.”

* “Too many apartments, townhomes and condos. Housing in
general is FAR too expensive.”

* “I'm not aware of all housing; however, | would strongly prefer
to keep the sense of green space we currently enjoy, without further
development along the West Main corridor. If we have to put up
large condo/apartment complexes, my preference would be that
they not be along the West Main corridor and perhaps located a
little more remotely if possible.”

* “| am aware housing is a real need and support options;
however, want to make sure whatever constructed is beautiful and
well maintained and considers traffic flow for current residents.”

* “| don't like the drugs being sold nearby in trailer parks and
apartments”

* “Dislike so many assisted living units and apartments putting
additional burdens on first responders”

* “There are a lot of apartments but not much starter homes. They
jump to very expensive houses too.”

* “Too many apartments”

* “lt's older housing. Multi-plex apartment housing is not
advantageous for a single person in their 50’s with a good income
level.”

* “Few large single family neighborhoods. Only small plats
scattered around. In our areq, the mix of apartment projects has
only hurt.”

* “Like convenience of shopping nearby the apartment. Dislike so

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

many cars, and so few people walking or biking in East Oshtemo.
Like friendly response and kindness from Township offices and fast
responses on requests. Like that activities happening behind mall
were curtailed, and | haven't seen the drug dealers in front of the
mall for a while. Like the parks.”

* “Apartment complexes that are not kept up, high crime
associated with same”

* “l have loved living in Oshtemo for the past 22 years however as
of the past couple years the crime continues to creep into Oshtemo
Township specifically when the apartments were built on KL.”

* “Apartment complexes have become places for more crimes.”

* “| like the affordability of Concord Place Apartments even
though it's not a very safe neighborhood.”

* “ moved here to be close to kzoo but further away from the
crime. | dislike the idea of adding more apartment complexes. |
grew up in apartments and the larger the complex the more crime
problems seem to occur.”

* “Like: The proximity to everything we need. Dislike: Frequent
sirens and train horns. Concern about crime near apartments and
rental properties.”

* “All of the apartments appear to be student housing or old
section 8 style”

* “Dirty apartments”

* “Apartment complexes that attract crime”

* “Some apartments are very run down/have not been well
maintained.”

* “Too many apartments!”

* “| love my neighborhood, but unfortunately there have been a
large increase in crime. RedRoof Inn, homeless encampments and
the apartments on 11th st that seem to draw drug dealers.”

* “Too much housing expansion, certain large-scale developers
make poor quality developments, and we have too many
apartment complexes already. There's plenty of housing if we just
eliminate rentals and non-owner-occupied dwellings.”

111

96



* “| like how there is a lot of green space, trees, not many
apartments, and how some/most homes have yards.”

* “l do not like that property is being sold for people to build non
family houses (condos, apartments, etc.)”

* “Existing zoning has created too-large, massive swaths of
apartments, condo and mobile home parks. It would be better
to have more but smaller complexes of them better integrated
among single family housing. Not the huge, too densely populated
complexes we have now, like off Drake between KL and Lowe's;
off 9th St. between KL and Stadium Dr. ; and off KL between Drake
and 11th street.”

* “| LIKE the newer housing stock available in Oshtemo. That's why
| bought a condo here in May 2022.”

* “| make a pretty good living but | don't fall into the category
where | can get reduced rent so I'm spending the majority of my
earnings on a place to live so | struggle with having to pay my car
payment, insurance and groceries (food and household necessities)
because rent is so high.”

* “Like keeping rial residential single-family housing”

* “Dislike talk of more multi-family dwellings”

* “Too many large apt complexes. Not enough integrated parks,
rec within neighborhoods.”

* “Need more multifamily housing and the township needs single
family housing to meet needs of all financial abilities.”

* “Dislike the high renting prices and limited options. Do like the
quality options and exclusivity which is a catch 22. However, | sill
wish there was additional rental units of the same type.”

* “I'm noticing more rentals, I'm not a fan of that unless they're
upscale and well-maintained.”

* “Too much multifamily housing.”

* “| like single family homes on plots/neighborhoods. Place multi-
family homes east of 131. Traffic is bad already.”

* “Rentals in my price range are pretty low quality. You have a
mix of really nice neighborhoods and really cruddy rentals. Rentals
should be held to better standards (in a way that keeps them

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

affordable and safe, but better standards for residents)”

* “Some rental properties are less concerned about their tenants.”

* “Dislike apartments being built”

* “l lived in multi-family units for several years, and I'm grateful
that Oshtemo doesn’t have many of them. | don't believe that
multi-family units are good for society in general, and | tend to
believe they primarily benefit developers and investment groups.
Prior to buying a home, | felt stuck and that | would never be able
to afford a home. When | realized my rent payment exceeded a
potential mortgage payment, | decided to just go for it and buy
a house. And then, | ended up paying rent for several months
while also paying a mortgage because | wasn't allowed to break
the lease without incurring a huge fee. | never saw a return on
investment for my rent payment because there was no return on
investment (for the tenants, that is). | put up with broken furnaces,
broken appliances, water leaks, and indifferent landlords for over
a decade. Affordable single-family homes coupled with skilled
labor and proper zoning are a strong basis for our society. We
don’t need more light-commercial jobs that pay just enough
to afford rent- we need good paying jobs that create solid
foundations for peoples’ futures.”

* “There are enough college housing complexes. The 2 massive
complexes on the border of KL and 11th have caused a lot of
police need. Prefer housing where the residents are responsible for
their own properties. The exception would be senior housing- there
are few affordable senior housing options, and the demographics
show the need.”

* “Not being able to pick your neighbors (lol!) or stop property
management companies from buying up single family homes for
rentals. Oshtemo is becoming another typical Rentwood dump.
Single family homeowners are being pushed out, home values go
down and crime increases more and more with renters. (Prove me
wrong.)”

* “Lower income housing, apartments, mobile homes have
brought increased crime to the area.”

112

97



* “| dislike Canterbury Apartments. Low-income housing stuck in
between a middle-income neighborhood. Has brought violence to
the neighborhood.”

* “We do not need any more apartments/condos/etc. Where is
this housing going to go? There's not much green space left. Traffic
is already a nightmare on West Main and has gotten worse every
year we've lived here. More housing is not the answer.”

* “Large property with single family homes. Less traffic.”

* “We liked that there were a number of good condominiums at
reasonable prices in the area.”

* “Too many crime-ridden apartment complexes!”

* “Builders trying to jam multi-person dwellings into small spaces.”

* “The apartment places nearby.”

* “| liked that there was a variety of choices in Oshtemo. | was
looking for apartment or condo. But as a volunteer helping people
with evictions | know the area pricing is not fair to all. We have
many working poor and homeless. Seniors will be next when
Social Security is taken away. Where can they find homes2 Maybe
planning can allow for low income homes? These do not have to
be slums. Planning, tutoring, education can help form a person
into an ideal citizen. This is happening in Kalamazoo. Seniors may
be looking for Shared Housing. Sharing their house with others
or looking to share someone else’s home. This can help them with
expenses and also provide companionship. So many ways to help
people in need compared to getting the top dollar. What can we
do?”

* “We like that there is a variety of housing options already and
they should continued to be grouped together, for example there
are multi-family complexes along the drake road, stadium drive
and KL ace corridors while there are also neighborhoods and rural
residential in different areas. These areas do not need to mix. New
developments should match their existing neighbors.”

* “| like the single-family neighborhoods.”

* “Things | like: single family houses, one or two story duplex/

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

triplex/multiplex housing, scarcity/absence of high-density
multistory apartment buildings”

* “| like the combination of rural housing with multifamily housing
with room left over for agriculture and undeveloped areas.”

* “| like space, natural resources; parks, trails, lakes. NO
apartments or rental properties bringing in temporary residents who
don't care about the future of our community.”

* “Please close the road between Driftwood and Canterbury
Apartments.”

* “Limited housing west of 9th St. off West Main. Lots of open
available space with very few housing/condo projects. Any other
community would have lots of options. too many apartments, too
many mobile homes.”

* “Like the fact that we are now taking about options for new
buildings for housing.”

* “We already have an abundance of mid-rise apartments for
rent. 1'd like to see more efforts toward “Habitat for Humanity”
type projects with a funding base, etc.”

* “| feel that there are already many apartment complexes - single
family housing is very important for a stable community in my
opinion.”

* “Too many high population clusters (apartments) in a small
footprint, stacked in a disarray of cluster without thought given for
roads, sidewalks or other means of transportation. Master plan
calling out interest to continue clustering in a small footprint of the
Township causing even more traffic and access issues.”

* “No low or midrange development for single family housing.
Condo development with high HOA fees making it impossible to
purchase and afford the cost of living in the area.”

* “Infrastructure misconnects and upcoming sewer installation,
mandatory hook-ups and other fees added on top of cost of
housing. This is pushing elderly or long-term homeowners on
fixed or lower incomes out of the Township. New developments
coming in are sterile and row housing (condos or apartments).

113

98



Current apartments not being maintained or inspected for violations
regarding upkeep, animals, etc. Apartment owners not being
held accountable in a visual manner showing improvements and
results.”

* “| liked that there are several apartment options based on
personal needs.”

* “Need more reasonably priced condos.”

* “Too many student apartment complexes.”

* “Too many apartments and subsidized housing which, as we,
know has resulted in a lot of crime.”

* “Too many site condominiums.”

* “High density housing on our east side = student spillover from
WMU. Associated with lots of fire and county sheriff calls.”

* “Too many apartments, tiny homes allowed No more
apartments!! They bring in more crime to our community.”

* “| like that my subsidized apartment complex renovated our
apartments. There is not enough housing for low-income people,
and once it's built mostly it's just forgotten about, and never
updated. So it's nice that they remembered that poor people
deserve to be housed with dignity as well.”

* “Proximity o everything and yet a feeling of being more
suburban/rural than suburban/city.”

* “| like the multi-family housing close to main roads keeping
country, country.”

* “That there as multifamily /apartments being built/proposed.”

Responses related to renters’ concerns:

* “Rent is unaffordable for many people.”

* “Not enough landlords that are not ‘slum lords’ taking
advantage of students. Because they drive up the rent for every
other place.”

* “There needs to be more/convenient Laundry facilities.”

* “Some rent prices are way too high”

* “Rent prices too high.”

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

* “Laundry room should be placed in an area where they can be
used anytime without disturbing other people. There also should be
handicap apartments on each floor. Apartments truly need to be
energy efficient! And buses need to stop at senior citizen apartment
buildings not several hundred yards away!”

* “High price subdivisions, very few rentals except in big
apartment complexes, no senior living areas”

* “Way too expensive to rent. Not everybody can afford over
$1,000 a month on rent for a family.”

* “Oshtemo needs more condos, and affordable living and not
making one bedroom cost 1,000 or more.”

* “Rent is too high for housing and housing not up to code!”

* “Unaffordable rent prices.”

* “No animals & no smoking of any kind.”

* “More camera’s outside property”

* “Security on campus (very important)”

* “No carport”

* “| like the diversity in the apartment complex | live in.”

* “Bad rental market.”

Accessibility to Services and Shopping, restaurants, etc. :

* “Need more restaurants that are not chains! Always driving to
Portage or downtown Kazoo to eat.”

* “| think the water bills are high; lots of sirens at night compared
to Portage or Schoolcraft; convection of traffic on West Main. Like
having the Kal-Haven trail, the K-College Arboretum, straight shot
to S. Haven, easy access to US-131."

* “Convenient to shopping and downtown but still private.”

* “Bus service to grocery stores”

* “Metro for Dr’s appointments and transportation to casinos, short
trips.”

* “| would like to see more non-motorized transportation
avenues.”

* “Not necessarily housing- the roads are dreadfull”

* “Increase in vehicle traffic”

114

99



* “| wish they would pave 2nd St. A short road with 8-10 newer
homes with values from $500K - $800K, on a dirt road. Oshtemo
can do better than that...”

* “Traffic”

* “Close to things | need”

* “| would like to see bike paths such as Portage, Ml has.”

* “Centralized community resources: first responders, parks/trails,
urgent care, grocery stores, restaurants.”

* “Love the community, parks, bike trail, Meijer”

* “Good variety; close to shops and highway; great community”

* “| like convenience of shopping and access to highways, rural
nature, walking paths and parks.”

* “| like the convenience to the major highways and shopping.”

* “Wish housing was more connected both within neighborhoods
and to higher density areas

* amenities -- public transportation, shopping, restaurants, post
office, SSA office.”

* “Close to stores and restaurants.”

* “| like the easy access to shopping and restaurants.”

* “Within walking distance to grocery and shopping.”

* “| like Oshtemo. | have a nice senior apartment and stores are
nearby. The township offices are helpful too.”

* “Love the area and all the options of stores and restaurants.”

* “Like the areq, access to highway, shopping, groceries, etc.”

* “Outlying, yet close to daily needs”

* “Location and variety of options around”

* “| wish there were more small business/coffee shops/ etc within
walking distance to housing.”

* “Keep connecting neighborhoods with pedestrian safe sidewalks
and crosswalks.”

* “| like the Proximity to lots of food, shopping, and entertainment.”

* “Proximity to amenities is a plus. Affordability is a challenge.”

* “Convenient fo shopping/travel.”

“Like friendly neighborhoods and being close to everything”
* “Lots of necessities nearby. Access to many daily places is

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

relatively easy. Space is adequate.”

* “| dislike that there is not a sidewalk on 9th street north of
stadium drive.”

* “The area is a huge plus.”

* “| think you should look at ways to attract employers, upscale
dining establishments to get more variety.”

* “| love the parks in the area as well as the additional pickleball
courts!

* “Wish we had a small walkable business area.”

* “Love the open spaces but need more bike trails like Portage.”

* “| like that the lots seem spacious and close to amenities. | dislike
the lack of curbside services (recycling, leaf pick up) that we had
the luxury of in Kalamazoo Twp.”

* “| like it's close to shopping, but the traffic can be bad and speed
limits are too high.”

* “| like the rural area and not being on city utilities. | dislike some
of the new developments with tiny lots.”

* “We live in a great neighborhood! But our neighborhood
doesn't have the best work/live/shop feel to it. There are no
neighborhood bars/restaurants/coffee shops that are appealing
and give a more community feel.”

* “Not accessible for walking or bicycle”

* “Like mandatory recycling. Dislike lack of fine dining”

* “The absence of paved sidewalks past Drake Road going west.”

* “Convenience to shopping, downtown, Lake Michigan. Most
neighborhoods have pride in house/yard upkeep. Taxes are
high.”

* “Difficult to walk or bike to parks, stores, schools, etc.”

* “Convenience to shopping and highways. Oshtemo township
has good green space. Need to have newer and affordable single
housing options.”

* “Oshtemo has a great variety of stores, easy to get to.”

* “Traffic is horrible. Lots of accidents.”

* “Too much focus on ‘multi use’ paths and sidewalks in areas that

115

100



are not needed.” * “| love Oshtemo. Housing is just expensive right now but that is

* “See previous comments. Latitude is the only nice restaurant similar across the state.”
and stays packed because of low options. Jac’s is ok, but * “The school district lines make no sense. Why some roads/
that plaza is an eyesore. Build another library near 9th /kvcc neighborhoods are otsego schools is ridiculous.”

area. Add sidewalks to neighborhoods & busy roads - huge
safety concern. Update rundown plazas (KC dipping grill, old
Kalamazoo kitty, Chime building, hardings grocery plaza,
rollerworld, curry in a hurry is delicious but needs updating)
more safe things for kids to do that they can access. Parking
lots at parks are tiny, not convenient. 9th street/stadium bench
was dumb, serves no purpose. A retail store or something

to do could have been built at that intersection. KL and 9th
intersection- blah. Just high, speeding traffic. Driving towards
Mattawan is industrial and huge political signs space. Housing
opportunities there. Don't forget to consider the bus line

when adding new places to live. Random houses turned into
businesses don't flow with surrounding areas.”

* “| dislike thoughtless design of many housing developments. |
would like to see walkable neighborhoods close to services that
people need. Reduced car traffic. Thanks.”

* “More nice restaurants would be nice like Texas township
has to offer. Women’s and Men'’s clothing stores other than TJ
Maxx, Target and Walmart. Bring in more mom-and-pop small
business shops.”

* “Inaccessible sidewalks with snowfall.”

Miscellaneous:

* “Healthcare in-house on property”

* “Too many floodlights & string lights.”

* “The new housing, they are proposing on 11th street and off
N avenue.”

* “Housing brings cars, which in turn bring too much traffic,
which brings lots of problems and crime. Look at the statistics.
Talk to the Sheriff's department.”

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix 116 101



Civil Rights Act Segregation of .

Mandates that all persons S“plre’,“e (f3°“rt gecrides_ Government Offices a LECGAL

born in the Unites States exclusion from the housing . . I e

(except indigenous people) market is not a “badge or President Woodro;/y Wlllson T EIEJ&H*EE!;L-.

are citizens and are granted incident of slavery” and that ?pprovles segrega |0nﬁ|_ﬂ e GanT o v

the “full and equal benefit of the federal government Segfr';a?;\ggggeevr;to ices. www.Iscny.org/thecoloroflaw
-

i t hibit publi A oEVEL L] ] . n
o ao o Ploceedngs ™" GO discrimination by o implements this ntiatve.  HOUS TN g Seg reg ation Timeline

property.” individuals/organizations. -

L 13" Amendment o Plessy v. Ferguson  p{ Buchanan v. Warley o) West Palm Beach
€ Silavery is abolished Grants citizenship and @) Supreme Court approves = Supreme Court finds that Supreme Court holds that €N\ West Palm Beach Florida
oo equal civil and legal 00 racial segregation in public @) racial zoning ordinances towns can use zoningto @) adopts a new racial
= rights to all persons born ¥ accommodations where T violate the 14t Am. freedom ™ prohibit apartment ¥ zoning ordinance--in
or naturalized in the separate but equal facilities of contract protections, but buildings in single family defiance of Buchanan v.
United States (including exist for African the Court does not prohibit neighborhoods (a thinly Warley--which is not
formerly enslaved Americans. individuals or private veiled method of keeping struck down until 1960.
people). agreements from banning African Americans out of
African Americans from white neighborhoods).

neighborhoods.
o [ )
L0 Milpitas, CA <t Brown v. Board of Shelley v. <t Federal ¢© FHA Underwriting FHA Established
1] Despite the desperate O Education Kraemer g Highway Act g; Manual Published President Roosevelt creates the Federal
-

« need for housing by <« The Supreme Court states = Supreme Court decides Federal Highway Act is < Uses redlining to mark Housing Administration (FHA) as part of
workers at the new Ford *  that racial segregation in restrictive covenants are not passed encouraging the African American the National Housing Act, )
plant, it is virtually public schools is unconstitutional, but that the construction of highways neighborhoods as ineligible ~ revolutionizing home ownership by
impossible to navigate unconstitutional. “White flight’ state enforcing them violates through urban areas leading for FHA mortgages, requires  introducing the federally insured 30-year
the racially restrictive to the suburbs and enrolling 14t amendment rights. The to the 1959-1969 build of racial segregation for mortgage and institutionalizing and
financing and zoning in whites only “segregation ~ FHA blatantly challenges this Syracuse's |-81 viaduct, which  financing, and recommends ~ Promoting racial segregation by refusing
barriers to build housing  academies” work against decision and does not comply  demolished the vibrant, deed restrictions to preserve {0 back loans in African American and
for African Americans. integration efforts. until 1950. racially diverse 15th Ward. segregation. other ethnic neighborhoods.

L Jones v. Mayer Fair Housing Act US Commissionon N Arlington Heights, ILL) Sylvania, KY
A white mail carrier €O Citing the Civil Rights Prohibits discrimination Civil Rights I~ Supreme Court upholds a @ The Marshall family's <™ Bans certain
incites a violent mob ~ © Act of 1866 and concerning the sale, rental, Reports that “the housing O) zoning ordinance ©) home is firebombed predatory lending
when he notices the ¥ reversing many and financing of housing industry, aided and abetted by‘_ prohibiting multi-unit ¥ when they move in. practices,
African American Myers precedents, the United based on race, religion, Government, must bear the development in residential The county police acknowledging two
family has moved into States Supreme Court national origin, sex, (and as primary responsibility for the areas. Despite open public  officer was a KKK decades of racially
this 17,500 home FHA- holds that Congress can amended) handicap and legacy of segregated racial discrimination at the member and testified  discriminatory
financed development regulate the sale of family status. housing...Government and meetings and in the the actions of he and ~ subprime lending (in
and shouts “N*&"$%# private property to private industry came together ~ nNewspaper, the Court said 20 other KKK members Buffalo, NY % of all
have moved into prevent racial to create a system of there was no proof the in the department were  refinanced loans to
Levittown” at each stop discrimination. residential segregation.” ordinance was meant to condoned by their African Americans
as he delivers the mail. exclude African Americans.  superior officers. were subprime).




Example Tiny House Policy

SECTION XX.XX MICRO-HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS

This type of infill development is intended to provide for affordable
housing of less than standard size as an exception to the minimum
floor area and lot area requirements of this ordinance. For this use
the following conditions are required:

A. Minimum development land area is one (1) acre and
the maximum development land area is two (2) acres,
excluding floodplain, wetland and water bodies.

B. No more than ten (10) dwelling units shall be permitted per
micro-housing development.

C. A micro-housing development shall not be located further
than 1,000 feet from a grocery store and potential
employment, nor may a micro-housing development
be located within 1,000 feet of another micro-housing
development boundary.

D. Municipal Sanitary Sewer and Municipal Water supply are
mandatory.

E. The maximum dwelling floor area shall not exceed 600
square feet in gross floor area (GFA). Post construction
additions shall be prohibited.

F.  The minimum dwelling GFA shall be 288 square feet with a
minimum width of 12 feet

G. Each dwelling unit shall contain bathroom, kitchen, living
room and a sleeping area. The sleeping area may consist
of a loft.

H. Each individual lot shall have one parking space for one
vehicle (10" wide by 20’ deep) directly accessible to the
internal street of the development.

I Each individual lot shall have a minimum width of 22 feet
and a minimum depth of 88 feet. Minimum lot size shall be

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix

2,900 square feet and the maximum lot size shall be 4,250
square feet. Lots shall not exceed a 4 to 1 length to width
ratio.

Front setback shall be 20 feet, side setbacks shall be 5 feet
on each side (except where the walls are masonry within
10 feet of the side lot line, then setback may be O feet), rear
setback shall be 10 feet and there shall be 10 feet between
the dwelling and a detached accessory building.

One and only one accessory building shall be provided,
the maximum floor area allowed for the accessory building
shall not exceed 576 square feet no matter what the size of
the dwelling. Maximum accessory building height shall be
15 feet.

Maximum lot coverage shall be 30% or 1,176 square feet
whichever is less.

. There shall be an access road with a minimum road

easement width of 40 feet, provided that there shall also be
10-foot wide public utility easements on at least one side of
the road right-of-way. The road designs shall be submitted
to the municipal engineer, the County Drain Commissioner
and the Fire Marshall for review and are subject to review
and approval of the municipal governing body. The private
road connection to a public road shall have the approval
of the road agency having jurisdiction. The private road
pavement shall be sufficient to support the largest fire
apparatus available to the fire department and shall be

at a minimum 24 feet wide widening to 28 feet every 150
feet from the public road and having a turn-around at the
end unless direct connection is provided to another public
roadway.

118



Example ADU Provision

SAMPLE DRAFT ACCESSORY DWELLING PROVISION
SECTION XX.XX. ACCESSORY DWELLINGS.

One single-family accessory dwelling may be located on any G. Each guest house shall be provided with emergency vehicle
parcel in RESIDENTIAL and MIXED-USE districts provided that access which has been reviewed and approved by the authorized
the parcel shall contain no less than the minimum width and area fire code official.

required in that district. A detached accessory dwelling shall be
located at least ten (10) feet from the principal structure, be built
at least to the same construction code standards as the principal
structure, and additionally shall meet the following provisions:

A. An accessory dwelling unit may be constructed either above or
at least ten (10) feet behind a principal use structure and may be a
detached structure.

B. At no time shall an accessory dwelling be considered a separate
property by sale or condominium. An accessory dwelling may be
used for income purposes, such as: monthly or other time period
rental or lease agreement or monetary charge for occupancy.

B. Temporary occupancy of either the accessory dwelling or the
principal dwelling by any occupant, shall exceed a minimum of
thirty (30) consecutive days out of each calendar year unless a
Temporary Transient Use permit is granted in accordance with Bed
and Breakfast provisions of this ordinance.

C. The construction of an accessory dwelling unit shall meet all
applicable requirements for accessory buildings. Additionally, an
accessory dwelling unit shall have a minimum floor area of at least
four hundred (400) square feet, but not more than fifty (50) percent
of the floor area of the principal dwelling.

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix 119 104



Urban Transect Definitions

1. Rural Zone: Sparsely settled lands, agricultural buildings, farms,
woodlands, wetlands, stream, large regional parks

2. Sub-Urban Zone: Large-lot single family homes, low density with large
setbacks, shopping centers and connected green spaces

3. General Urban Zone: Small-lot single family homes, apartments,
mixed use and locally run shops

4. Urban Center Zone: Wide housing choices, mixed use, retail shops,
galleries, offices, restaurants and bars
5. Urban Core Zone: Tall multi-use buildings cultural and entertainment

districts and civic spaces for parades and festivals

The below map is an example of the urban transect applied to Kalamazoo

County.

Type
Rural
Cuh-ibrban
Gerseral Utan |
|
!

[ csterne

N
ey [ et |
i 0% 1 |
| S E— |
|

Eurisrnap Sourdr Ein
Canada, [Esri, HERE, Garmin, |
LESGS, MGA, ERY, LSDA, KPS |

H

Oshtemo Township Housing Plan: Appendix 120 105



Memorandum

)shtemo

Date: 29 August 2023
To: Township Board = !f f:\ DT :5 S . TO:N N.SH "
From: f& James Porter — Legal Department

Subject: * Conditional Rezoning of 8447 Stadium Dr (Midwest V, LLC)

Objectives

To consider the Planning Commission’s recommendation to deny the Conditional Rezoning of 8447 Stadium Dr
(Midwest V, LLC).

Recommended Motion

I make the motion to deny the Conditional Rezoning of 8447 Stadium Dr (Midwest V, LLC).
Background
Midwest V, LLC is requesting to conditionally rezone 8447 Stadium Drive, from its current split zoning of R-2,

Residence and C, Local Business District, to C, Local Business District of the Oshtemo Charter Township Zoning
Ordinance, to facilitate the development of the vacant parcel for retail store operations.

Information Provided

I have attached a copy of the Recommendation from Planning Commission and the Meeting Minutes of the Public
Hearing held on August 24, 2023.

7275 W. Main Street, Kalamazoo, MI 49009, (269) 216-5220, Fax (269) 375-7180, www.oshtemo.org

121



OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION

RECOMMENDATION OF THE OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP PLANNING
COMMISSION RESULTING FROM A PUBLIC HEARING CONDUCTED ON
AUGUST 24, 2023

The Oshtemo Charter Township Planning Commission hereby recommends DENIAL of the Midwest V,
LLC requested to conditionally rezone 8447 Stadium Drive, from its current split zoning of R-2,
Residence and C, Local Business District, to C, Local Business District of the Oshtemo Charter
Township Zoning Ordinance, to facilitate the development of the vacant parcel for retail store
operations.

The subject property is located at 8447 Stadium Dr, Parcel No. 05-33-403-010.

OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP
PLANNING COMMISSION

il

Date: August 28, 2023 By:,-f-r--)v/f‘/""‘/*"{";‘g“ \(
o ames W. Porter
" Township Attorney

Final Action by Oshtemo Charter Township Board

APPROVED

DENIED

REFERRED BACK TO PLANNING COMMISSION

122



OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP
PLANNING COMMISSION

DRAFT MINUTES OF A MEETING HELD AUGUST 24, 2023

Agenda

PUBLIC HEARING — CONDITIONAL REZONING — 8447 STADIUM DRIVE

Midwest V, LLC requested to conditionally rezone 8447 Stadium Drive, from its
current split zoning of R-2, Residence and C, Local Business District, to C, Local
Business District, to facilitate the development of the vacant parcel for retail store
operations. :

PUBLIC HEARING —~ PUD CONCEPT PLAN - THE HAMPTONS

Marroll LLC requested approval of a Conceptual Plan for:a Residential Planned
Unit Development (PUD), located at parcel’ number 05-14-1 30 017 and a portion of
6660 W. Main Street. . =

PUBLIC HEARING — ORDINANCE — WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITY
PROVISIONS

Consideration to repeal Article 49 80.— Communication Towers of the Township
Ordinance and adopt proposed Artlcle 59 - Wireless Telecommunications
Facilities. , :

WORK SESSION:

A meeting of the Oshtemo Charter Townshlp Plannlng Commission was held Thursday,
August 24, 2023, commencmg at approxnm ely-6:00 p.m. at the Oshtemo Township
Hall, 7. £l West Main: Street S

ALL MEMBERS _:-
WERE PRESENT: Phjl‘ Doorlag; Chair
o Scot Jefferies
o Micki Maxwell, Vice Chair
- Alistair Smith

.7 'Deb Everett
'Zak Ford, Township Board Liaison

Also present: Iris Lubbert, Planning Director, Jim Porter, Township Attorney, LeeAnna

Harris, Zoning Administrator, Martha Coash, Recording Secretary, Kyle Mucha of
McKenna, and 13 members of the public.

123



Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance

Chairperson Doorlag called the meeting to order and invited those present to join
in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Approval of Agenda

Hearing no requests for change, the Chair asked for a motion to approve the
agenda.

Mr. Jefferies made a motion to approve the ageﬁa_é?as presented. Ms. Everett
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously.

The Chair moved to the next agenda item. -

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Item

As there were no comments from the publlc on non-agenda |tems Chalrperson
Doorlag moved to the next item. e

Approval of the Minutes of the Meetmg of August 10, 2023

The Chair asked if there were addltlons deletlons or corrections to the Minutes
of the Meeting of August 10, 2023.

Hearing none, ‘he asked .f'or a motibﬁl?

Mr. Jefferies made a motlon to approve the Minutes of the Meeting of August
10, 2023 as presented Mr. Smith seconded the motion. The motion was approved
unanlmously

Ch'ai;person Doorlag moved to the next agenda item.

PUBLIC HEARING — CONDITIONAL REZONING — 8447 STADIUM DRIVE

Midwest V, LLC requested to conditionally rezone 8447 Stadium Drive, from its
current split zoning of R-2; Residence and C, Local Business District, to C, Local
Business District, to facilitate the development of the vacant parcel for retail store
operations.

Mr. Mucha of McKenna presented a review of the request for conditional
rezoning from Split Zone R-2, Residential & C, Local Business District to C, Local
Business District from Peter Oleszczuk, agent of Midwest V, LLC for parcel number 05-
33-403-010 located at 8447 Stadium Drive, consisting of approximately 2.15 acres.

He indicated the applicant proposed the following conditions in conjunction with
the rezoning:

124



1. A 6’ board-on-board screening fence provided along the east property line of
the development to help buffer the current residential use.

2. Bigger footprint store (12,480 overall square feet) than historically built to
allow for expanded options for food and coolers. The property would be
developed as a Market Dollar General.

3. Required parking counts would be met with a combination of 34 installed
spaces and the remainder of spaces having dedicated banked parking areas
to be earmarked for parking and installed as grass.

4. Setbacks were intended to be met based on the required sections of the
zoning ordinance.

Mr. Mucha said the applicant indicated the proposed retail operations to be that
of a Market Dollar General, a 20+ billion-dollar Fortune 119 Company with over 140,000
employees nationally, more in line with reglonal retail rather than a Iow-mtenslty
commercial operation. v

He noted other high-intensity comme |aI uses are currently permltted in the C,
Local Business District and the subject site currently permlts these hlgher-mten3|ty
commercial uses due to the C, Local Busmess zoned classification along the northern
portion of the parcel. :

Therefore, he said McKenna found the proposed condltlonal rezoning does not
align with the intent of the Master Plan’ as it relates to-the rural character preservation
strategy, but acknowledged the existing zoning on the subject site would permit a
higher-intensity commercnal use even if the subject site was not rezoned.

The use of the subject site for a retall establlshment such as retail sale of
merchandise uld:be consistent with: the C, Local Business zoning classification of the
northern-portion of the site. While the appllcant proposed to rezone the residential
portion-of: the site to C, Local Business, the future intended use of a retail establishment
at 12,480 square feet is not con3|stent wnth the general land use patterns of the
immediate area..

He |nd|cated reasonable use under the current zoning ordinance is still
achievable, even wuth the spllt zoning, but noted some development restrictions may be
present due to the split’ zonlng for example, the entire property could not be used for
retail.

Mr. Mucha also noted impact on the surrounding properties may be more
significant with the proposed 12,480 square foot building than what is currently
experienced by the convenience store located to the west and the winery located to the
north.

Based on the information provided by the applicant, and the subsequent review
conducted, Mr. Mucha said McKenna found the proposed conditional rezoning does not
generally align with the Oshtemo Township Master Plan as it pertains to neighborhood

3

125



commercial uses. Therefore, and based on the following findings of fact, McKenna
recommended a denial of the conditional rezoning request.

1.

No

The property can be reasonably used under its current split zoning of C, Local
Business and R-2, Residence. A smaller commercial operation could be
permitted to operate on the northern portion of the parcel, subject to
compliance with the Township’s Zoning Ordinance.

The proposed use — 12,480 square foot store — is not supported by the
Oshtemo Township Master Plan.

A change of the existing zoning boundaries wpuld not be compatible with the
existing land uses within the immediate area.

Adequate sites across the Township, which are zoned C, Local Business, are
available, which would not require a conditional zoning.

There have been no apparent changes in conditions.in the area that would
support an increase in expanding the C, Local Busmess District.

The proposed rezoning would |mp’ ct the natural characterlstlcs of the area.
The proposed rezoning has not rden' ified and immediate need for an increase
in the C, Local Busmess Dlstnct desrgnatlon WIthm this area of the Township.

Chairperson Doorlag thanked Mr Mucha for his presentation and asked if
Commissioners had questlons Hearlng none, he asked if the appllcant wished to

speak.

A representatlve of AR‘Englneenngﬁ

ke and édd"ressed the concerns

described by Mr. Mucha, saying- hat he covuldv"not find the Township building size
requirement, that to the north th zonlng is mdustrral while to the west and east it is
commerclal, that he does’ not. now the specnf c Iocatlon of other commercially zoned

property at Mr. Mucha was referencmg, that.any development would impact natural
characterlstlcs that they would meet buffer and screening requirements, that the E-Z
Mart property next store |s,;lookmg to: expand to a building that is approximately 8,000
square feet.™

Ms. Everettiasked wha the typical size is for a Dollar General store.

He indicated 10600 squere feet is typical; this store would be larger to include
space for fresh produce and coolers.

Hearing no further questions from Commissioners, the Chair asked of there were

any comments from members of the public.

Ms. Joan Hawxhurst, 8400 Stadium Drive, said she has lived on her 18 acre

property directly across from the property being proposed for rezoning for 23 years. She
thanked Commissioners for the work they do. She felt the proposed store did not sound
like it would fit in with the character of the area and also noted traffic concerns. She felt

there are great options for the property but this is not one of them.

126



Mr. John Bert, Stratford Hills on Hathaway Road said he moved to Oshtemo in
2008 and noted the already existing heavy traffic on Stadium Drive, particularly from the
west. He chose to live at this location because of the rural nature of the Township. He
did not move here to look at a big box store when there is a Hardings store two miles
away. He supports the Master Plan and agreed with the McKenna findings to deny the
request for rezoning.

Mr. Steve Bertman, 8400 Stadium Drive also appreciates the rural nature of the
area and felt the proposed store would be incongruent as well as being in direct
competition with the existing neighboring store. He wondered if market research might
be done before an approval were given to this type of business.

Hearing no further comments, the Chairper:

son'thanked the speakers, closed the
public hearing and moved to Board Deliberations. :

Mr. Ford agreed with the consultant's. reoommendatlon ‘and believed the current
zoning was intentional in order to constrain the size of commercial developments

Attorney Porter agreed the site’s current. splrt zomng was mtended to restrict the
overall impact of commercial development on the commumty

Mr. Ford added the proposed store would go agamst the rules for rural character.

resrdentlal housing in the Township it
g:for oommercral development now.

Ms. Maxwell said in light of the shortag*lv
would not be proper to: ;ke away re3|dent|al zor

pressed hrs concern’ rega ing treﬁcf in the area.

Ms. Maxwell sar ,people have a right to rely on zoning that is in place and that it
is to the detriment. of the Planning Commlssmn rf they do not stand up for that.

~Ms. Maxwell made a motion to recommend to the Township Board that the
request for. the conditional:rezonirig of 8447 Stadium Drive, parcel 05-33-403-010, be
denied on the foIlowmg fi ndmgs of fact

1. The property can be ~}reasonably used under its current split zoning of C, Local
Business and R-2, ,L,eS|dence A smaller commercial operation could be
permitted to oper :e‘ on the northern portion of the parcel, subject to
compliance with the Township’s Zoning Ordinance.

2. The proposed use — 12,480 square foot store — is not supported by the
Oshtemo Township Master Plan.

3. A change of the existing zoning boundaries would not be compatible with the
existing land uses within the immediate area.

4. Adequate sites across the Township, which are zoned C, Local Business, are
available, which would not require a conditional zoning.

5. There have been no apparent changes in conditions in the area that would
support an increase in expanding the C, Local Business District.

6. The proposed rezoning would impact the natural characteristics of the area.

5

127



7. The proposed rezoning has not identified and immediate need for an increase
in the C, Local Business District designation within this area of the Township.

Mr. Ford seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously.

Chairperson Doorlag moved to the next agenda item and asked Mr. Mucha for
his report.

PUBLIC HEARING — PUD CONCEPT PLAN — THE HAMPTONS

Marroll LLC requested approval of a Conceptual Plan for a Residential Planned
Unit Development (PUD), located at parcel number 05-14-1 30-017 and a portion of
6660 W. Main Street.

Mr. Mucha provided background and revnewof':the PUD Conceptual Plan
submitted by Thomas Carroll, Manager of Marroll for North 9th Street parcel 05-14-130-
017 and W. Main Street parcel 05-14- 185-022

He indicated the site is approxrmately 10. 08 acres with frontage along North gth
Street and that the applicant proposed to acqurre an additional 10 acres of land via a
land division from 6660 West Main Street. The combination would increase the project
site to 20 acres, the minimum area requrred to develop as a Planned Unit Development,
and will be required for final site plan approval. The current request is for a conceptual
plan submitted by the applicant that provided a higher level of detail than required for
phase 1 and phase 2 of the development. He noted some items, such as landscaping,
will be reviewed in_greater detail during the sute plan analysns which will take place after
conceptual plan approval if granted Tl

The applicant proposed‘ onstruct 15 four-plex buildings (60 units total) and a
future senior-housing complex in 3 phases. . Phase 1 would include 48 units; phase 2 will
include an additional 12 units; phase 3 mcludes a senior housing complex. A clubhouse,
pool and assocuated parkmg lot were proposed within phase 1.

Mr. Mucha indicated’ staff has been working with the applicant for a year on
development of the proposal. “He reviewed the PUD zoning requirements and indicated
standards have been met; he ‘"‘oted those not yet described, including a phasing plan,
would need to be included subsequent full site plan request if the conceptual plan
were approved by the Plannmg Commission.

The items that would need to be addressed prior to full site plan approval:

Planning & Zoning
1. Site triangles shall be shown for the off-street parking areas: this will ensure

adequate site distance is achieved and vehicle-vehicle conflict potential is
reduced.

2. Parking spaces need to be a minimum of 10 feet wide by 20 feet deep.

3. No parking will be permitted on-street due to the proposed street width; signs
shall be placed along the street to note this.

6

128



4,

The landscape easement that runs east-west along the property shall be
amended and/or replaced with a new easement to incorporate the overall
improved stormwater basin design.

Land combination is submitted for review and approval by the Township,
combining the subject site with the northern portion of 6660 West Main Street, as
shown on the submitted conceptual plans.

Oshtemo Township Fire Department

1.

The proposed monument sign is blocking the turning access into the plat. A
30/50 turning radius shall be required. The drivewey?:‘entrance shall meet the
30/50 turning radius. Site plan page 1 identified as Truck Turn Exhibit, shows two
different scales. Neither will allow for a 30/50 turnmg radius with a monument
sign in the middle for ingress or egress. -

Building sizes are needed to confirm f re ﬂow requnrements for fire hydrant
placement. o

Oshtemo Township Engineer

1.

o wnN

A RCKC driveway permit will-be requlred for the entrance with a tnp generation
study to determine if turn Ianes are requrred .

ADA parking spaces must be. constructed to ADA standards with concrete.

A concrete ADA ramp is requrred at the drlveway entrance on 9™ Street.

20-foot public trail easement must connect to the existing trail to the north.
Provide detailed calculatlons for basrn srzmg based on Kalamazoo County Drain
Commissionel equrrements »

Recommendatlons fro McKenna* '

The conceptual Plan for “The Hamptons planned unit development project has

been revrewed for complrance wrth the Oshtemo Township Ordinance and other
regulatory requirements. A positive recommendation from the Oshtemo Planning
Commission to the Township Board can be given for conceptual plan approval for the
project entitled. “The Hamptons subject to the following:

1.

2.

3.

4.

Conceptual plan approval is not a site plan approval. The conditional approval
provides general guidelines and “big picture” details.

Until such a time as the private road moratorium has either been lifted or expired,
site plan submission cannot take place.

Phase 2 & Phase 3 shall not commence until a secondary access has been
installed on the subject site.

A detailed phasing plan will be required upon site plan submission.

Chairperson Doorlag thanked Mr. Mucha for his report and recommendations

and asked if Commissioners had questions.

129



Mr. Ford confirmed with Ms. Lubbert that the plan will include interior sidewalks
and a shared use path.

Mr. Ford was concerned about what would happen with phase 2 if the Township
is unable to provide a public road.

Attorney Porter confirmed if there is no public road phase 2 cannot be done. The
conditions of approval make that clear: the developer cannot go forward with phase 2
without road access.

Mr. Longstreth spoke on behalf of the applicant, indicating phase 1 includes a
total of 48 units; phase 2 includes 12 units. The proposed senior living facility is phase
3; it will be a 55+ community. R

He indicated the road moratorium caught them off guard They had planned to
break ground this fall, but there will be a delay until the road issue is settled. He
indicated private streets would provide ﬂexublllty for on street parkmg as well as traffic
calming measures. v

Ms. Lubbert said the consultant for pnvate roads was hired recently, that there is
a 6-month moratorium on private: roads and that the consultant should finish their work
before the end of the year. o

She also said th_e plans for the overflow retentlon pond agreement are going well
between Meijer and the*fdeveIOper :

Ms. Lubbert aleo mdlcated one wrltten commumcatlon was received from
Menards regarding prex xlstlng conditions WIth regard to noise from their store and
lumberyard A copy of attached to these minutes.

It w the cc sensus of the Commlssmners that they liked the plan as submitted.

Mr. Ford made a‘motion toﬁzapprove “The Hamptons” PUD Conceptual Plan for a
Residential Planned Unit Ievelopment located at 6660 West Main Street, parcel
‘number 05- 14-130 017 on the: foIIowmg ‘conditions of approval:

1. Conceptual plan approval is not a site plan approval. The conditional approval
provides general guidelines and “big picture” details.

2. Until such a time-as the private road moratorium has either been lifted or expired,
site plan submission cannot take place.

3. Phase 2 & Phase 3 shall not commence until a secondary access has been
installed on the subject site.

4. A detailed phasing plan will be required upon site plan submission.

Chairperson Doorlag seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously.

The Chair moved to the next agenda item.

130



PUBLIC HEARING — ORDINANCE — WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITY
PROVISIONS

Consideration to repeal Article 49.80 - Communication Towers of the Township
Ordinance and adopt proposed Article 59 - Wireless Telecommunications
Facilities.

Ms. Lubbert noted that 5G, a fifth-generation technology standard for broadband
cellular networks and often linked to driverless cars, and other small cell wireless
facilities are becoming more and more popular throughout the United States. She said
federal regulations have required that municipalities allow for these types of facilities.
Currently the Township’s ordinance does not provide any guidance for small cell
wireless facilities. The general ordinance and zoning ordinance need to be updated if
the Township wants to have control over where and how these facilities are placed.

With the Planning Commission’s and o) 'nshlp Board’s approval, a contract was
entered into with McKenna Associates on: ember 5, 2021 to develop ordinance that
addresses 5G. Planning and Legal staff worked closely with McKenna.in this effort. A
survey to inform the work was created and posted in May 2022. 394 responses were
collected. Based on the information collected and State regulations, Article 59 -
Wireless Telecommunication Famlrtles and Section 238.000 — Small Cell Wireless
Communication Facilities Deployment Ordlnance were drafted Article 59 provides
private property, including but.not I|m|ted to: Mucro Wreless Facrlrtles Small Cell
Wireless Facilities,.and: Communlcatlon Towers ‘-(Wreless Facrlrty Support Structures).
Section 238.000 provrdes controls for all forms of small cell wireless telecommunication
facilities that would be placed wrthm PUb|lC and Private rights-of-ways.

Ms. Lubbert ‘noted th__~ Iannmg .C‘omm|ssmn has purview over the Zoning
Ordinance and not the General Ordinance. Section 238.000 has been provided only for
context and would be moved to the Townshrp ‘Board for consideration alongside Article
59 with the- goal of requmng any new: development to co-locate whenever possible in
order to minimize impact. i

Ms. Lubbert walked the group through proposed Article 59, answered questions
and responded to suggestlons for changes.

Chairperson Doorlag. opened the public hearing, determined no members of the
public had comments and closed the hearing.

Mr. Ford made a motion to repeal Article 49.80 — Communication Towers and
approve Article 59 — Wireless Telecommunication Facilities, as presented with one
amendment from the group related to the “Geographically Exempt Facility”, for
recommendation to the Township Board. Mr. Jefferies seconded the motion. The

motion was approved unanimously.

131



Chairperson Doorlag moved the meeting to a work session at 7:36 p.m. to
consider the next agenda item.

WORK SESSION:
a. Discussion, Solar Energy Systems Ordinance

Attorney Porter provided a draft of the Solar Energy Systems Ordinance that was
introduced at the August 10%" meeting for further discussion.

He led the group through the proposed ordinance“}aﬁiéwering questions and
making changes as per Commissioner discussion.

The consensus of Commissioners was that: 'staff sxh‘euld make the changes to the
document as discussed, and bring the updated proposed ordlnance for public hearing at
the September 19, 2023 Planning Commussron meeting.

Chairperson Doorlag moved to the nextk:agenda ISSm.

OTHER UPDATES AND BUSINESS

Ms. Lubbert announced she vould be Ieavmg the Townshrp for personal reasons
and that her last day wouId be December 22; "2023. The Plannlng Director position will
be posted soon. % 1 :

Commissioners were sorry to hear sh would be tleaving and noted all the

accomplrshments durmg;her tenure.

MF:: Ford‘lndlcated h recentlyrlearned that'the “Continuum of Care” rental
assistance program turned away all Oshtemo residents seeking rental assistance
because the Township is not a partner If the Township contributes to the organization

its resrdents could be cons:dered in: the future

Attorney Porter will do ome research to see if or how that could be done.

ADJOURNMENT

With there being no further business to consider, Chairperson Doorlag adjourned
the meeting at approximately 8:36 p.m.

Minutes prepared:
August 25, 2023

Minutes approved:
, 2023

10

132



August 7, 2023
Sent Via US Mail

Oshtemo Charter Township Planning Commission
7275 W. Main Street,

Kalamazoo, MI 49009-9334

[E] oshtemo@oshtemo.org

RE: Written Comments for Marroll LLC, Planned Unit Development for Parcel
05-14-130-017 and a portion of 6660 W Main Street

Dear Members of the Oshtemo Charter Township Planning Commission,

Menard, Inc. is in receipt of a public notice regarding the proposed Planned Unit Development
request by Marroll LLC for parcel number 05-14-130-017 and a portion of 6660 W Main Street.

Menards currently operates a retail store and lumberyard adjacent to the proposed development.
Where Menards shares in the desire for growth, prosperity, and the continued development of
Oshtemo Charter Township, the operation of the Menards property, like similar large retail
establishments, generates certain levels of noise, traffic, and light. Menards respectfully requests that
the proposal before the commission be considered with these pre-existing conditions in mind.
Menards further requests that any approval be conditioned on the acknowledgement by all parties
of the foreseeable issues that may result by being in close proximity to an existing retail store and
lumber yard.

Please include this letter as part of the official public hearing transcripts of the upcoming Oshtemo
Charter Township Planning Commission meeting. Thank you for your time and consideration.

Respectfully,

Menard, Inc.

(Al

Patrick P. Schaffér

Corporate Counsel

Menard, Inc. - Properties Division

5101 Menard Drive, Eau Claire, WI 54703

pschaff@menard-inc.com
[P] 715-876-4147

5101 MENARD DRIVE EAU CLAIRE, WI 54703-9625 PHONE (715) 876-5911 FAX (7423876-2868



MCKENNA

August 17, 2023

Charter Township of Oshtemo
7275 West Main Street
Kalamazoo, MI 49009

Subject: Conditional Rezoning Request from Split Zone R-2, Residential & C, Local Business
District to C, Local Business District

Location: 8447 Stadium Drive (Parcel ID: 05-33-403-010)

Applicant(s):  Peter Oleszczuk, Midwest V, LLC — 1435 Fuilton St. Ste C, Grand Haven, Ml 49417

Owner(s): Richard Schramm — 2011 S. 4! Street, Kalamazoo Ml 49009

Dear Charter Township of Oshtemo,

McKenna has been tasked to review the conditional rezoning application for 8447 Stadium Drive as submitted by
Peter Oleszczuk, agent of Midwest V, LLC, to conditionally rezone parcel number 05-33-403-010, from its current
split zoning of R-2, Residence, and C, Local Business District to C, Local Business District to C, Local Business
District, to facilitate the development of the vacant parcel for retail store operations. The subject site is
approximately 2.15 acres in size and is located east of S 5™ Street, near the intersection of Hathaway Road &
Stadium Drive.

While the Oshtemo Township Zoning Ordinance does not specifically outline requirements for rezonings, the
following comments are provided for consideration by the Planning Commission as it reviews the applicant's
request to conditionally rezone the subject property from R-2/C to C, which would permit a higher intensity of use
on the subject site.

The applicant proposes the following conditions in conjunction with the rezoning:

1. A&’ (six foot) board-on-board screening fence will be provided along the east property line of the
development to help buffer the current residential use.

2. Bigger footprint store (12,480 overall square feet) than historically built to allow for expanded options for
food and coolers. The property will be developed as a Market Dollar General.

3. Required parking counts will be met with 2 combination of 34 installed spaces and the remainder of
spaces having dedicated banked parking areas. These areas will be earmarked for parking and installed
as grass.

4. Setbacks are intended to be met based on the required sections of the zoning ordinance.

McKenna notes that the conditions submitted indicate that the applicant is committing to complying with several
minimum Zoning requirements that will be reviewed and approved during the site plan review and approval
process. We further note that acceptance of these conditions during the conditional rezoning process does not
limit the review to higher standards during the site plan review. For instance, the planning commission may
determine that a banked parking request is insufficient given the proposed site uses and access issues and
require all spaces to be conducted during the site plan review. Additionally, please note that the limitation of site
uses to a Market Dollar General, may require rezoning in the future, should this development not come to fruition.

KALAMAZOO

151 South Rose Street 0 2693824443

Suite 920 F 248.596.0930 .. .
Kalamazoo, Michigan 49007  MCKA.COM Communities for real life.

134



-u.!

REVIEW COMMENTS

1. Existing Conditions. The site is an estimated 2.15 acres, located along the southern portion of Stadium
Drive, just east of S. 5" Street. The subject parcel is currently split-zoned, with the northern portion being
zoned C, Local Business, and the southern zoned R-2, Residence. The current/future land use and existing
zoning classifications of the site and surrounding parcels are summarized in the table and figures below:
Table 1: Zoning and

Exi lPIanneq V]Jse_of Site and Area:‘ ‘

= . | Futur

Site Vacant/Undeveloped Neighborhood Commercial
North Industrial Rural Residential I-1
West Commercial Neighborhood Commercial C
South Vacant/Undeveloped Rural Residential R-2
East Residential Low Density Residential C, R-2

8447 Stadium Drive (Parcel 05-33-403-010

Oshtemo Township — 8447 Stadium Drive, Conditional Rezoning Request 2

135



Figure 3: Future Land Use Map of Area Classihcations:
Rural Residential

Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential
High Density Residential
Manufactured Residential

Village Core

Neighborhood Commercial

Local Commercial

General Commercial

Research Office

General Industrial

Public/Government

LE N
AG - AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT
RR - RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT
R1 - RESIDENCE DISTRICT
R2 - RESIDENCE DISTRICT
R3 - RESIDENCE DISTRICT
R4 - RESIDENCE DISTRICT
RS - RESIDENCE DISTRICT
YC-VILLAGE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT
C-R - LOCAL BUSINESS DISTRICT RESTRICTED
C - LOCAL BUSINESS DISTRICT
BRP - BUSINESS AND RESEARCH PARK DISTIRCT ¥
I-R - INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT RESTRICTED
1-1- INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT MANUFACTURING & SERVICE
12+ INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT MANUFACTURING & SERVICE
13- INDUSTRIAL DISTRIGT SPECIAL
CONDITIONAL {See Notes On Map)
STH STREET AND WEST MAIN STREET OVERLAY ZONE
{ HISTORICAL OVERLAY ZONE
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL OVERLAY ZONE
'} VILLAGE FORM BASED CODE OVERLAY ZONE

W

F
|
I

B B R e R ———

Approximate subject site location: ﬁf\{—

2. Master Plan. The Future Land Use designation of this area along and adjacent to Stadium Drive, as
described in the Oshtemo Township Master Plan Update 2017, is classified as rural residential with a small
area devoted to neighborhood commercial. Neighborhood commercial has a development intensity of “low”
(per the 2017 Master Plan). Further, the 2017 Master Plan classifies the neighborhood commercial use as

follows:

Oshtemo Township — 8447 Stadium Drive, Conditional Rezoning Request



S

)

In support of the Rural Character Preservation Strategy, neighborhood commercial areas will be in
strategic locations, within the western portion of the Township. Low-intensity commercial and retail
establishments are permitted that would accommodate a planned mixture of farm service business and
other locally oriented service establishments. The intent is to provide services, like small convenience
stores, that will support and be compatible with nearby residential development.

Per the response letter dated July 19, 2023, the applicant indicates the proposed retail operations to be that
of a Market Dollar General. Dollar General, a 20+ Billion-dollar Fortune 119 Company, with over 140,000
employees nationally, is more in line with regional retail, and not that of a low-intensity commercial operation.

However, we note that other high-intensity commercial uses are currently permitted in the C, Local Business
District: restaurants, hospitals, hotels & motels, indoor theaters, etc. Additionally, the subject site currently
permits these higher-intensity commercial uses due to the C, Local Business zoned classification along the
northern portion of the parcel.

Therefore, we find that the proposed conditional rezoning does not align with the intent of the master plan as
it relates to the rural character preservation strategy but acknowledges that the existing zoning on the subject
site would permit a higher-intensity commercial use even if the subject site was not rezoned.

3. Zoning. The subject site is currently split-zoned, with the northern portion being zoned C, Local Business,
and the southern portion being zoned R-2, Residence.

Typical permitted uses in the R-2 district include but are not limited to one-family dwellings, essential services,
foster family homes, libraries, religious institutions, and accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to
the foregoing. Article 7 of the Oshtemo Township Zoning Ordinance further details permitted and special land
uses for the R-2 Residential District.

Typical permitted uses in the C, Local Business District include but are not limited to financial institutions,
offices, hotels & motels, restaurants, essential services, religious institutions, and planned shopping center
developments. Article 18 of the Oshtemo Township Zoning Ordinance further details permitted and special
land uses for the C, Local Business District.

The use of the subject site for a retail establishment, such as retail sale of merchandise, would be consistent
with the C, Local Business zoning classification.

4. Consistency with General Land Use Patterns. The subject site is currently undeveloped (vacant) and
surrounded by low-intensity land uses, such as rural residential dwelling units and small-scale commercial
establishments. The establishment of a neighborhood commercial enterprise would be consistent with the
2017 Future Land Use designation for this area.

The applicant proposes to construct a 12,480-square-foot retail establishment (Dollar General). An adjacent
convenience-style store is an estimated 2,240 square feet. A winery establishment to the north of the subject
property is an estimated 5,520 square feet. While the applicant proposes to rezone the residential portion of
the subject site to C, Local Business, the future intended use of a retail establishment at 12,480 square feet is
not consistent with the general land use patterns of the immediate area.

Oshtemo Township - 8447 Stadium Drive, Conditional Rezoning Request 4

137



5. Utilities & Infrastructure. The Oshtemo Township online interactive map indicates existing water and sewer
mains located adjacent to the subject property, along Stadium Drive. It is anticipated that the future
development of the subject property, conditioned on the rezoning approval, would be adequately serviced by
existing utilities and infrastructure based on available sewer and water utilities.

Further review of the utilities and infrastructure needs will be conducted once a formal site plan submission
has been received by the Township.

6. Reasonable Use Under Current Zoning Classification. The subject site is currently split-zoned, with C,
Local Business being along the northern portion of the site, and R-2, Residence along the southern. A retail
operation would be limited to the northern portion of the subject site. Further, residential use would be
limited to the southern area of the subject property due to the zoning district boundaries. We find that
reasonable use under the current zoning ordinance is still achievable, even with the split zoning. However,
it is noted that some development restrictions may be present due to the split zoning: the entire property
could not be used for retail for example.

7. Effects on Surrounding Properties. The applicant has indicated that the subject site would be
redeveloped into a retail use — a 12,480 square foot “Dollar General”. The subject site is currently
vacant/undeveloped: any existing permitted use within the C, Local Business District would have an impact
on the surrounding area. However, the 2017 Oshtemo Township Master Plan determined that such an
impact would be minimal due to the area in question being planned for neighborhood commercial, subject
to the proposed use complying with the neighborhood commercial intended uses.

Our team notes that the impacts on the surrounding properties may be more significant with the proposed
12,480 square-foot building than what is currently experienced by the convenience store located to the
west, and the winery located to the north.

8. Conditional Rezoning (Section 66). The Township Zoning Ordinance provides general guidance for
conditional rezonings, per Article 66. Section 66.20.F. states:

Any use or development proposed as part of an offer of conditions that would require Site Plan
approval under the terms of this Ordinance may only be commenced if Site Plan approval for such use
or development is ultimately granted in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance.

As such, the applicant is advised that site plan approval would be required should the conditional rezoning be
approved. McKenna finds that the applicant generally meets the intent of Section 66 of the Oshtemo
Township Zoning Ordinance.

ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS

The following comments are provided to the applicant for the purpose of general information. These comments
are not directly related to the conditional rezoning request, however, should be considered in partnership with any
future development potential of the subject site.

Oshtemo Township — 8447 Stadium Drive, Conditional Rezoning Request 5

138



. \ )
=y
7

1. Yucca Drive — the name of the roadway for Lot 3, Block 4 of the Frie and Gibbs Plat — is a private
roadway. Township records indicate that the plat was amended in Circuit Court on November 14, 1990, to
turn this drive from public to private and establish public utility easements and private access to the lots.

RECOMMENDATION

Based on the information provided by the applicant, and the subsequent review conducted within this
memorandum, we find that the proposed conditional rezoning does not generally align with the Oshtemo
Township Master Plan as it pertains to neighborhood commercial uses. Therefore, and based on the following
findings of fact, a recommendation to deny the conditional rezoning request is given.

1. The property can be reasonably used under its current split zoning of C, Local Business and R-2,
Residence. A smaller commercial operation could be permitted to operate on the northern portion of the
parcel, subject to compliance with the Township's Zoning Ordinance.

2. The proposed use — 12,480 square foot store — is not supported by the Oshtemo Township Master Plan.

3. A change of the existing zoning boundaries would not be compatible with the existing land uses within the
immediate area.

4. Adequate sites across the Township, which are zoned C, Local Business, are available, which would not
require a conditional a rezoning.

5. There has been no apparent changes in conditions in the area that would support an increase in

expanding the C, Local Business District.

The proposed rezoning would impact the natural characteristics of the area.

The proposed rezoning has not identified an immediate need for an increase in the C, Local Business

District designation within this area of the Township.

~No

Conditions of the rezoning supplied by the applicant:

1. A 6’ (six foot) board-on-board screening fence will be provided along the east property line of the
development to help buffer the current residential use.

2. Bigger footprint store (12,480 overall square feet) than historically built to allow for expanded options
for food and coolers. The property will be developed as a Market Dollar General.

3. Required parking counts will be met with a combination of 34 installed spaces and the remainder of
spaces having dedicated banked parking areas. These areas will be earmarked for parking and
installed as grass.

4. Setbacks are intended to be met based on the required sections of the zoning ordinance.

Respectfully submitted,

MCKENNA

Kyle Mucha, AICP Paul Lippens, AICP, NCI

Senior Planner Vice President

Oshtemo Township — 8447 Stadium Drive, Conditional Rezoning Request 6

139



-
- ? 7275 W. Main Street, Kalamazoo, Michigan 49009-9334
S ht@ ‘A hle; Phone: 269-375-4260  Fax: 269-375-7180
“_ CHARTER TOWNSHIP
//71 F\§\ . Established 1839 PLEASE PRINT

PROJECT NAME & ADDRESS ~ Octar Genoral 6147 Staum Orivo Kelomozoo, W 49009

PLANNING & ZONING APPLICATION

Applicant Name: PETER OLESZCZUK

Company: MOWEST V. LG (tturs owner)

Address: 1435 FULTON ST, SUITE C, 2ND FLOOR

GRAND HAVEN, M1 48417

E-mail; pete@wettwind.buitd

Telephone: (11342200 Fax: (6161842-1850

Interest in Property: Development of property

OWNER*:

Name: RICHARD & CHARLOTTE SCHRAMM (saiters)

Address: M samst Fee Amount
KALAMAZOO, M1 45009 - Escrow Amount

E-mail:

Phone & Fax:

NATURE OF THE REQUEST: (Please check the appropriate item(s))

Pre-Application Review Accessory Building Review — 1083

____Site Plan Review — 1088 X Rezoning - 1091
_____Administrative Site Plan Review —1086 ____ Subdivision Plat Review — 1089
__ Special Exception Use — 1085 ____Interpretation — 1082
____Zoning Variance - 1092 Other:

Site Condominium — 084

BRIEFLY DESCRIBE YOUR REQUEST (Use Attachments if Necessary):

CONDITIONALLY REZONE ENTIRE PARCEL TO CLOCAL BUSINESS DISTRICT FROM THE CURRENT SPLT ZONING OF C- LOCAL BUSINESS DISTRICT / R.2 RESIDENECE DISTRICT

] Rev. 9/14/22

140

g

ERPIOL e N L L

TR



LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY (Use Attachments if Necessary):
AMENDED PLAT OF LOT 3 BLK 4 FRIE & GIBBS LOT 3 * **4-92 1992 SPLIT FROM 33-402-331

PARCEL NUMBER: 3905. 33-403-010

ADDRESS OF PROPERTY: 8447 STADIUM DRIVE

PRESENT USE OF THE PROPERTY: VACANT

PRESENT ZONING: SPLIT ZONED C/R2 SIZE OF PROPERTY: 2.15AC

NAME(S) & ADDRESS(ES) OF ALL OTHER PERSONS, CORPORATIONS, OR FIRMS HAVING
A LEGAL OR EQUITABLE INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY:

Name(s) Address(es)
MIDWEST V, LLC (future owner) 1435 FULTON ST SUITE C GRAND HAVEN, M149417

SIGNATURES

I (we) the undersigned certify that the information contained on this application form and the
required documents attached hereto are to the best of my (our) knowledge true and accurate.

I (we) acknowledge that we have received the Township's Disclaimer Regarding Sewer and Water
Infrastructure. By submitting this Planning & Zoning Application, 1 (we) grant permission for
Oshtemo Township officials and agents to enter the subject property of the application as part of
completing the reviews necessary to process the application.

Owner’s Signatuge (*If different from Applicant) Date

b/23/23

Date

pplicant’s Signature

Copies to:
 Planning - 1
. Applicamt - |
Clerk - 1
ty Clerk - | !
mumey -1 i L2
Assessor - 1

Nt oy -Cogaal | PLEASE ATTACH ALL REQUIRED DOCUMENTS

\Oshtzmo-SBS\Users\Linda\LIND APLznaing\FORMS

Rev.9/14/22

141



July 19, 2023

Planning Commission and Township Board

Oshtemo Charter Township
7275 W. Main Street
Kalamazoo, MI 49009

Subject: Conditional Rezone Request — 8447 Stadium Drive, Lot 3 of Frie & Gibbs Plat
To Whom it May Concern:

On behalf of Midwest V, LLC (Developer) and Richard Schram (Seller), please consider our request for
the rezoning of the property located at 8447 Stadium Drive.

The proposed rezone will allow for a currently split zoned commercial / residential property to be
conditionally rezoned to C - Local Business District. This will allow for the property to be developed as
intended in the Township’s Master Plan. The Master Plan for this parcel is to be a Neighborhood
Commercial use. This is a lower intensity commercial / retail establishment to serve the more rural
areas of the Township. The Master Plan notes the intent is to provide services, like a small

convenience store, that will support the nearby residential uses. The property in question is located
on Stadium Drive that has a mix of commercial and residential uses along this corridor and directly
adjacent to the proposed site. The proposed rezone will allow for the development of a retail store
that will serve the immediate area and provide employment opportunities. The proposed
development will be a Dollar General store.

We are proposing several conditions under this rezone request. The conditions include the following:

1. The property in question will be developed as a Market Dollar General store. The Market
prototype is a new floorplan that has a larger amount of food options and coolers.

2. A6’ board on board wood screening fence will be installed along the East property line of the
development to help buffer the current residential use directly East of the site. Keep in mind
the property directly East along the Northern portion of the site is zoned commercial and
remains master planned for a commercial use.

3. Required parking counts based on the size of the building will be met through a combination
of installed surface parking and banked parking spaces. 34 parking spaces are proposed to be
installed, with the remaining balance being banked spaces. This allows for more green area
versus an excessive amount of pavement.

5725 Venture Park Drive = Suite A ® Kalamazoo, MI 49009 = Phone: 269.250.5991 = www.ARengineeringLLC.com

142



4. The proposed development will be compliant with required setbacks as detailed in the
zoning ordinance.

When considering adjacent uses, the property directly West is a commercial use, so the proposed
development will have little to no impact. The properties directly South will be owned by the same
entity making this rezone request and therefore will have no impact on the properties directly South.
The property to the East is split zoned with commercial along the frontage of Stadium Drive and
residential to the rear of the property. The property currently is a residential use. The property to
the East currently has around 40 feet of natural vegetation / trees that exist. The proposed project
has required setbacks that must be maintained, so this will allow for vegetation / trees to remain
along the property. Also, a 6’ tall screening fence will be installed as part of the project. The intent is
to work with the Twp Planning team to provide necessary supplemental plantings to meet the buffer
requirements adjacent to residential use. With providing natural buffers and a 6’ tall screening fence,
impacts on the property to the East will be minimal. The property to the North is Industrial zoned
with commercial use and therefore impacts on this property will have little to no impact. Master
Plan for the property to the North is same master plan use as the subject property, Neighborhood
Commercial.

The design team and development team will work with Township staff to review how best to handle
public infrastructure / utilities during the site plan review stage of the project. The design team and
development team will also work through other agency permit approvals as required with the
proposed development.

Thank you for your consideration in our request and we look forward to working with the township
on this project. Please consider our request at the upcoming August Planning Commission meeting.

Sincerely,

Whitney Pizzala
Project Manager | Civil Engineer

whitney@arengineeringlic.com
269-830-1311

5725 Venture Park Drive ® Suite A » Kalamazoo, MI 49008 * Phone: 269.250.5991 * www.ARengineeringLLC.com

143



AUTHORIZATION LETTER
Owner: Richard A. and Charlotte A. Schramm

Property: 8447 Stadium Drive & 4177/4243/4259 Yucca Pt.. Kalamazoo, Ml 49009
(Tax Parcel Numbers 05-33-403-010, 05-33-403-020, 05-33-403-030, & 05-33-403-040)

Datc: }.':)/IQ/ 20255 .

To Whom it May Concern:

Midwest V. LLC (“Buyer"), of 1435 Fulton St., 2™ Floor, Grand Haven, MI 49417, is
hereby authorized to act on our behalf in connection with the items listed below as it

pertains to the development of our above-referenced Property pursuant to a Real Estate
Purchase Agreement.

Due diligence -- soil testing, geo-technical drilling, surveying, engineering. wetlands and
environmental studies (Phase I, Phase [l and/or BEA), asbestos and other physical
inspections.

Permitting - Applications and filings with applicable municipalities for fand division, lot
linc adjustment, and all entitlements, including. but not limited 10, site plan approval,
rezoning, variances. building permits, lot combinations/land divisions and any required
construction permits.

Unless otherwise agreed in the Real Estate Purchase Agreement. any and all of the
foregoing work shall be completed by Buyer at its sole cost and expensc. Buyer will return
theprqperty to subslantially the same condition prior to their work.

)

tive er or Autfiorized Representaltive

Buyer Contact Information:
Atn: Peter Oleszezuk

1435 Fulion St.. 2™ Floor
Grand Haven. MI 49417
Phone: 616-842-2030 ext. 2106
Fax: 616-842-1950

144



private drive to be

included within C-Local
] Business District
Zoning Classification

==Blue bounded line is
| ithe proposed limits of £
new C-Local Business &
& District zoning
~ classification

Current split zoning line.
North is zoned C - Local
Business District and
South is zoned R2-
Residence District

R2 to be Rezoned to C to match
north portion of Property

i (D))

N\
A o

REZONING EXHIBIT
J

145




8/17/23, 2:16 PM Document Viewer | Compilation of General and Zoning Ordinances

ARTICLE 7

7 — R-2: RESIDENCE DISTRICT

Contents:

7.10 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

7.20 PERMITTED USES

7.30 PERMITTED USES WITH CONDITIONS
7.40 SPECIAL USES

(Amended by ord. no. 632; adopted February 10"‘, 2021, effective February 16th, 2021. Amended by ord.no. 647;
adopted January 24, 2023.)

7.10 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

This district classification is designed as a suburban residential district to permit a greater density of residential
development than is provided in the rural districts of the Township, together with other residentially related facilities and
activities which would serve the inhabitants of the area.

7.20 PERMITTED USES
A. Any permitted use in the "R-1" Residence District.

8. Private two-family dwellings.

C. Libraries.

D. Fire stations.

E. Cemeteries, excluding crematories.

F. Reserved.

G. Houses of worship.

H. Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the foregoing.
I. Family day care home.

J. Adult Foster Care Facility.

K. Foster Family Home.

L. Qualified Residential Treatment Programs (QRTP)

7.30 PERMITTED USES WITH CONDITIONS

B. Home occupations.

7.40 SPECIAL USES

A. Golf courses, parks, and outdoor recreational areas.

D. Group Day Care Home.

E. Temporary outdoor events (lasting more than one day).
F. Communication towers.

G. Earth removal, quarrying, gravel processing, mining, related mineral extraction businesses, and landfill gas recovery
processing facilities.

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspxisecid-1958 1/2

146



8/17123, 2:16 PM Document Viewer | Compilation of General and Zoning Ordinances

L d

https://online.encodeplus.comiregs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspxisecid-1958

147

22



8/17/123, 2:17 PM Document Viewer | Compilation of General and Zoning Ordinances

ARTICLE 18

18 — C: LOCAL BUSINESS DISTRICT

Contents:

18.10 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

18.20 PERMITTED USES

18.30 PERMITTED USES WITH CONDITIONS
18.40 SPECIAL USES

(Amended by ord. no. 628; adopted September 22“d, 2020; effective October 1%, 2020. Amended by ord. no. 632;
adopted February 10th, 2021, effective February 16th, 2021.)

18.10 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

This district is designed to permit retail sales and commercial service uses.

18.20 PERMITTED USES

A. Any business primarily for the retail sale of merchandise or services in which any manufacturing, assembling or
fabricating is merely incidental to and an unsubstantial part of said business.

B. Banks, credit unions, savings and loan offices and similar financial institutions.
C. Offices. |

D. Laundromats and dry-cleaning establishments, excluding those establishments providing cleaning services for other

laundromat and dry-cleaning establishments.
E. Hotels, motels.
F. Restaurants.
G. Hospitals and medical clinics.

H. Essential services.

I. Indoor theatres.
J. Passenger bus terminals, excluding facilities for the overnight storage of buses.

L. Pet shops.
M. Houses of worship.

N. Planned shopping center developments.
0. Commercial Center.

P. Proprietary schools and colleges.

18.30 PERMITTED USES WITH CONDITIONS

A. Veterinary clinics.

18.40 SPECIAL USES

A. Assembly and Convention Halls.
B. Child Care Centers and Adult Care Centers.
C. Funeral homes.

D. Private clubs.

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspxi#secid-1984 148 1/2



8/17/23, 2:17 PM Document Viewer | Compilation of General and Zoning Ordinances

F. Nursing, convalescent, handicapped, or senior citizens' homes.
G. Drive-in service window or drive-through services for businesses.
H. Retail lumber yards.

farm machinery and other equipment sales lots; boat sales lots; and other businesses involving substantial outdoor
sales or activities connected with retail sales.

J. Crematories.

K. Skating rinks, bowling alleys, indoor recreational facilities and health clubs.

M. Drive-in theatres.
N. Buildings and regulator stations for essential services.
0. Temporary outdoor events (lasting more than one day).

U. Earth removal, quarrying, gravel processing, mining, related mineral extraction businesses, and landfill gas recovery
processing facilities.

V. Private streets.

W. Wind energy conversion systems.

r

https:/fonline.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/dac-viewer.aspx#secid-1984 149 2/2



Memorandum

e e Oshtemo

CHARTER TOWNSHIP

To: \ Township Board
From: d\f\ James Porter — Legal Department
Subject: Small Cell Wireless Communication Facilities Deployment 5g Ordinance

Objectives

To accept for First Reading the Small Cell Wireless Communication Facilities Deployment Sg Ordinance No. 657,
Article 239, to address Sg in the Public Right of Way and adding Article 239 to the Township Ordinances and set the
Small Cell Wireless Communication Facilities Deployment Sg Ordinance for Second Reading.

Recommended Motion

I make the motion to accept for First Reading the Small Cell Wireless Communication Facilities Deployment Sg
Ordinance, adding Ordinance No. 657, Article 239, to the Township General Ordinance and set for Second Reading for
September 26, 2023.

Background

Attached herewith is Ordinance No. 657, Article 239, to address 5g on private property.

Information Provided

| have attached a copy of the Small Cell Wireless Communication Facilities Deployment 5g Ordinance.

7275 W. Main Street, Kalamazoo, MI 49009, (269) 216-5220, Fax (269) 375-7180, www .oshtemo.ore

150



OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP ORDINANCE NO.657
ADOPTED:
EFFECTIVE:
AN ORDINANCE to provide for the regulation of small cell wireless infrastructure by Oshtemo
Charter Township, referred to herein alternatively as the "Authority", of the activities of wireless

infrastructure providers and Wireless Services providers. regardmg the siting of certain wireless
facilities.

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF OSHTEMO
KALAMAZOO COUNTY MICHIGAN

SMALL CELL WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES DEPLOYMENT ORDINANCE
COMP]LED SECTION 239

(A) Title and Purpose

(1) This ordlnance shall _be known and - may be cited as the Small Cell Wireless
Communication Faculmes Deployment Ordinance.

(B) Definitions: As used in this ordinance:.

means  'communications equipment that transmits or receives

(1) "Antenna’ |
netic radio. frequency signals used in the provision of Wireless Services.

(2) "Applicant" fﬁéans a Wireless Provider or wireless infrastructure provider that submits
an application described in this ordinance.

(3) "Authority", unless the context implies otherwise, means Oshtemo Charter Township,

to the extent authorized by law to make legislative, quasi-judicial, or administrative
decisions concerning an application described in this ordinance.

151



(4)

(5)

(6)
@

(8)

(9)

(10) “Small Cells Act” means the small W|re ess facilit

“Co-Locate" means to install, mount, maintain, modify, operate, or replace wireless
facilities on or adjacent to a Wireless Support Structure or Utility Pole. "Collocation"”
has a corresponding meaning.

“Fee" means an Authority one-time per small cell site charge for application
processing.

"Rate" means an Authority annual charge per site.
"Make-Ready Work" means work necessary to enable an Authority pole or Utility Pole

to support collocation, which may include modifi catlon or replacement of Utility Poles
or modification of lines. _ .

“Micro Wireless Facility" means a Small Ceilé\l\ﬁre]ees Facility that is not more than
24 inches in length, 15 inches in width, and 12 inches.in height and that does not have
an exterior ANTENNA more than 11 lnches in length.- -

"Right of Way" or "ROW" means the area on, below, or above a public or private
roadway, highway, street, alley, bndge sidewalk, or utility easement dedicated for
compatible uses. Right of Way does not: mclude any of the followmg

(a) A limited access hlghway.‘

(b) Land owned or controlled by ar: ilroad as de_f ined in section 109 of the railroad
code of 1993 1993 PA 354 MC »462 109 B

S ! ;.act 2018 PA 365, MCL 460.1301,
et seq, as the same may be amended from time to time.

(b) All other wureless equipment associated with the facility is cumulatively not more
~ than 25 cubic feet in volume. Except -The following types of associated ancillary
\equment are not included in the calculation of equipment volume: electric
meters, concealment elements, telecommunications demarcation boxes,
groundmg equipment, power transfer switches, cut-off switches, and vertical
cable runs for the connection of power and other services.

(12) "Structure” means anything constructed, assembled or erected, the use of which

requires location on the ground or attachment to something having location on or in
the ground; this term shall include fences which are more than 50 percent solid, tanks,
towers, dish antennae, advertising devices, bins, tents, wagons, trailers, dining cars,
camp cars or similar structures on wheels or other support used for business or living
purposes.

152



(13) "Utility Pole" means a pole or similar Structure that is or may be used to support small
cell wireless facilities. Utility Pole does not include a sign pole less than 15 Feet in
height above ground.

(14) “Wireless Facility" means wireless equipment, including, radio transceivers,
Antennas, coaxial or fiber-optic cable, regular and backup power supplies, and
comparable equipment, regardless of technological configuration. Wireless Facility
does not include coaxial or fiber-optic cable between Utility Poles or Wireless Support
Structures.

(15) “Wireless Provider” is a regulated provider of telecommunications services and a
"wireless infrastructure provider" is an installer of wireless equipment at small cell
sites and, both terms are interchangeable terms for purposes of this ordinance.

(16) "Wireless Services" means any servrces provrdedusrng licensed or unlicensed
spectrum, including the use of Wi- Fi,.whe I catlon or mobile.

(17) "Wireless Support Structure” means:a freestanding Structure designed to support or
capable of supporting small cell wrreless facilities. Wireless Suppor‘t Structure does
not include a Utility Pole.

(18) "Wireline Backhaul Facili eans a facrlrty used to transport services by wire or fiber-
optic cable from a Wreless iFacrllty to a network

(C) Scope of Authorlty

tﬁe.\Srﬂ'a'llz«,(;ell"s Act, the Authority shall not
ation of small cell wireless facilities.

(1) Except as prowded
prohibit, regulate or

(2) The approval of a Small CeII Wireless Facility under this ordinance authorizes only
‘the collocatron ofa Small Cell Wireless Facility and does not authorize either of the
~ following:™

e a) The provrsron of any services.

(b) The mstallatlon placement modification, maintenance, or operation of a wireline
|n the ROW. "7;

(3) Any work |n the Right-of-Way shall also require the approval of the Road Commission
of Kalamazoo:County or Michigan Department of Transportation, as applicable.

(D) Small Cell ROW Access, Permitted Use, Height, Underground, Residential, Districts
(1) The Authority shall not enter into an exclusive arrangement with any person for use
of the ROW for the construction, operation, or maintenance of Utility Poles or the
collocation of small cell wireless facilities.

(2) The Authority shall not charge a Wireless Provider an annual Rate more than the
amount set by the Small Cells Act or other applicable State Law.

153



(3)

(4)

All greater Rates and Fees in current agreements shall be modified within 90 days of
application receipt, so as not to exceed the Fees provided here, except for new small
cell dedicated Utility Poles installed and operational in the ROW before the effective
date of this ordinance or related agreements, which shall remain in effect for the
duration of the ordinance or agreement.

The following activities are permitted uses and do not require zoning approval of any
kind. In all other cases, the siting of Small Cell Wireless Facility shall require approval
as described in the Oshtemo Township Zoning Ordinance.

(a) The construction of a Small Cell Wireless Facility or Micro Wireless Facility within
a Right-of-Way on an existing Structure or new Wireless Support Structure under
40 feet in height within a Right-of-Way.

(b) The replacement of a Small Cell Wireless Fa'eility with a Small Cell Wireless
Facility that is not larger or heawer in compliance wuth applicable codes.

(c) Routine maintenance of a S
Support Structure.

l Cell Wireless Facmty, utility pole, or Wireless

(d) Co-Location of a Small Cell Wireless: Facmty wuth a prevnously approved Small
Cell Wireless Facility.

(e) The installation, placement‘, fnéintenance, operation, or replacement of a Micro
Wireless Facility that is suspended on existing cables strung between utility poles
or Wreless Support Structures in compllance with applicable codes.

: E VSmaII Cell Wireless Facility or Micro Wireless
Facnllty Iocated upon a campus of an institution of higher education.

ltlng Requnrements '"The locatlon of a new Utility Pole or Wireless Support

‘Structure. requmng approval under this- Ordinance must meet all of the following
requirements:

E f(a)‘_ Must be wuthm three feet of the outside edge of the Right-of-Way.

(b)‘?:-Must be on the north or west side of the roadway.

(c) Must: meet all_ applicable standards for Clear Corner Vision in the Oshtemo
Townshlp Zonlng Ordinance.

(d) Must not interfere with the Township's ability to construct non-motorized trails in
the network planned in the Oshtemo Township Non-Motorized Plan.

(e) The proposed Utility Pole or Wireless Support Structure is at least 30 feet from

another Utility Pole or Wireless Support Structure unless needed to function
reasonably as documented by a qualified and licensed professional engineer.

154



(6)

(7)

(8)

Alternate Siting: Upon receipt of an application to place a new Utility Pole or Wireless
Support Structure requiring approval under this Ordinance, in order to ensure that the
requirements of Subsection E.2.d are met, the Authority may propose and the
Applicant shall use an alternate location within the ROW or on property or Structures
owned or controlled by a public utility/authority within 75 Feet of the Applicant's
proposed location if reasonably achievable. The Authority may require an alternate
siting even if the requirements of Sections D.5 are otherwise met.

Justification. A proposed wireless facility shall not be established unless the
communications equipment/antenna(s) planned for the proposed location cannot be
accommodated on an existing structure within the .area ofthe proposed Wireless
Facility Support Structure due to one of the foIIowin'g'reasonS'

(a) The planned equipment would exceed the structural capacity of the existing or
approved Wireless Facility Support. Structure : as documented by a qualified and
licensed engineer, and the exustlng or approved Wireless Facility Support
Structure cannot be reinforced, ‘modified or replaced to accommodate the
planned or equivalent equment at a reasonable cost.

(b) The planned equipment would cause interference matenally impacting the
usability of other existing equipment in the vicinity as documented by a qualified
and licensed professnonalvenglneerand the interference cannot be prevented at
a reasonable cost. R

(c) Existing Wireless Facnllty ‘Support tructure w1th|n the search radius cannot
accommodate ‘the planned equipment at a height necessary to function
reasonably as documented by a ,quallf ed and Ilcensed professional engineer.

(d) Other xrﬁrﬁf\,foresee“

n.! make it mfeasnble to locate the planned
M,.,,:Atelecommunlcatlo

/qmpment u onan existing structure.

':,(e) If, dunng an Admlmstratlve Approval under this Article, an application is deemed

to fail one or more of these criteria, the applicant shall have the option to apply

for a Spemal Land“Use approval from the Planning Commission, which shall

= have the authorlty to approve the application, despite the lack of compliance with

- ““one or more of the sections above. The Planning Commission shall be under no
obligation to approve any Special Land Use application that it does not deem to
meet the criteria of this Ordinance.

Undergrounding:. A Wireless Provider shall comply with reasonable and
nondiscriminatory requirements (including concealment measures) that do not
prohibit communications service providers from installing Structures on or above
ground in the ROW in an area designated solely for underground or buried cable and
utility facilities, if:

(a) The Authority has required all cable and utility facilities, to place all their facilities
underground and,

(b) A Wireless Provider may apply for a waiver of the undergrounding requirements
under Utility Control Ordinance Section 230.004.B.

155



(9) Historic, Downtown and Residential Districts: A Wireless Provider shall comply
with written, objective requirements for reasonable, technically feasible,
nondiscriminatory, and technologically neutral designs or concealment measures in
a Historic District, downtown district, or residential zoning district. Such requirement
shall not have the effect of prohibiting any Wireless Provider technology. Any such
design or concealment measures are not included in size restrictions in the definition
of small Wireless Provider in section 5.

(10) All Wireless Providers shall repair all damage to the ROW caused by the activities of
the Wireless Provider while occupying, constructing, installing, mounting, maintaining,
modifying, operating, or replacmg small cell wireless facilities, Utility Poles, or
Wireless Support Structure in the ROW and, to return the ROW to its original
condition. Following 60 days' written notice, the Authorlty or the owner of the ROW
may make those repairs and charge the er less Prov:der the cost of the repairs.

ppllcatlon' Information, Shot Clocks,
nial, Resubmittal, Batch Applications,
“Facility Exemption, Alternate Siting,

(E) Provider and Authority Responsibiliti
Tollings, Deemed Approved, Basi
Application Fees, Micro Wireless
Decommissioning Sites.

(1) This section applies to activities of a Wreless Prov:der within a Public or Private Right-
of-Way.

(2) For activities described in: Sectlon -D.4 that do not require zoning approval, the
provider/Applicant shall seek-an Authonty ROW access permit to Co-Locate a Small
Cell Wireless Facmty or install,”'modify or:replace a Utility Pole or other Wireless
Support -Structure on ‘which a Small:Cell Wireless Facility will be Co-Located as
required of all ROW users. The prbcessmg of an application for such a permit is
subject to all: of the followmg

hority are not permitted in lieu of Rates and Fees
arties voluntarily agree in furtherance of the

“(a)” Inind contnbutlons to- the
described above..(unless’
interests of both.). *.

vg"i(b) The Wireless - Provuder shall provide all the information and documentation
- ‘required by the: Authorlty ‘o enable the Authority to make an informed decision
wuth regard to |ts crlterla for authorizing ROW access including the following:

(i) A_"certlflcate of compliance with FCC rules related to radio frequency
emi_ssio‘ns from a Small Cell Wireless Facility,

(ii) Proof of notification to every other affected entity, including the owner of
the right-of-way, and all necessary permits, permit applications, or
easements to ensure all necessary permissions for the proposed activity
are obtained.

(iii) An attestation that the small cell wireless facilities will be operational for
use by a Wireless Services provider within 1 year after the permit issuance
date. Failure to abide by this term shall result in termination of any permit
issued in reliance on such attestation.

156



(iv) Design details as necessary to demonstrate compliance with this
Ordinance and with all other applicable Township regulations.

(c) Timeline for Approval. The Township will comply with all State and Federal
requirements for approval timelines. In the event of changes to Federal or State
law, this section shall be void and the laws in place at the time of application
shall be followed.

i. For new facilities, the Township shall request all required
information within 14 business days of the application being filed.
The Township shall notify the applicant if the application is deemed
incomplete within 25 days of the application being filed. The
Township shall issue a decision.on' the application within 90 days
of the application being deeme’d?complete by the Township.

ii. For Modifications and. Co-Locatlons the Township shall request all
required information -within 14 business days of the application

being filed. The Township shall issue an’ approval or denial within
60 days of the appllcatlon being deemed complete by the Township.

iii. Once the Townshlp as notifi ed an appllcant that an application is
incomplete, if the applicant does not provide any new information
for 180-days, the application will be deemed to have been
wnthdrawn Any new mformatlon submitted after 180 days shall be

(d)

II Wireless Facullty or installation, modification,
at meets the helght requlrements in Section
(i) ':Materlally mterfere wnth the safe operation of traffic control equipment.

(ii) Materlally mterfere with snght lines or clear zones for transportation or
pedestnans :

"‘”‘z;«'(m) Materlally | terfere with compliance with the Americans with Disabilities
“~Ordinanceof 1990, Public Law 101- 336, or similar federal, state, or local
standards regardmg pedestrian access or movement

(iv) Wth- respect to drainage infrastructure under the jurisdiction of an
Authority, either of the following:

1) Materially interfere with maintenance or full unobstructed use of the
drainage infrastructure as it was originally designed.

2) Not be located a reasonable distance from the drainage infrastructure
to ensure maintenance under the drain code of 1956, 1956 PA 40,
MCL 280.1 to 280.630, and access to the drainage infrastructure.

157



(e)

0.

_permit for the collocatio
installations. The Authority

(v) Failure to comply with reasonable, nondiscriminatory, written spacing
requirements of general applicability adopted by ordinance or otherwise
that apply to the location of ground-mounted equipment and new Utility
Poles and that do not prevent a Wireless Pole from serving any location.

(vi) Failure to meet reasonable, objective, written stealth or concealment
criteria for small cell wireless facilities applicable in a Residential District or
other designated area, as specified in an ordinance or otherwise and
nondiscriminatorily applied to all other occupants of the ROW, including
electric utilities, incumbent or competitive local exchange carriers, fiber
providers, cable television operators, and the Authority.

(vii) Fail to comply with all other appllcable codes, including, but not limited to,
Ordinance 125 (Use of Right-of-Way by Telecommunications Providers)
and Ordinance 294 (Non-Motorized Facilities/Sidewalks).

(viii) Failure to submit stif
the application complete‘under Section E2c

Reasons for Denial;:Resubmission and 30 Day Shot Cloc s
application is denied; 'g;_notlce under: subdivision (h) shall explain the reasons
for the denial and, if: apphcable cite the 'specific provisions of applicable codes
on which the denial is basedThe.Applicant may cure the deficiencies identified
by the Authorlty and resubmit the’ “application” within 30 days after the denial
without paying:an addmonal appllcatlon Fee. The Authority shall approve or deny
the revised appllcatlon within:30. days The Authority shall limit its review of the
revnsed appllcatlon tothe defic clen0|es cited in the denial.

vBatch Appllcatlons An Apphcant may file an application and receive a single

p to 20 substantially similar small cell wireless
"y;»approve or deny 1 or more small cell wireless
facilities included‘in such consolidated application.

@ . Approval of an apphcatlon authorizes the Wireless Provider to undertake the

()

)]

- -'mstallatlon collocation and maintenance of such facilities.

The Applicant shall not institute a moratorium on filing, receiving, or processing
applications or issuing permits for the collocation of small cell wireless facilities
or the installation, modification, or replacement of Utility Poles on which small
cell wireless facilities will be Co-Located.

Application Fee for a permit under subsection (2) shall not exceed the fee
limitations prescribed by the Small Cells Act or other applicable State Law.

The Applicant may revoke a permit, upon 30 days' notice and an opportunity to

cure, if the permitted small cell wireless facilities and any associated Utility Pole
fail to meet the requirements of this ordinance.

158



(k) The Applicant shall not require a permit or any other approval or require Fees or
RATEs for maintenance or operation of a Small Cell Wireless Facility or Mico
Wireless Facility, except that the Authority may require a permit as described in
Section E.2 for any work deemed by the Authority to affect traffic patterns or obstruct
vehicular or pedestrian traffic in the ROW.

() Decommissioning Sites: An Authority shall notify the Authority in writing before
discontinuing use of a Small Cell Wireless Facility, Utility Pole, or Wireless
Support Structure. The notice shall specify when and how the Wireless Provider
intends to remove the Small Cell Wireless Facility, Utility Pole, or Wireless
Support Structure. The Wireless Provider shall return the property to its pre-
installation condition. If the Wireless Provnder ‘does not complete the removal
within 45 days after the discontinuance of use, the Authority may complete the
removal and assess the costs of removal. against the Wireless Provider. A permit
under this section for a Small Cell Wireless Faclllty expires upon removal of the
Small Cell Wireless Facility.

(F) Provider Requirement of Service: Thls,erdlnance does not reqwre Wireless Facility

deployment orregulate Wireless Services.

(G) Appeals: The Applicant may appeal any Authorlty determmatlons related to thls ordinance to the
highest elected body of the Authorlty or the CerUIt court |n the judicial circuit where the Authority is

located.

(H) Defense, Indemnity, and Insurance:-All Appl|cantW|reIess P?bviders shall:

(1

repalr . replacement

actlng‘:vo“ its behalf including but

Defend, .indemnify, ‘and hold harmless the Authority its officers, agents, and
employees against any claims, demands, damages, lawsuits, judgments, costs, liens,
losses, expenses, and. attorney Fees. resulting from the installation, construction,
eration, or maintenance of any wireless facilities, Wireless
tility Pole:to the extent caused by the Applicant and all entities
thmlted to its contractors, its subcontractors, and

"= the officers ,"émployees, ‘or agents ‘of any of these, except as to liabilities or losses
. due to or caused:by the: sole negllgence of the Authority or its officers, agents, or

(2)

' employees

Obtaln insurance namlng the Authority and those acting on its behalf including but not
limited” to ‘its officers; ‘agents, and employees as additional insureds against any
claims, démands, damages lawsuits, judgments, costs, liens, losses, expenses, and
attomey Fees A Wireless Provider may meet all or a portion of the Authority's
insurance coverage and limit requirements by self-insurance, conditioned upon
providing to the Authority, evidence demonstrating, to the Authority's satisfaction, the
Wireless Provider’s financial ability to meet the Authority's insurance coverage and
limit requirements throughout the life of the provider's use of the ROW. To the extent
it self-insures, a Wireless Provider is not required to name additional insureds under
this section.

() Reduced Fees: The Authority may establish a Fee or Rate less than the maximum specified
in the Small Cells Act or other applicable State Law.

159



(J) Bonding:

(1) As a condition of a permit described in this act, the Wireless Provider shall provide a
$1,000 bond per new Utility Pole or other new Structure, for the purpose of providing
for the removal of abandoned or improperly maintained small cell wireless facilities,
including those that an Authority determines should be removed to protect public
health, safety, or welfare, to repair the ROW as provided under section 13(10) and,
to recoup Rates or Fees that have not been paid by a Wireless Provider in more than
12 months, if the Wireless Provider has recelved 60-day advance notice from the
Authority of the noncompliance. : ,

(2) The Authority shall not require a casﬁfbehd unless th‘e:Wreless Provider has failed
to obtain or maintain a bond requn'ed under this section or the surety has defaulted
or failed to perform on a bond given to the Authority on behalf: of a Wireless Provider.

(K) Labelling: A Small Cell Wireless Facility for whlch a permlt is issued shall ‘be labeled with
the name of the Wireless Provider, emergency contact telephone number, and information
that identifies the Small Cell W|reless Facmty and its Iocatlon

(L) Electric Costs: A Wireless Facnhty is. responsuble for arranglng and paying for the electricity
used to operate a Small CeII Wreless Facullty S

(M) AUTHORITY Reservatlon of nghts Thls_ dmance is enacted in compliance with Michigan
2018 PA 365; MCL 460.1301 and 2018 PA 366; MCL 125.3205(1)(c) as amended and
MCL 125. 3514(10) However the AUTHORITY takes specific note of inconsistencies as

hese State Acts and certam potentlally preemptive FCC Rulings concerning

"Small
Rullng of 8/13/2018 FCC 18 111 https: /idocs. fcc gov/public/attachments/FCC-18-1 | IAl.pdf
and”Small Cell Order“ FCC Declaratory Ruling and 3rd Report and Order of 9/27/2018

FCC 18-133 https: //docs. fcc gov/gubhc/attachments/FCC 18-133A1.pdf.

(1) The Authorlty also notes mconsnstencnes between the Small Cells Act and the
Michigan Constltutlon of 1963 including but not limited to Article VII Sections 22, 26,
29, 30, 31-and 34. Enactlng this ordinance does not preclude the Authority from
engaging in- or_,}othenmse supporting a judicial or other challenge to either the
State Acts or FCC rules referenced above. In the event of any interpretations,
including Judicial, Legislative or Administrative, contrary to the Michigan Public
Acts and/or FCC rules referenced above, the Authority specifically reserves the
right to amend and or terminate this ordinance and all related agreements,
policies and procedures undertaken in furtherance hereof.)

10

160



Memorandum

. (Oshtemo

CHARTER TOWNSHIP

To: Township Boardrg . Established 1839 -
From: James Ponﬁ@ gal Department
Subject: Wireless Telecommunication Facility 5g Ordinance

Objectives

To accept for First Reading the Wireless Telecommunication Facility Provisions 5g Ordinance No. 656 to add Article
59 to the Township Zoning Ordinance and set the Wireless Telecommunication Facility Provisions 5g Ordinance for
Second Reading.

Recommended Motion

I make the motion to accept for First Reading the Wireless Telecommunication Facility Provisions 5g Ordinance
adding Article 59 to the Township Zoning Ordinance and set for Second Reading.

Background

Consideration to repeal Article 49.80 — Communication Towers of the Township Ordinance and adopt proposed
Article 59- Wireless Telecommunication Facilities.

Information Provided

I have attached a copy of the Recommendation from the Planning Commission, Meeting Minutes of Public Hearing
held on August 24, 2023, and a copy of the Ordinance amending this Zoning Ordinance, to include Article 59 entitled
“Wireless Telecommunication Facility Provisions 5g Ordinance”.

7275 W. Main Street, Kalamazoo, M1 49009, (269) 216-5220, Fax (269) 375-7180, www oshtemo.org

161



\Q\J L//

\uJ/
°Oshtemo

//7’ |..\§\\ CHARTER TOWNSHIP

. Established 1839 -

August 18, 2023

Mtg Date: August 24, 2023

To: Planning Commission

From: Iris Lubbert, AICP, Planning Director

Subject: Public Hearing: Wireless Telecommunication Facility Provisions
Objective:

Consideration to repeal Article 49.80 - Communication Towers of the Township Ordinance and adopt
proposed Article 59 - Wireless Telecommunication Facilities, for recommendation to the Township Board.

Background:
5G, afifth-generation technology standard for broadband cellular networks and often linked to driverless cars,

and other small cell wireless facilities are becoming more and more popular throughout the United States.
Federal regulations have required that municipalities allow for these types of facilities. Currently the
Township’s ordinance does not provide any guidance for small cell wireless facilities. The general ordinance

and zoning ordinance need to be updated if the Township wants to have control over where and how these
facilities are placed.

With the Planning Commission’s and Township Board’s approval, a contract was entered into with McKenna
Associates on November 5, 2021 to develop ordinance that addresses 5G. Planning and Legal staff worked
closely with McKenna in this effort. A survey to inform the work was created and posted in May 2022—394
responses were collected. Based on the information collected and State regulations, Article 59 - Wireless
Telecommunication Facilities and Section 239.000 — Small Cell Wireless Communication Facilities Deployment
Ordinance were drafted. Article 59 provides controls for all forms of wireless telecommunication facilities that
would be placed on private property, including but not limited to: Micro Wireless Facilities, Small Cell Wireless
Facilities, and Communication Towers (Wireless Facility Support Structures). Section 239.000 provides
controls for all forms of small cell wireless telecommunication facilities that would be placed within Public and
Private rights-of-ways.

It should be noted that the Planning Commission has purview over the Zoning Ordinance and not the General

Ordinance. Section 239.000 has been provided only for context and would be moved to the Township Board
for consideration alongside Article 59.

Attachments: Article 59 - Wireless Telecommunication Facilities, Section 239.000 — Small Cell Wireless
Communication Facilities Deployment Ordinance

162



OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION

RECOMMENDATION OF THE OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP PLANNING
COMMISSION RESULTING FROM A PUBLIC HEARING CONDUCTED ON
THURSDAY, AUGUST 24, 2023

The Oshtemo Charter Township Planning Commission hereby recommends APPROVAL of

Repealing Article 49.80 - Communication Towers of the Township Ordinance and adopting proposed
Article 59 - Wireless Telecommunication Facilities to the Township Zoning Ordinance:

The addition of Article 59, Wireless Telecommunication Facilities of the Township Zoning Ordinance, to
read, in summary, as follows:

SEE ATTACHMENT
A copy of the Planning Commission Memorandum and draft Meeting Minutes from the August
24, 2023 Public Hearing are attached to this Recommendation.

OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP

PLANNING COMMISSION
Date: August 29, 2023 By: w
Iris Lubbert, AICP

Township Planning Director
Final Action by Oshtemo Charter Township Board

APPROVED

DENIED

REFERRED BACK TO PLANNING COMMISSION

163



OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP
PLANNING COMMISSION

DRAFT MINUTES OF A MEETING HELD AUGUST 24, 2023

Agenda
PUBLIC HEARING — CONDITIONAL REZONING — 8447 STADIUM DRIVE

Midwest V, LLC requested to conditionally rezone 8447 Stadium Drive, from its
current split zoning of R-2, Residence and C, Local Business District, to C, Local
Business District, to facilitate the development of the vacant parcel for retail store
operations.

PUBLIC HEARING — PUD CONCEPT PLAN — THi A’MPTONS

Unit Development (PUD), located at parcel number 05-1 4-1 30-017 and a portion of
6660 W. Main Street.

PUBLIC HEARING — ORDINANCE - WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITY
PROVISIONS
Consideration to repeal Article 49 80 - Commun atlon Towers of the Township
Ordinance and adopt proposed Artlcle 59 ereless Telecommumcatlons
Facilities. : ; .

WORK SESSION: , ' ’
a. Dlscusswn, Solar Energy Systems Ordmance i

Hall, 7é75 West Mann:étreet

ALL MEMBERS . .
WERE PRESENT: Ph|| Doorlag, Chair
T Scot Jefferies
Micki Maxwell, Vice Chair
- Alistair Smith
"=-Deb Everett
~'Zak Ford, Township Board Liaison

Also present: Iris Lubbert, Planning Director, Jim Porter, Township Attorney, LeeAnna
Harris, Zoning Administrator, Martha Coash, Recording Secretary, Kyle Mucha of
McKenna, and 13 members of the public.

164



Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance

Chairperson Doorlag called the meeting to order and invited those present to join
in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Approval of Agenda

Hearing no requests for change, the Chair asked for a motion to approve the
agenda.

Mr. Jefferies made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Ms. Everett
seconded the motion. The motion was aggroved unanlmously

The Chair moved to the next agenda item 4

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items -

As there were no comments from the publlc on non-agenda |tems Chalrperson
Doorlag moved to the next item. ,

Approval of the Minutes of the Meetmg of August 10I 2023

The Chair asked if there were &

_dltlon ,_hdeletlons or correctlons to the Minutes

unanlmously

Chalrperson Door A moved to the next agenda item.

PUBLIC HEARING CONDITIONAL REZONING — 8447 STADIUM DRIVE

Midwest V, LLC requested to conditionally rezone 8447 Stadium Drive, from its
current split zoning of R-2, Residence and C, Local Business District, to C, Local
Business District, to facllitate the development of the vacant parcel for retail store
operations.

Mr. Mucha of McKenna presented a review of the request for conditional
rezoning from Split Zone R-2, Residential & C, Local Business District to C, Local
Business District from Peter Oleszczuk, agent of Midwest V, LLC for parcel number 05-
33-403-010 located at 8447 Stadium Drive, consisting of approximately 2.15 acres.

He indicated the applicant proposed the following conditions in conjunction with
the rezoning:

165



1. A 6 board-on-board screening fence provided along the east property line of
the development to help buffer the current residential use.

2. Bigger footprint store (12,480 overall square feet) than historically built to
allow for expanded options for food and coolers. The property would be
developed as a Market Dollar General.

3. Required parking counts would be met with a combination of 34 installed
spaces and the remainder of spaces having dedicated banked parking areas
to be earmarked for parking and installed as grass.

4. Setbacks were intended to be met based on the- requ1red sections of the
zoning ordinance. -

Mr. Mucha said the applicant indicated the proposed retail operations to be that
of a Market Dollar General, a 20+ billion-dollar Fortune 119-Company with over 140,000
employees nationally, more in line with regional retail rather than a low-intensity
commercial operation. e L

He noted other high-intensity commercial uses are. currently permltted in the C,
Local Business District and the subject site currently permits these hlgher-lntenSIty
commercial uses due to the C, Local Busmess zoned classification along the northern
portion of the parcel. g

Therefore, he said McKenna féﬁnd t mroposed condltlonal rezoning does not
align with the intent of the Master Plan‘as.it relates to the rural.character preservation
strategy, but acknowledged the existing zonmg on the subject site would permit a
higher-intensity commercual use even if the subject site was not rezoned.

The use of the subject snte fora retall establlshment such as retail sale of
merchandlse would be consistent with the. C, Local Business zoning classification of the
northern portion of the_»§lte While the appllcant proposed to rezone the residential
portion’ of the site to C, ‘Local Business, the future intended use of a retail establishment
at 12,480° square feetis not consnstent wnth the general land use patterns of the

immediate area

He mdlcated reasonable-use under the current zoning ordinance is still
achievable, even wnth the spllt zoning, but noted some development restrictions may be
present due to the Spllt zomng for example, the entire property could not be used for
retail.

Mr. Mucha also noted impact on the surrounding properties may be more
significant with the proposed 12,480 square foot building than what is currently
experienced by the convenience store located to the west and the winery located to the
north.

Based on the information provided by the applicant, and the subsequent review
conducted, Mr. Mucha said McKenna found the proposed conditional rezoning does not
generally align with the Oshtemo Township Master Plan as it pertains to neighborhood

3

166



commercial uses. Therefore, and based on the following findings of fact, McKenna
recommended a denial of the conditional rezoning request.

1. The property can be reasonably used under its current split zoning of C, Local
Business and R-2, Residence. A smaller commercial operation could be
permitted to operate on the northern portion of the parcel, subject to
compliance with the Township’s Zoning Ordinance.

2. The proposed use — 12,480 square foot store — is not supported by the
Oshtemo Township Master Plan.

3. A change of the existing zoning boundaries wculd not be compatible with the
existing land uses within the immediate area..

4. Adequate sites across the Township, which are zoned C, Local Business, are
available, which would not require a condltlonal zoning.

5. There have been no apparent changes in conditions in the area that would
support an increase in expanding the C, Local Business District.

6. The proposed rezoning would lmpact the natural characterlstlcs of the area.

7. The proposed rezoning has not identified and lmmedlate need for an increase
in the C, Local Busrness Drstrlct desrgnatlon wrthm this area of the Township.

Chairperson Doorlag thanked Mr Mucha for hIS presentatlon and asked if
Commissioners had questrons Hearmg none,. he asked if the applicant wished to
speak. : : ; ,

A representafive of AR Englneerlng s 'oke and addressed the concerns
described by Mr. Mucha, saying that he could not find the Township building size
requirement, that to the orth the‘"’zonmg is industrial while to the west and east it is
commercial, ‘that he does not know the' speclf ic Iocatnon of other commercially zoned
property that Mr. Mucha was referenclng that-any development would impact natural
characterlstlcs that they would meet buffer and screening requirements, that the E-Z
Mart property next store is Iookrng to expand to a building that is approximately 8,000

square feet.

Ms. Everett asked what the typical size is for a Dollar General store.

He indicated 10 600 square feet is typical; this store would be larger to include
space for fresh produce and coolers.

Hearing no further questions from Commissioners, the Chair asked of there were
any comments from members of the public.

Ms. Joan Hawxhurst, 8400 Stadium Drive, said she has lived on her 18 acre
property directly across from the property being proposed for rezoning for 23 years. She
thanked Commissioners for the work they do. She felt the proposed store did not sound
like it would fit in with the character of the area and also noted traffic concerns. She felt
there are great options for the property but this is not one of them.

167



Mr. John Bert, Stratford Hills on Hathaway Road said he moved to Oshtemo in
2008 and noted the already existing heavy traffic on Stadium Drive, particularly from the
west. He chose to live at this location because of the rural nature of the Township. He
did not move here to look at a big box store when there is a Hardings store two miles
away. He supports the Master Plan and agreed with the McKenna findings to deny the
request for rezoning.

Mr. Steve Bertman, 8400 Stadium Drive also appreciates the rural nature of the
area and felt the proposed store would be incongruent as well as being in direct
competition with the existing neighboring store. He wondered if market research might
be done before an approval were given to this type of busmess

Hearing no further comments, the Chairpersor

thanlged the speakers, closed the
public hearing and moved to Board Deliberations. s

Mr. Ford agreed with the consultant’s recommendatron and believed the current
zoning was intentional in order to constrain the size of commercial developments

Attorney Porter agreed the site’s current split zonrng was mtended.to restrict the
overall impact of commercial development on th communlty

ainst the rules for rural character.

T"ng for commercial development now.

Mr. Jefferies expressed» s concern. regardmg traff ic in the area.

Ms. Maxwell sald people ve a nght to:rely on zoning that is in place and that it
is to the detrlment of the Plan ':lng Commlssm ‘.f they do not stand up for that.

Ms Maxwell made a motron to recommend to the Township Board that the
requestfor. the conditional rezonmg of 8447 Stadium Drive, parcel 05-33-403-010, be
denied on the following fi ndmgs of fact

. asonably used under its current split zoning of C, Local
Busrness and R-2,-Residence. A smaller commercial operation could be
permrtted to operate on the northern portion of the parcel, subject to
compliance with'the Township’s Zoning Ordinance.

2. The proposed use — 12,480 square foot store — is not supported by the
Oshtemo Township Master Plan.

3. A change of the existing zoning boundaries would not be compatible with the
existing land uses within the immediate area.

4. Adequate sites across the Township, which are zoned C, Local Business, are
available, which would not require a conditional zoning.

5. There have been no apparent changes in conditions in the area that would
support an increase in expanding the C, Local Business District.

6. The proposed rezoning would impact the natural characteristics of the area.

5

168



7. The proposed rezoning has not identified and immediate need for an increase
in the C, Local Business District designation within this area of the Township.

Mr. Ford seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously.

Chairperson Doorlag moved to the next agenda item and asked Mr. Mucha for
his report.

PUBLIC HEARING — PUD CONCEPT PLAN — THE HAMPTONS

Marroll LLC requested approval of a Conceptual Plan for a Residential Planned
Unit Development (PUD), located at parcel number 05-1 4-130-017 and a portion of
6660 W. Main Street.

Mr. Mucha provided background and review.of the PUD Conceptual Plan
submitted by Thomas Carroll, Manager of Marroll for North 9"' Street parcel 05-14-130-
017 and W. Main Street parcel 05-14- 185-022

He indicated the site is approxrmatelyéi 08 acres.with frontage along North 9"
Street and that the applicant proposed to acquireian additional 10 acres of land via a
land division from 6660 West Maln;iStreet The combination would increase the project
site to 20 acres, the minimum area* quired to develop as a Planned Unit Development,
and will be required for final site pla proval. The current request is for a conceptual
plan submitted by the applicant that provided- a\,hrgher level of detail than required for
phase 1 and phase 2 of—lthe development. He noted some ltems such as landscaping,
will be reviewed in greater detail during the site plan analysis, ‘which will take place after
conceptual plan approval if granted ‘

The applicant proposed .to;v' onstruct 15 four-plex buildings (60 units total) and a
future sen r,é,hou31ng complex in'3 phases. Phase 1 would include 48 units; phase 2 will
-an-additional 12.units;-phase 3 incliides a senior housing complex. A clubhouse,

pool and'assocrated pérklng lot were proposed within phase 1.

Mr Mucha mdlcated staff has been working with the applicant for a year on
development of. the proposal:.He reviewed the PUD zoning requirements and indicated
standards have been met; he noted those not yet described, including a phasing plan,
would need to be incliided ina subsequent full site plan request if the conceptual plan
were approved by the’ Plannlng Commission.

The items that would need to be addressed prior to full site plan approval:

Planning & Zoning
1. Site triangles shall be shown for the off-street parking areas: this will ensure
adequate site distance is achieved and vehicle-vehicle conflict potential is
reduced.
2. Parking spaces need to be a minimum of 10 feet wide by 20 feet deep.
3. No parking will be permitted on-street due to the proposed street width; signs
shall be placed along the street to note this.

6

169



4. The landscape easement that runs east-west along the property shall be
amended and/or replaced with a new easement to incorporate the overall
improved stormwater basin design.

5. Land combination is submitted for review and approval by the Township,
combining the subject site with the northern portion of 6660 West Main Street, as
shown on the submitted conceptual plans.

Oshtemo Township Fire Department

1. The proposed monument sign is blocking the turning access into the plat. A
30/50 turning radius shall be required. The drivewe'yﬁentrance shall meet the
30/50 turning radius. Site plan page 1 identified as Truck Turn Exhibit, shows two
different scales. Neither will allow for a 30/50 turnlng radlus with a monument
sign in the middle for ingress or egress.

2. Building sizes are needed to confirm fire flow requlrements for fire hydrant
placement. ~

Oshtemo Township Engineer

1. A RCKC driveway permit will be requnred for the entrance wnth a trlp generation
study to determine if turn lanes are required.

ADA parking spaces must be constructed to ADA standards with concrete.

A concrete ADA ramp is requured at the dnveway entrance on 9" Street.

20-foot public trail easement must: connect to the exustmg trail to the north.
Provide detalled calculatlons for ba izing based on Kalamazoo County Drain
Commnssnoner requlrements

b ownN

Recommendations from McKenn

eptual Plan for' he Hamptons planned unit development project has
"‘wed for compllance W|th the Oshtemo Townshlp Ordinance and other

project entitled “The Hamptons” subject to the following:

1. Conceptual plan approval is not a site plan approval. The conditional approval
provides general gundelmes and “big picture” details.

2. Until such a time as the private road moratorium has either been lifted or expired,
site plan submission cannot take place.

3. Phase 2 & Phase 3 shall not commence until a secondary access has been
installed on the subject site.

4. A detailed phasing plan will be required upon site plan submission.

Chairperson Doorlag thanked Mr. Mucha for his report and recommendations
and asked if Commissioners had questions.

170



Mr. Ford confirmed with Ms. Lubbert that the plan will include interior sidewalks
and a shared use path.

Mr. Ford was concerned about what would happen with phase 2 if the Township
is unable to provide a public road.

Attorney Porter confirmed if there is no public road phase 2 cannot be done. The
conditions of approval make that clear: the developer cannot go forward with phase 2
without road access.

Mr. Longstreth spoke on behalf of the applicant, indicating phase 1 includes a
total of 48 units; phase 2 includes 12 units. The proposed senior living facility is phase
3; it will be a 55+ community. :

He indicated the road moratorium caught. the"rn off guard They had planned to
break ground this fall, but there will be a delay until the road issue is settled. He
indicated private streets would provide ﬂGXIblllty for on street parklng as well as traffic
calming measures. :

Ms. Lubbert said the consultant for prlvate roads. was hired recently, that there is
a 6-month moratorium on private roads and that the consultant should finish their work
before the end of the year.

She also said the plans for the overflow retentlon pond agreement are going well
between Meijer and the developer : o :

Ms. Lubbert: 'a Iso rndlcated,one wrltte commumcatlon was received from
Menards regarding pre-exrstmg""‘ondrtrons with regard to noise from their store and
lumberyard A copy of the- lette: s:attached to these minutes.

It was the consensus of the Commrssroners that they liked the plan as submitted.

Mr Ford made a motlon to: ‘approve “The Hamptons” PUD Conceptual Plan for a
Residential: Planned Unit Development located at 6660 West Main Street, parcel
number 05-14- 130 017 on the followmg conditions of approval:

1. Conceptual plan approval is not a site plan approval. The conditional approval
provides general gundelmes and “big picture” details.

2. Until such a timé as‘the private road moratorium has either been lifted or expired,
site plan submission cannot take place.

3. Phase 2 & Phase 3 shall not commence until a secondary access has been
installed on the subject site.

4. A detailed phasing plan will be required upon site plan submission.

Chairperson Doorlag seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously.

The Chair moved to the next agenda item.

171



PUBLIC HEARING — ORDINANCE — WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITY
PROVISIONS

Consideration to repeal Article 49.80 — Communication Towers of the Township
Ordinance and adopt proposed Article 59 - Wireless Telecommunications
Facilities.

Ms. Lubbert noted that 5G, a fifth-generation technology standard for broadband
cellular networks and often linked to driverless cars, and other small cell wireless
facilities are becoming more and more popular throughout the United States. She said
federal regulations have required that municipalities allow:for these types of facilities.
Currently the Township’s ordinance does not provide any. gurdance for smali cell
wireless facilities. The general ordinance and zoning ordinance need to be updated if
the Township wants to have control over where and how these facilities are placed.

With the Planning Commission’s and Townshrp Board s approval a contract was
entered into with McKenna Associates on. November 5, 2021 to° develop ordinance that
addresses 5G. Planning and Legal staff worked closely with McKenna in this effort. A
survey to inform the work was created and posted in May 2022. 394 | responses were
collected. Based on the information collected and State regulations, Article'59 -
Wireless Telecommunication Facilities: and Section-238.000 — Small Cell Wireless
Communication Facilities Deployment Ordinance were drafted. Article 59 provides
controls for all forms of wireless telecommumcatron facilities that would be placed on
private property, including but not limited: to: Micro ereless Facilities, Small Cell
Wireless Facilities,-and Communication Towers (Wreless Facility Support Structures).
Section 238.000 provrdes controls for all forms ‘of small cell wireless telecommunication
facilities that would be' placed W|th|n Public and Private rights-of-ways.

Ms: Lubbert noted the g‘Commlsswn has purview over the Zoning
Ordlnance and not the General Ordinance. Section 238.000 has been provided only for
context and would be moved to the Townshlp Board for consideration alongside Article
59 with the goal of requiring any new development to co-locate whenever possible in
order to minimize |mpact “‘}:;

Ms. Lubbert walked the group through proposed Article 59, answered questions
and responded to suggestlons for changes.

Chairperson od?ﬁag‘%bioened the public hearing, determined no members of the
public had comments and closed the hearing.

Mr. Ford made a motion to repeal Article 49.80 — Communication Towers and
approve Article 59 — Wireless Telecommunication Facilities, as presented with one
amendment from the group related to the “Geographically Exempt Facility”, for
recommendation to the Township Board. Mr. Jefferies seconded the motion. The

motion was approved unanimously.

172



Chairperson Doorlag moved the meeting to a work session at 7:36 p.m. to
consider the next agenda item.

WORK SESSION:
a. Discussion, Solar Energy Systems Ordinance

Attorney Porter provided a draft of the Solar Energy Systems Ordinance that was
introduced at the August 10" meeting for further discussion

He led the group through the proposed ordlnance answermg questions and
making changes as per Commissioner dlSCUSSIOI‘I . s

The consensus of Commissioners was that staff should make the changes to the
document as discussed, and bring the updated proposed ordrnance for public hearing at
the September 19, 2023 Planning Commlssron meeting.

Chairperson Doorlag moved to the next agenda |tem

OTHER UPDATES AND BUSINESS'

Ms. Lubbert announced she _,ou € leaving th Township for personal reasons
and that her last day would be December 22, 2023 The Plannlng Director position will
be posted soon. LR

Commlsswners were sorry to hear she would be leavmg and noted all the
accomphshments durmg her tenure o

Mr. Ford‘~|nd|cated he recently Iearned that the “Continuum of Care” rental
assistance’ program turned away:all Oshtemo residents seeking rental assistance
because the Township is not a partner If the Township contributes to the organization
its resrdents could be consndered in the future.

Attorney';l?orter will do some research to see if or how that could be done.

.ADJOURNMENT

With there being no further business to consider, Chairperson Doorlag adjourned
the meeting at approximately 8:36 p.m.

Minutes prepared:
August 25, 2023

Minutes approved:
, 2023

10

173



August 7, 2023
Sent Via US Mail

Oshtemo Charter Township Planning Commission
7275 W. Main Street,

Kalamazoo, MI 49009-9334

[E] oshtemo@oshtemo.org

RE: Written Comments for Marroll LLC, Planned Unit Development for Parcel
05-14-130-017 and a portion of 6660 W Main Street

Dear Members of the Oshtemo Charter Township Planning Commission,

Menard, Inc. is in receipt of a public notice regarding the proposed Planned Unit Development
request by Marroll LLC for parcel number 05-14-130-017 and a portion of 6660 W Main Street.

Menards currently operates a retail store and lumberyard adjacent to the proposed development.
Where Menards shares in the desire for growth, prosperity, and the continued development of
Oshtemo Charter Township, the operation of the Menards property, like similar large retail
establishments, generates certain levels of noise, traffic, and light. Menards respectfully requests that
the proposal before the commission be considered with these pre-existing conditions in mind.
Menards further requests that any approval be conditioned on the acknowledgement by all parties
of the foreseeable issues that may result by being in close proximity to an existing retail store and
lumber yard.

Please include this letter as part of the official public hearing transcripts of the upcoming Oshtemo
Charter Township Planning Commission meeting. Thank you for your time and consideration.

Respectfully,

Menard, Inc.

Patrick P. Schafer

Corporate Counsel

Menard, Inc. - Properties Division

5101 Menard Drive, Eau Claire, WI 54703
pschaff@menard-inc.com

[P] 715-876-4147

5101 MENARD DRIVE EAU CLAIRE, WI 54703-9625 PHONE (715) 876-5911 FAX (7‘1'% 876-2868



OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP ORDINANCE NO.656
ADOPTED:
EFFECTIVE:
AN ORDINANCE TO REGULATE THE CONSTRUCTION OF WIRELESS
TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITIES ON PRIVATE PROPERTY.

Note: This section will replace Section 49.80. That section will be repealed and designated “Reserved.”

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF OSHTEMO
KALAMAZOO COUNTY, MIQ;—]I' SAN

ORDAINS

WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATION F ACILITIES SG' ORDINANCE
ARTICLE 59 OF THE TOV

Contents:
59.10 Purpose
59.20 Deflmtlons

g@iificéiions

ctmg “the public health, safety and welfare. Wireless
n public or private rights-of-way shall not be subject to this

Ordinances.
59.20. Definitions.
A. CO-LOCATION: The installation of additional antennas or other equipment to an

existing wireless telecommunication facility, generally to provide service for a

telecommunications company that did not previously have antennas or other
equipment in the facility.

175



B. GEOGRAPHICALLY EXCEMPY FACILITY: A New Wireless Facility Support
Structure between 40 and 199 feet in Height meeting all of the following geographic
criteria.

1. The proposed wireless facility is located west of 6" Street.

2. The proposed wireless facility is at least 2,500 feet from another wireless
facility.

3. The property in question is not zoned R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, or R-5.

C. MODIFICATION: Any alteration to an existing wireless telecommunications facility
that does not meet the definition of “Co- Locatlon ”

D. SMALL CELL WIRELESS FACILITY A wrreless facmty that meets both of the
following requirements: .

4. Each antenna is located |ﬁ$|de an enclosure of not more than 6 cubic feet in
volume or, in the case of an:antenna that has exposed elements the antenna
and all of its exposed elements’ would fit within an imaginary enclosure of not
more than 6 cubic feet i

5. All other wireless equrpment assocnated with the facility is cumulatively not
more than 25 cubic feet in volume. The following types of associated ancillary
equipment are not included in the calculation of equipment volume: electric
meters, ‘concealment . elements -telecommunications demarcation boxes,
groundlng equrpment power transfer switches, cut-off switches, and vertical
cable runs for. the connectlon of power and other services.

E. MICRO WIRELESS FACILITY A Small Cell Wireless Facmty that is not more than
- ... 24:inches in length; 15 mches in width, and 12 inches in height and that does not
“have an exterror antenna more- than 11'inches in length.

. WIRELESS FACILITY SUPPORT STRUCTURE: Any structure (meeting the
- definition of structure =in this Ordinance) that has antennas or other
* telecommunication equipment attached to it. Wireless Facility Support Structure
may be purpose-built Wireless Facility Support Structure, or may be buildings,
telephone poles, billboards, or other structures, provided that the requirements of
this sectlon are met

176



59.30.Activities Not Requiring Zoning Approval. The following activities do not require zoning
approval of any kind, but shall be subject to the Small Cells Wireless Communication
Facilities Deployment Ordinance Section 239.000:

A. The construction of a Small Cell Wireless Facility or Micro Wireless Facility within
a Right-of-Way on an existing Structure or new Wireless Support Structure under
40 feet in height within a Right-of-Way.

B. The replacement of a Small Cell Wireless Facility with a Small Cell Wireless Facility
that is not larger or heavier, in compliance with applicable codes.

C. Routine maintenance of a Small Cell Wreless Facility, utility pole, or Wireless
Support Structure. 45

D. Co-Location of a Small Cell Wreless Facrllty with a prevnously approved Small Cell
Wireless Facility. ,

E. The installation, placement, malntenance operatlon or replacement of a Micro
Wireless Facility that is suspended on existing cables strung between utility poles
or Wireless Support Structures in compllance wuth applicable codes

F. The construction or mstallatlon of a SmaII:CeII Wireless Facnllty or Mlcro Wireless
Facility located upon a: campus of an lnstltutlon of higher education.

59.40.Permitted Activities with Admmls,tratlve‘:Approval. The following activities shall be
considered permitted uses of land ,and shall require administrative approval and a permit
from the Township, but not Special Use Approval nor Slte Plan approval from the Planning
Commission or Zonmg Board of‘AppeaIs

A Modifi catlons'to a prev:ously approved wireless facility, including Modifications to
Small Cell and MicroWireless Facilities that are not exempt from zoning approval
‘under Subsection C. In order to be approved, this activity must meet the criteria in
Section 59 70 '

B “Co-Locations on a prewously approved wireless facility, including Co-Locations on
*-Small Cell and Micro Wireless Facilities that are not exempt from zoning approval
under Subsection- D. In order to be approved, this activity must meet the criteria in
Sectlon 59.70.

C. Replacement ofa Wireless Facility Support Structure with a new structure of the
" same or lower height. In order to be approved, this activity must meet the criteria
in Section 59.80.

177



D. New wireless facilities utilizing a pre-existing structure, including new Small Cell
and Micro Wireless Facilities that are not exempt from zoning approval under
Subsection D. In order to be approved, this activity must meet the criteria in Section
59.80.

E. Constructing a new Wireless Facility Support Structure under 40 feet in height,
including Wireless Facility Support Structure for new Small Cell and Micro Wireless
Facilities that are not exempt from zoning approval under the Small Wireless
Communications Deployment Act (Public Act 365 of 2018), as described in
Subsection D. In order to be approved, this actlwty must meet the criteria in Section
59.80. _

F. Constructing a Geographically Exempt E,aciliiy. In order to be approved, this
activity must meet the criteria in Section 59.80.

59.50. Activities Requiring Special Use Approva;i' The folloth activities shall require Special
Use Approval and Site Plan Approval from the -Planning Commlssmn as described in Article
65.

A. Constructlng a new Wireless Facﬂif&i Support Structure betWeen 40 and 199 feet
in height that is not a Geographically Exempt Facility as defined in Section 59.40.F.
In order to be approved; this activity must meet the criteria in Section 59.80, and
the Special Use Approval Crltena in Article 65

B. Constructing a new Wreless Fac ;Support Structure 200 feet in Height or taller.
In order to be approved, this activity must:meet the ‘criteria in Section 59.80, and
the Specnal Use Approval Criteria in: Artlcle 5.

,__:C “Increasmg the helght of an existing' Wreless Facility Support Structure to 110% of
it orlglnal height, or taller. In‘order to be approved, this activity must meet the
criteria‘in Sectlon 59 .80, and the: Special Use Approval Criteria in Article 65.

"%'D Replacement of a Wre|ess Facility Support Structure with a new structure that is
- ‘taller than the previous structure. In order to be approved, this activity must meet
the cntena in Sectlon 59.80, and the Special Use Approval Criteria in Article 65.

E. If, durlng an Admlmstratlve Approval under this Article, an application is deemed
to fail one or.more of these criteria, the applicant shall have the option to apply for
a Special Land Use approval from the Planning Commission, which shall have the
authority to approve the application, despite the lack of compliance with one or
more of the sections above. The Planning Commission shall be under no obligation
to approve any Special Land Use application that it does not deem to meet the
criteria of this Ordinance.

59.60.Application Requirements. In order to be considered complete, applications must
contain the following information:

A. All forms and fees required by the Township.

178



. A Site Plan meeting the requirements of Section 64.60.C.

. Name, address, phone number of Wireless Facility Support Structure owner;
name, address and phone number of contact persons for engineering,
maintenance and other notice purposes.

. Organization name, address, phone number, and contact person of each co-
locator and the operational status of the equipment.

. Notification of date of lease expiration and/or cessation of operation of any
equipment and date of removal. 4

. Wireless Facility Support Structure plans and a report from a qualified and licensed

professional engineer which:

1.

Describes the Wireless Facility- Support Structure herght and design, including
a cross section and elevatlo s

Documents the height abovv “grade for all potentlal mountlng positions for
co-located antennas and the minimum separation dlstance between
antennas. ~

Describes the Wreless\Faclllty Support Structure’s capacity, including the
number and type of antennas/equlpment that it can accommodate.

Documents what steps the appllcant will take to avoid interference with
establlshed publlc safety telecommunlcatlons

lncludes an englneers stamp and registration number

;@Z"filncludes the total cumulatlve square footage of wireless equipment, both

exnstlng and’ proposed

lndlcates that the proposed Wreless Facility Support Structure complies with
regulations administered by the Federal Communications Commission and

the Federal Awatlon Administration.

-Informatlon necessary to allow determination of compliance with Building

Code, Electncal Code andother applicable Township Ordinances.

lnformatlon showing that the facility will not cause interference with any
nearby existing telecommunications facilities.

10. All information necessary to determine compliance with all applicable

requirements.

179



G. A letter of intent committing the Wireless Facility Support Structure owner and his
or her successors to allow the shared use of the Wireless Facility Support
Structure ifan additional user agrees in writing to meet reasonable terms and
conditions for shared use. Further, a request to co-locate antennas on a Wireless
Facility Support Structure shall not be unreasonably refused. No provider or lessee
or agent thereof shall unreasonably fail to cooperate to accommodate Co-Location.

H. A letter of support and approval from the owner of the property or right-of-way
where the wireless facility is, or is proposed to be, located.

I. Any specific relevant information listed in Section 59.70 (for Co-Location and
Modifications) and/or Section 59.80 (for New Facilities).

J. Any other information deemed necessary. byr the Township to evaluate the request,
and requested by the Township in wrltmg

59.70.Requirements for Approval - Co-Locatlons and Modlflcatlons In order to be
approved, Co-Locations and Modifi catlons must meet the following. standards

A. Ground Equipment and Accessory Structures All appllcatlons shall comply
with the following: e

1. Ground equrpmeﬁt éccessory to the wireless telecommunications facility must
meet the minimum setback requirement for accessory structures in the zoning
dlstnct itis Iocated W|th|n and’ shall not be located in a front yard.

2. The base " of ‘the ereless Facrllty Support Structure and all associated
equnpment and accessory structures must be surrounded by a locked, opaque
screening fence at least six feet in height, or a solid screening row of
evergreens at Ieast srx feet tall at planting.

B nghtlng All appllcatlons shall comply with the following.

1. Wreless Facrllty “Support Structure designed specifically for wireless
S telecommunications antennas shall not be illuminated by artificial means and
" ;;; _ shall not dlsplay strobe lights unless such lightingis specifically required by
-~*the Federal Aviation Administration or other federal or state authority for a
“‘particular Wireless Facility Support Structure.

2. Site lighting shall comply with Article 54.

180



C. Signs and Advertising. All applications shall comply with the following:

1.

D. Interference. All applications shall comply wi

1.

The use of any portion of a Wireless Facility Support Structure for signs other
than warning or equipment information signs is prohibited, except when either
of the following circumstances are met.

(i) The Wireless Facility Support Structure contained signage prior to

containing telecommunications equipment.

(if) The Wireless Facility Support Structure is designed for human habitation.

A;ﬂthe following:

No new or existing telecommumcatlons serwce shall interfere with other
telecommunications, whether commercral public, or otherwise.

All applications for new service “shall be accompamed by an intermodulation
study by a qualified and licensed professional engineer which provides a
technical evaluation of exustlng and proposed transmlsswns and indicates all
potential lnterference problems , ,

E. Specific Requrrements -for Co-Locatlons and Modifications: Appllcatlons for
Co-Locations and Modifi catlons shall comply wrth the following,

1.

. The appllcant
" “Wireless Facmty Support. Structure and equipment compound, noting any

The appllcant must submlt a structural analysrs signed and sealed by a
Ilcensed englneer demonstratlng that the ereless Facility Support Structure,
new antennae or other Wreless Facrllty Support Structure-mounted
equnpment

u‘st submlt the results of an inspection of the condition of the

potentlal problems with the facility that could |mpact the health, safety, and
welfare of the surroundlng area, or the effective provision of service from the
facility. Any_ concerns raised by the inspection must be corrected during

constructlon of the Modifications or Co-Locations.

. :'L‘iThe facility must be in compliance with all applicable Federal Communications

Commussron regulations.

The Townshlp may require the Wireless Facility Support Structure to be
painted non-reflective gray.

The height of the Wireless Facility Support Structure may be increased.
However, an increase in the height of the Wireless Facility Support Structure
to more than 110% of its previous height shall require Special Use Approval
and Site Plan Approval from the Planning Commission.

181



59.80.Requirements for Approval — New Facilities. In order to be approved, all new wireless
facilities, except those specifically exempted from Zoning Approval under Section §9.30 must
meet the following requirements:

A

Justification. A proposed wireless facility shall not be established unless the
communications equipment/antenna(s) planned for the proposed location cannot
be accommodated on an existing structure within the area ofthe proposed Wireless
Facility Support Structure due to one of the following reasons:

1.

1.

The planned equipment would exceed the structural capacity of the existing
or approved Wireless Facility Support Structure as documented by a qualified
and licensed engineer, and the existing or approved Wireless Facility Support
Structure cannot be reinforced, modified or replaced to accommodate the
planned or equivalent equipment at a reasonable cost.

The planned equipment would cause mterference materially impacting the
usability of other existing equipment in the vicinity as documented by a
qualified and licensed professional engineerand the interference cannot be
prevented at a reasonable cost

Existing Wireless Eacility Support Structure within the search radius cannot
accommodate the: planned equipment at a height necessary to function
reasonably as documented by a qualified and licensed professional engineer.

Other unforeseen reasons that make it mfeaS|ble to locate the planned
telecommunlcatlons equrpment upon an exustlng structure.

. Ground Equrpment and Accessory Structures See Section 59.70.A

,erghtmg See Sectlon 59 70 B

.’”Slgns and Advertlsmg See Sectlon 59 70.C.
o . lnterference See Sectlon 59.70. D

: ;Setbacks All appllcatrons shall comply with the following:

For eX|st|ng structures proposed to support wireless telecommunications
antennas,.the’ ‘existing setback of the structure considered sufficient to allow
the addltlon of the telecommunications antennas.

A new ereless Facility Support Structure shall be located so that the setback
from all property lines is equal to or greater than the height of Wireless Facility
Support Structure.

A new Wireless Facility Support Structure shall be located so that the setback

from all dwelling units is equal to or greater than the height of the Wireless
Facility Support Structure.

182



4. Wireless Facility Support Structure over 25 feet in height shall not be located
on private property between a principal structure and a public or private street,
with the following exceptions:

(i) In industrial zoning districts, Wireless Facility Support Structure may be
placed within a side yard abutting a public or private street.

(ii) On sites adjacent to public or private streets on all sides, Wireless Facility
Support Structure may be placed within a side yard abutting a public or
private street.

G. Design of Wireless Facility Support Structure. New wireless facilities on
existing structures and new Wireless Facility Support Structure under 40 feet in
height shall be exempt from the followmg requrrements All other applications shall
comply with the following: .

1. Any new Wireless Facility.. Support Structure over 40 feet in height shall be
designed and constructed to accommodate future Co Locations. Wireless
Facility Support Structure shall be designed to allow for future rearrangement
of antennas and to accept antennas mounted at varying hetghts

2. A new Wireless: Facmty Support Structure over 40 feet in heught shall be a
monopole design‘and painted non-reflective gray, unless required to be
painted a different color by. State or Federal regulation or law. In lieu of the
gray color, the applicant may-sibmit a design intended to camouflage or
minimize the appearance of .the Wireless - Facrhty Support Structure,
antennas and equupment for approval by the reviewing body.

3. The appllcant must submit rendenngs or photo sims of the proposed Wireless
A Facrltty Support Structure Eas vuewed from the following locations:

(|) The nearest publlc roadway

(ii) The nearest re3|dent|a| dwelllng unit.

- (iii) Any other locatlon requested by the reviewing body from which the
~ Wireless Facmty Support Structure may potentially be visible.

H. Helght"’ New wnreless facilities on existing structures shall be exempt from the
following: requurements All other applications shall comply with the following:

1. The helght of a Wireless Facility Support Structure shall be determined by
measuring the vertical distance from the structure’s point of contact with the
ground to the highest point of the structure, including all antennas or other
attachments.

2. The structure shall be the shortest possible height required to provide the
service desired.

183



3. The applicant shall submit coverage and/or capacity information, including
propagation maps and other information requested by the Township, to
demonstrate the needed service improvement and why the requested height
is necessary.

4. The Township may request further information, including propagation maps,
demonstrating the service at lower heights, in order to determine whether the
requested height is necessary.

5. Antennas and other transmission equipment, including, but not limited to,
Small Cell Wireless Facility and Micro Wireless Facility, shall not extend more
than five feet above the top of a Wireless Facility Support Structure, unless
the structure is used for human occupancy.

6. Structures under 25 feet in height shall bley aUtomatlcally deemed to be “the
shortest possible height’ under this section” and shall not be required to
provide additional mformatlon E

59.90.Timeline for Approval. The Townshlp W|II comply with all State and Federal requirements
for approval timelines. In the event of changes to Federal or State law, this section shall be
void and the laws in place at the tlme of application shall be followed.

59.100.

A. For new facilities, the Townshlp shall request all required information within 14

business days of the application being filed. The Township shall notify the applicant
if the application is deemed complete within 25 days of the application being filed.
The Townshlp shall issue a :decision on the application within 90 days of the
appllcatlon being. deemed complete by the Townshlp

. For Modlf cations and Co-Locatlons the Township shall request all required

_information within 14 business days of the application being filed. The Township
f‘shall issue an approval or denlal W|th|n 60 days of the application being deemed
complete by the Townshup

-. €. Once the Townshlp has:notified an appllcant that an application is incomplete, if
"= “the applicant does not provnde any new information for 180 days, the application
" will be deemed to have been withdrawn. Any new information submitted after 180

days shall be deemed a new application for the purposes of this Ordinance and
the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act.

Annual Inépec{ions. All Wireless Facility Support Structure shall be inspected at

regular intervals, no less than once a year, and serviced as frequently as may be necessary,
to maintain the Wireless Facility Support Structure in a safe and weather-withstanding
condition. Inspections shall be based on ANSI/TIA/EIA-222F or most recent applicable ANSI
standards. Reports as to all inspections and servicing shall be made available to the
Township upon written request.

59.110.

Information Update. The Wireless Facility Support Structure owner or

representative shall submit updated information whenever any of the following change:

10

184



A. Name, address, phone number of Wireless Facility Support Structure owner;
name, address and phone number of contact persons for engineering,
maintenance and other notice purposes.

B. Organization name, address, phone number, and contact person of each co-
locator and the operational status of the equipment.

C. Notification of date of lease expiration and/or cessation of operation of any
equipment and date of removal.

59.120. Abandonment and Removal. At the time of construction, the applicant shall
submit a performance bond to guarantee all required equipment and structures are removed
in the event of abandonment. At the time of the application, the applicant shall submit two
third-party contractor bids for removal of all equipment, and all structures that are specifically
designed for the facility, and the bond shall be the higher of the two bids.

If the Wireless Facility Support Structure is not used for as a wireless telecommunications
facility for any period of six consecutive months, it must be removed at the expense of the
property owner and/or owner of the Wireless Facility Support Structure. If the property
owner and/or owner of the Wireless Facility Support Structure fail to remove the Wireless
Facility Support Structure, the bond shall be forfeited, and the bond amount shall be used
by the Township to remove all structures and equnpment associated spec#‘ cally with the
wireless telecommunications: facullty »

11

185



Memorandum

Oshtemo

CHARTER TOWNSHIP

To: TOWIlShlp Board + Established 1839 -
From: Vanessa Street, Parks Director
Subject: Parks 5-Year Plan Consultant

Objectives
Motion to Board: To hire Karen High as a limited-term Consultant for preparing an updated 5-year Parks and

Recreation Plan to enable options for DNR grant funding for Oshtemo community future parks and recreation
sustainability and growth.

Background

Michigan Department of Natural Resources requires an active 5-year Parks & Recreation Plan for entities to apply for
Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund (MNRTF) grants. Our current plan expires Dec 31, 2023. Developing a
recreation plan is exceptionally time consuming. In addition to normal responsibilities of planning, committee work,
maintenance and upkeep of parks and facilities, and leading volunteers in my four-months as Parks Director, I feel
bringing in Karen High to complete the 5-year Parks & Recreation Plan update will benefit the Township by providing
a cohesive, comprehensive plan to meet the State of Michigan Department of Natural Resources requirements.

Two of the three previous plans have enlisted help from consultants. The consultants were as follows:
e 2009-2013 Plan was prepared by McKenna Associates, a community planning firm.
e 2014-2018 Plan was prepared in-house by Greg Milliken, Planning Director and Karen High, Parks
Administrator.
e 2019-2023 Plan was led by Julie Johnson, Planning Director, with other Township staff and consultants from
the Greenways Collaborative and OCBA Landscape Architects.

Karen High, as Oshtemo’s recently retired Parks Director is highly familiar, experienced, and capable with the specificity
of this work and could provide Oshtemo Charter Township with a well-qualified plan update to keep Oshtemo Parks on
track for future funding that may provide Oshtemo residents with appropriate space for regularly requested
community/recreational activities and optimal use of well-maintained parks and facilities that are significantly
frequented.

Information Provided
Proposal for Professional Services for Community Parks & Recreation 5-Year Plan

Core Values
Sustainability, Professionalism, Integrity

186



Proposal for Professional Services
to assist with the development of
Oshtemo Township’s
Community Parks and Recreation Plan

Date: September 12, 2023
Prepared by: Karen High (Consultant)
Prepared for: Charter Township of Oshtemo (Client)

Background: The Michigan Department of Natural Resources (DNR) offers a variety of
recreation grant programs to local units of government. To be eligible to apply, applicants must
have an approved Community Parks and Recreation Plan, also referred to as a Recreation
Plan, on file with the DNR Grants Management Division. DNR approval is valid for five years.
For continued eligibility, a new Recreation Plan must be prepared and submitted every five
years.

Oshtemo Township’s current Community Parks and Recreation Plan, titled GO! Green
Oshtemo, was approved by the DNR in 2019. To remain eligible for future recreation grants, a
new plan must be submitted by February 1, 2024.

As outlined by the DNR, the intent of the Recreation Plan is to create an inventory of existing
facilities and resources, identify community recreation and open space needs, and set a plan of
action for a five-year period. Public meetings, plan content and the adoption process are
specified by the DNR in Guidelines for the Development of Community Parks and Recreation
Plans. For more details, visit https://www.michigan.gov/-/media/Project/Websites/dnr/
Documents/Grants/FOD-Grants/IC1924 Community Open Space Greenway.pdf?
rev=075df302a12f4e90aedc0ae30dbb2785

Services Provided: Development of a Recreation Plan takes a significant amount of staff time.
Parks Director Vanessa Street has a limited amount of time to complete the Plan due to her
other responsibilities. Karen High has the necessary qualifications, experience and abilities to
assist with development of the plan. She is amenable to providing professional services to
assist with development of the plan under the direction of Parks Director Vanessa Street and in
accordance with DNR guidelines.

Compensation: Karen High will charge Oshtemo Township at the rate of $60.00 per hour. The
client will be invoiced every two weeks. Payment is due within 30 days of receipt. [f/when
consultant reaches 80 hours on the project ($4,800), client and consultant will evaluate the
project status and determine whether continued services are needed to complete the project.
Either Client or Consultant may choose to terminate the agreement at this point.

Terms of Agreement: The term of this agreement will begin on the date of this agreement and
will remain in force until the completion of the Services, subject to earlier termination as
provided in this agreement. In the event that either Client or Consultant wishes to terminate this
Agreement prior to the completion of the Services, that Party will be required to provide 10
days’ written notice to the other party. Client or Consultant may also terminate this agreement
without 10 days’ written notice when Consultant reaches 80 hours on the project, as described
above.

187


https://www.michigan.gov/-/media/Project/Websites/dnr/Documents/Grants/FOD-Grants/IC1924_Community_Open_Space_Greenway.pdf?rev=075df302a12f4e90aedc0ae30dbb2785
https://www.michigan.gov/-/media/Project/Websites/dnr/Documents/Grants/FOD-Grants/IC1924_Community_Open_Space_Greenway.pdf?rev=075df302a12f4e90aedc0ae30dbb2785
https://www.michigan.gov/-/media/Project/Websites/dnr/Documents/Grants/FOD-Grants/IC1924_Community_Open_Space_Greenway.pdf?rev=075df302a12f4e90aedc0ae30dbb2785
https://www.michigan.gov/-/media/Project/Websites/dnr/Documents/Grants/FOD-Grants/IC1924_Community_Open_Space_Greenway.pdf?rev=075df302a12f4e90aedc0ae30dbb2785

Reimbursement of Expenses: the Consultant will be reimbursed from time to time for
reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the Consultant in connection with providing
the Services. All expenses must be pre-approved by the Client.

Ownership of Intellectual Property: all intellectual property and related material that is
developed or produced for this project will be the sole property of the Client.

Capacity/Independent Contractor: In providing services under this Agreement, it is expressly
agreed that the Consultant is acting as an independent contractor and not as an employee.
The Consultant and the Client acknowledge that this Agreement is exclusively a contract for
service. The Client is not required to pay, or make any contributions to, any social security,
local, state or federal tax, unemployment compensation, or any other employee benefit for the
Consultant during the Term. The Consultant is responsible for paying, and complying with
reporting requirements for, all local, state and federal taxes related to payments made to the
Consultant under this agreement.

Substitution: The Consultant may not engage a third party sub-contractor to perform some or
all of the obligations outlined in this Agreement.

Equipment: The Consultant will provide at the Consultant’s own expense, any and all
equipment, software, materials and any other supplies necessary to deliver the Services in
accordance with the Agreement.

No Exclusivity: The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is non-exclusive and that either
Party will be free, during and after the Term, to engage or contract with third parties for the
provision of similar Services.

Idemnification: Each Party agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the other Party, its
respective affiliates, officers, agents, employees, and permitted successors and assigns
against any and all claims, losses, damages, liabilities, penalties, punitive damages, expenses,
reasonable legal fees and costs of any kind or amount whatsoever, which result from or arise
out of any acts or omission of the idemnifying party, its respective affiliates, officers, agents,
employees, and permitted successors and assigns that occurs in connection with this
Agreement. This indemnification will survive the termination of this Agreement.

Signed:
Karen High Cheri Bell
Consultant Oshemo Township Supervisor

Date Signed:

188



Memorandum

Oshtemo

CHARTER TOWNSHIP

To: Township Board . Established 1839 -
From: LT. Director
Subject: Meeting Room A/V Upgrade

Objective

Motion: To accept Intaglio quote for meeting room A/V upgrade and approve budget amendment.

Background
With the continued hybrid meeting setup and the challenge to include remote participants the Township meeting room

needs to be upgraded. I reached out to several local companies to get quotes for this project and Intaglio and CTI were
the only 2 companies to provide quotes. Both companies were given the same wish list and access to the space to
provide the Township with the best solution. Intaglio’s quote is the least expensive, their goal was to utilize the best of
what we currently have and to replace the rest. CTI’s quote is a full replacement of what we have and is a high-end
solution.

There is currently $40,000.00 budgeted in 2023 and if we accept Intaglio’s solution, we will need an additional
$15,000.00 to complete this project.

Information Provided
Attached quotes from Intaglio and CTI

Core Values
Public Service, Innovation, Professionalism, Fiscal Stewardship

189



Oshtemo Charter Township

Township meeting room upgrades

Chris Van Zoest
Intaglio, LLC

3106 Three Mile Rd. NW
Grand Rapids, MI 49534
mobile 616.808.1014

INTAGLI®

190



Township meeting room upgrades

Presented By: Intaglio, LLC 7124/2023
Project Name: Township meeting room upgrades Project No.: 8645 Page 2 of 12

191



Township meeting room upgrades

Meeting Room: DIAS Audio System

Qty Item Each Extended
Audio

1 AKG CS3BU $1,283.26
Base Unit

1 AKG CS3 CU 50 $391.74
Chairman Unit with 50cm/20in gooseneck

8 AKG CS3 DU 50 $2,527.28
Delegate Unit with 50cm/20in gooseneck

9 AKG CS3ECT002 $917.91
CS3 2 meter cable with T connector

1 Symetrix AEC Module, AEC-2 $763.16
Dual Core AEC Coprocessor, 16/12 channels (dual/independent references)

1 Symetrix Radius NX 12x8 Dante + USB-B $3,165.79

Programmable DSP, 12 mic/line in, 8 line out, USB audio, 1 1/O card slot,
64x64 redundant Dante, ARC

Audio Total: $9,049.14
Labor
1 Intaglio Audio Programming $1,500.00
Audio DSP Programming, Test & Tune
1 Intaglio Engineering $75.00
Design & Engineering
1 Intaglio Installation $1,800.00
On-Site Labor
Labor  Total: $3,375.00
Parts
1 Intaglio Parts/Supplies $133.33
Installation Supplies
Parts Total: $133.33
Shipping
1 Intaglio Shipping $360.00
Shipping and Handling.
Presented By: Intaglio, LLC 7124/2023

Project Name: Township meeting room upgrades Project No.: 8645 Page 3 of 12

192



Township meeting room upgrades

Shipping  Total: $360.00
Meeting Room: DIAS Audio System Total: $12,917.47

Presented By: Intaglio, LLC 7124/2023
Project Name: Township meeting room upgrades Project No.: 8645 Page 4 of 12

193



Township meeting room upgrades

Meeting Room: DIAS Video System

Qty Item Each Extended
Audio
1 Extron HDMI Ultra/1.5 $35.71
4K Premium High Speed HDMI Ultra-Flexible Cable - 1.5' (45 cm)
4 Extron HDMI Ultra/12 $270.00
4K Premium High Speed HDMI Ultra-Flexible Cable - 12' (3.6 m)
2 Extron HDMI Ultra/15 $155.00
4K Premium High Speed HDMI Ultra-Flexible Cable - 15' (4.5 m)
4 Extron HDMI Ultra/9 $280.00
4K Premium High Speed HDMI Ultra-Flexible Cable - 9' (2.7 m)
9 Planar 998-2121-00 $1,791.00
24" wide black FHD IPS LED LCD, narrow bezel, VGA, HDMI, DP, speakers
Audio Total: $2,531.71
Labor
1 Intaglio Control Programming $1,200.00
Control System Programming
1 Intaglio Engineering $75.00
Design & Engineering
1 Intaglio Installation $1,440.00
On-Site Labor
Labor  Total: $2,715.00
Parts
1 Intaglio Parts/Supplies $66.67
Installation Supplies
Parts  Total: $66.67
Shipping
1 Intaglio Shipping $266.67
Shipping and Handling.
Shipping  Total: $266.67
Video
Presented By: Intaglio, LLC 7124/2023
Project Name: Township meeting room upgrades Project No.: 8645 Page 5 of 12

194



Township meeting room upgrades

1 Crestron HD-DA4-4KZ-E $457.89
1:4 HDMI® Distribution Amplifier w/4K60 4:4:4 & HDR Support
1 Crestron HD-DA8-4K-E $723.68
1-8 4K DM Signal Distribution Amplifier
Video Total: $1,181.57
Meeting Room: DIAS Video System Total: $6,761.62
Presented By: Intaglio, LLC 7124/2023

Project Name: Township meeting room upgrades Project No.: 8645 Page 6 of 12

195



Township meeting room upgrades

Meeting Room: Meeting Conference System

Qty Item Each Extended
Audio
1 Shure MXA920W-S $4,146.05
Ceiling Array Microphone, Square, White, 24 inch
1 Vaddio 999-8536-000 $861.75
EasyUSB audio bridge system
Audio  Total: $5,007.80
Video Conferencing
1 Barco CX-30 $2,413.75
CX-30 ClickShare Conference Set TAA Compliant, 2 dongles
1 Logitech 960-001226 Rally Camera $1,364.88
Rally Camera (Black) - Includes wall bracket
Video Conferencing Total: $3,778.63
Display
1 Chief PFCUB $941.05
Large Flat Panel Mobile AV Cart
1 Samsung QN75Q70AAF $1,859.04
75" QLED Flat 4K QHDR, 3840x2160, 240MR, Smart, WiFi, Bixby, RS-232c
Display  Total: $2,800.09
Labor
1 Intaglio Audio Programming $1,200.00
Audio DSP Programming, Test & Tune
1 Intaglio Engineering $75.00
Design & Engineering
1 Intaglio Installation $1,440.00
On-Site Labor
Labor  Total: $2,715.00
Parts
2 Chief CSMP9X12 $90.00
Proximity™ Component Storage Panel, Interface
Presented By: Intaglio, LLC 7124/2023

Project Name: Township meeting room upgrades Project No.: 8645

Page 7 of 12

196



Township meeting room upgrades

1 Intaglio Parts/Supplies $200.00
Installation Supplies
1 TP-Link TL-SG1008MP V1 $145.22
8-Port Gigabit Desktop/Rackmount Switch with 8-Port PoE+
Parts  Total: $435.22
Shipping
1 Intaglio Shipping $433.33
Shipping and Handling.
Shipping  Total: $433.33
Video
1 Atlona AT-HDR-EX-70C-KIT $676.32
4K HDR Transmitter and Receiver Set w/IR, RS-232, and PoE
1 Chief PAC810 $164.21
VC CAMERA SHELF, 9", XL DISPLAY
1 Extron HDMI Ultra/3 $37.50
4K Premium High Speed HDMI Ultra-Flexible Cable - 3' (90 cm)
Video  Total: $878.03
Meeting Room: Meeting Conference System Total: $16,048.10
Presented By: Intaglio, LLC 7124/2023

Project Name: Township meeting room upgrades Project No.: 8645 Page 8 of 12

197



Township meeting room upgrades

Meeting Room: Audience Display system

Qty Item Each Extended
Display
2 Samsung QN75Q70AAF $3,718.08
75" QLED Flat 4K QHDR, 3840x2160, 240MR, Smart, WiFi, Bixby, RS-232¢
Display  Total: $3,718.08
Labor
1 Intaglio Control Programming $1,800.00
Control System Programming
1 Intaglio Engineering $75.00
Design & Engineering
1 Intaglio Installation $2,880.00
On-Site Labor
Labor  Total: $4,755.00
Parts
1 Intaglio Parts/Supplies $200.00
Installation Supplies
Parts  Total: $200.00
Shipping
1 Intaglio Shipping $400.00
Shipping and Handling.
Shipping  Total: $400.00
Video
2 Atlona AT-HDR-EX-70C-KIT $1,352.64
4K HDR Transmitter and Receiver Set w/IR, RS-232, and PoE
1 Chief PFCUB $941.05
Large Flat Panel Mobile AV Cart
1 Chief PFMUB $825.79
Large Confidence Monitor Cart 3' to 4'
1 Crestron HD-DA4-4KZ-E $457.89
1:4 HDMI® Distribution Amplifier w/4K60 4:4:4 & HDR Support
Presented By: Intaglio, LLC 7124/2023

Project Name: Township meeting room upgrades Project No.: 8645 Page 9 of 12

198



Township meeting room upgrades

1 Extron HDMI Ultra/15 $77.50
4K Premium High Speed HDMI Ultra-Flexible Cable - 15' (4.5 m)
5 Extron HDMI Ultra/6 $268.75
4K Premium High Speed HDMI Ultra-Flexible Cable - 6' (1.8 m)
Video  Total: $3,923.62
Meeting Room: Audience Display system Total: $12,996.70
Meeting Room: Wireless Audio
Qty Item Each Extended
Audio
1 Shure SLXD24/B87A-H55 $782.89
Wireless Vocal System with BETA 87A- H55
Audio  Total: $782.89
Labor
1 Intaglio Audio Programming $900.00
Audio DSP Programming, Test & Tune
1 Intaglio Engineering $75.00
Design & Engineering
1 Intaglio Installation $720.00
On-Site Labor
Labor  Total: $1,695.00
Shipping
1 Intaglio Shipping $73.33
Shipping and Handling.
Shipping  Total: $73.33
Meeting Room: Wireless Audio Total: $2,551.22
Presented By: Intaglio, LLC 7124/2023

Project Name: Township meeting room upgrades Project No.: 8645 Page 10 of 12

199



Township meeting room upgrades

Meeting Room: 4th Camera Addition Hardware

Qty Item Each Extended
Labor
1 Intaglio Control Programming $750.00
Control System Programming
1 Intaglio Engineering $75.00
Design & Engineering
1 Intaglio Installation $540.00
On-Site Labor
Labor  Total: $1,365.00
Shipping
1 Intaglio Shipping $86.67
Shipping and Handling.
Shipping Total: $86.67
Video
1 Blackmagic Design MINI CONVERTER UPDOWNCROSSHD $159.00
Updown cross mini converter, standard, high definition video format
1 Extron HDMI Ultra/6é $53.75
4K Premium High Speed HDMI Ultra-Flexible Cable - 6' (1.8 m)
1 Marshall VSW-2000 $434.09
4x1 3G/HD/SD SDI Switcher
Video  Total: $646.84
Meeting Room: 4th Camera Addition Hardware Total: $2,098.51
Project Subtotal: $53,373.62
Presented By: Intaglio, LLC 7124/2023

Project Name: Township meeting room upgrades Project No.: 8645

Page 11 of 12

200



Township meeting room upgrades

Project Summary

Equipment: $36,753.62
Labor: $16,620.00
Grand Total: $53,373.62
Client: Jon Gibson Date
Contractor: Intaglio, LLC Date
Presented By: Intaglio, LLC 7124/2023

Project Name: Township meeting room upgrades Project No.: 8645 Page 12 of 12

201



ACT

PROPOSAL

Oshtemo Township

Upgrade/Replace AV equipment

DATE
Thursday, 24 August 2023

PREPARED BY

John Lawrence

Design Consultant

202



Scope of Work

Proposal Number: J23230146
Proposal Date: 8/24/2023

Prepared for: Oshtemo Township

Attn: Jon Gibson Prepared by: John Lawrence

Phone: (269) 375-4260 Phone: (269) 330-8820

Email: jgibson@oshtemo.org Email: john.lawrence@cti.com

Bill to: Oshtemo Township Ship to: Oshtemo Township
7275 West Main Street 7275 West Main Street
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 Kalamazoo, M| 49009

CTl to install updated video conferencing technology in the Township Hall. The
new Zoom-dedicated system provides simple to host and join access viathe
existing Crestron touch panel. Each of the dais member will experience audio and
visual improvements. The mobile TVs have the capability of connecting into the
overall Zoom system and also the option to be used individually elsewhere.

Displays

The front of the space will receive one 50” LG TV on a Chief mount providing the
audience a better viewing angle of shared content. Three 75” LG TVs will be installed
onto Chief mobile carts for individual or duplicate content needs. The three mobile TVs
will connect to a wall plate via SDI (only the main 75” TV with camera) and ethernet
cable.

Video

A highlight of this upgrade is each dais member will have one Televic uniCOS T/MM10
all in one tabletop station. Microphone activation button, 10" capacitive touch screen with
adjustable tilt (0A° to 90A°)- Anti-fingerprint coating- Microphone and request list control
when configured as chairperson- USB for charging- and a video camera. Gooseneck
microphones will be added to each station. The podium will receive one Confidea FLEX
station. Televic in and our injectors allow content to be received and sent from the
tabletop stations. Crestron DM extenders and 6x6 distribution center will aid in
transferring content to the displays. and the mobile carts.

203


mailto:name@email.com
mailto:name@email.com

The Plixus MME provides all the processing and signal handling required for the system.
CoCon Meeting Suite, and Televic Management Center are required services while one
year of Televic service agreement has been added.

The Televic stations will ingest with a Poly G7500 Zoom unit. To utilize the system
including its cameras and microphones, you must join a Zoom meeting. This will be
allowable by a single button join press from the existing Crestron touch panel. By joining
via touch panel, the TVs, cameras and microphones become live. An end user must join
the same Zoom meeting from a laptop or smart device and share.

The rear of the room featuring the three mobile TV carts can be used as mirrored
displays by connecting to the ethernet wall plates. A SDI port is available for the “center”
mobile TV’s mounted camera. The TV carts can be disconnected from the Zoom system
and be transported elsewhere to be used individually. When the TVs are connected to
the system, the existing Crestron touch panel is used to select which source input and
cameras for the Zoom meeting.

Audio

A Biamp TesiraFORTE DAN CI will assist with audio transmission. In the rear room, one
white Shure MXA920 ceiling tile microphone array will provide quality transmission
sound to the far end. One Sennheiser wireless handheld microphone is added to the
system.

Control

The existing DMPS3-4K-150 and Crestron touch panels will continue to be used while a
Netgear M4250 will help facilitate the technology. Xpanel to be provided for remote
touch panel access.

Various

Existing projectors and projection screens to be removed.

| WWW.CTI.COM 204

CONFIDENTIAL 3883 Linden Ave SE Wyoming, Ml 49548 J23230146 | 2



Your Investment

Below is the cost of this solution based on the outlined scope of work. If you have
guestions about the complete solution, please let us know how we can help align this
investment with additional needs or changes in scope.

Proposal Summary

Description Price
Equipment $87,040.24
Implementation Services $41,974.48
Subtotal $129,014.72
Tax $0.00

Grand Total $129,014.72

Recommended
2 Additional Years CTIl Complete Service Agreement $10,971.27
4 Additional Years CTlI Complete Service Agreement $21,942.54

Down Payment Requirements

Down payment of 60% required to initiate order.

205

| WWW.CTI.COM J23230146 | 3

CONFIDENTIAL 3883 Linden Ave SE Wyoming, MI 49548



Why Us?

Our CTI Complete service is there for you 24/7 through our dedicated CTI Care
customer experience team. Through on-site technical service, recommended
programming upgrades, and quarterly reliability checks, your system is covered for the
unexpected, as well as planned maintenance. Your teams will be trained to operate
equipment with confidence. When critical meetings arise, we help ensure system
performance with proactive system testing and an on-site checklist, so your systems will
be ready when it matters most. Our managed services staff does more than diagnose
and repair failures, they help plan for system life cycles.

CTi Scout

REMOTE
MONITORING

With real-time
tracking and alerts,
you can be confident
your system is
operational when you
need it most. CTlI
Scout provides you
with simple solutions,
increased up-time
and fully-encrypted
security.

CONFIDENTIAL

CTI Complete

ON-DEMAND

SERVICE &
SUPPORT

Reach our
experienced and
dedicated team

in an instant to
ensure your
systems get back
on-line for
increased
productivity.

CTiI CARE TEAM

CUSTOMER
EXPERIENCE

A dedicated team
provides reviews
and reports on
system

performance, usage,

trends, and life
cycles to help reach
your enterprise and
technology planning
goals.

| WWW.CTI.COM
3883 Linden Ave SE Wyoming, Ml 49548

CRITICAL MEETING
SUPPORT

ON-SITE
CHECKLIST

Proactive system
testing with our
technical teams

for your key
meetings to
ensure room
readiness when it
matters most.

206

J23230146 | 4



Bill of Materials
Upgrade/Replace AV equipment

Manufacturer Description Unit Price Ext. Price
Display Systems Equipment: $7,147.78
LG 75" 3 $1,328.24 $3,984.72
CHIEE Micro-Adjust le_ed Wall Mount, 1 $136.80 $136.80
Medium
LG 50" 1 $628.24 $628.24
CHIEF 4'-6' LFP MOBILE CART 3 $799.34 $2,398.02
Video Systems Equipment: $70,492.92
DigitalMedia 8G+ 4K60 4:4:4
Crestron HDR Receiver & Room 3 $641.18 $1,923.54
Controller 100
GSM immune gooseneck
microphone of 40 cm with
: screwlock. Bi-color led ring
Televic indication (red / green). 10 $144.71 $1,447.10
Windscreen included. Not to be
used with Confidea FLEX G4
USB 2.0/3.0 DONGLE, 1-channel
HDMI. Plug and Play.
Magewell Windows/Linux/Mac. Replaces 3 $263.53 $790.59
p/n 32011 (XI200DUSBHDMI).
The Plixus Multimedia Engine is
a 19" rack-mountable device that
provides all the processing and
Televic signal handling required for a 1 $6,717.65 $6,717.65
multimedia system.
DM Lite 4K60 4:4:4 Receiver for
Crestron HDMI Signal Extension over 1 $235.29 $235.29
CATx Cable
CoCon Meeting Suite
Televic Combined discussion, voting, 1 $8,058.82 $8,058.82
sighage
Crestron 6x6 DigitalMedia Distribution 1 $3.235.29 $3.235.29
Center
DM Lite 4K60 4:4:4 Transmitter
Crestron for HDMI Signal Extension over 1 $264.71 $264.71
CATx Cable, Wall Plate, White
Management software to
: configure and route video
Televic streams on the Plixus network 1 $1,610.59 $1,610.59
between several inputs and

CONFIDENTIAL

| WWW.CTI.COM

3883 Linden Ave SE Wyoming, MI 49548

207
J23230146 | 5



outputs (Plixus V-IN, Plixus V-

OUT, Plixus MME, Lingua ID-

MM, uniCOS F/MM) using an
intuitive matrix UL.

Crestron

Wall Plate 4K DigitalMedia
8G&#43; Receiver & Room
Controller 100, White Textured

$452.94

$452.94

Televic

Video output box to extract video
content from the Plixus network
through an HDMI connection.
By default, the HD-SDI from the
Plixus MME is available on the
HDMI connection. Routing other
video channels available on the
Plixus network requires CoCon
Video Routing. Flexible video
channel selection available
through the optional video
selector (Plixus V-SEL) or dry
contacts.

$1,447.06

$5,788.24

Marshall

4x1 3G/HD/SD SDI Switcher

$351.76

$351.76

Marshall

5x PTZ Camera IP/3GSDI
(Black)

$488.24

$488.24

Televic

Video input box to inject video
content to the Plixus network
through an HDMI connection.
A video channel injected through
the box is routed to one of the six
video channels available on the
Plixus network (CoCon Video
Routing required).
Content sharing functionality
available through the optional
video request panel (Plixus V-
REQ) or dry contacts.

$1,447.06

$1,447.06

Televic

1-Year Service Level Agreement.
© Unlimited Remote
Phone/Email Support
© Unrestricted Teamviewer
Support
© Advanced Replacements on
Core Products

$2,395.29

$2,395.29

Televic

A touch screen tabletop station
that can be configured both as a
delegate or chairman unit
including:

- Microphone activation button
- Screw lock microphone
connector
- Loudspeaker
- 10" capacitive touch screen with
adjustable tilt (OA° to 90A°)
- Anti-fingerprint coating
- Microphone and request list
control when configured as
chairperson

- USB for charging

$3,323.53

$29,911.77

CONFIDENTIAL

| WWW.CTI.COM

3883 Linden Ave SE Wyoming, MI 49548

208
J23230146 | 6



- Additional USB for connection
to nameplate
- Integrated camera
- Mifare card reader for
authentication
- Headphone connector
Can be powered over Plixus
network or externally
D-MIC type microphone to be
ordered separately.

Poly

PRE-CONFIGURED FOR
ZOOM:POLY G7500 4K BASE
UNIT & TC8:G7500 4K VIDEO

CODEC & WIR

$4,435.74

$4,435.74

CHIEF

VC CAMERA SHELF, 9", XL
DISPLAY

$139.48

$139.48

Televic

The Confidea FLEX is a touch
enabled tabletop conference unit
including:

- Multifunctional button for
delegate, chairman and dual use
- Screw lock microphone
connector
- Loudspeaker
- 5,2" capacitive touch screen
- Tactile reference
- Haptic feedback
- Anti-fingerprint coating
- NFC card reader
- 2 X Headphone connector

Can be powered over Plixus
network. D-MIC type microphone
to be ordered separately.
Based on licenses the unit can
unlock more functionality (To be
ordered separately per unit. See
"Confidea FLEX" under chapter

"Software".)

$798.82

$798.82

Audio Systems Equipment: $6,895.94

Shure

Ceiling Array Microphone,
Square, White, 24 inch

1

$3,521.71

$3,521.71

Sennheiser

Digital wireless handheld set.
Includes (1) EW-D EM digital 19
1/2" single channel receiver , (1)
EW-D SKM? digital handheld
transmitter with mute switch, (1)
MMD 835? microphone module,
(1) MZQ1? microphone clip, (1)
NT 12-5 CW+ power supply with
country adapters?, (1) rack
mount kit and AA batteries,
frequency range: (470 - 526
MHz)

$591.88

$591.88

Biamp

TesiraFORTE DAN ClI

$2,782.35

$2,782.35

| WWW.CTI.COM 209

CONFIDENTIAL 3883 Linden Ave SE Wyoming, MI 49548 J23230146 | 7



Control Systems Equipment: $2,221.24
OFE OFE DMPS3-4K-150 1 $0.00 $0.00
Netgear | M14250 2664FM'T\IOSE PLUSPLUS| $2,221.24 $2,221.24
Installation Materials: $282.36
CTI CTI Supplied Wall Plates 3 $94.12 $282.36

CONFIDENTIAL

| WWW.CTI.COM

3883 Linden Ave SE Wyoming, MI 49548

210
J23230146 | 8



Standard Disclaimer

CTI provides for twelve (12) months of CTI Complete on all system purchases. CTI warrants the
system implemented is free from defects in material and workmanship, in accordance with the
contract, drawings, specifications, alterations and additions thereto, for a period of twelve (12)
months from the date of commencement of use, substantial completion, or date of notice of
completion, whichever occurs first. This coverage does not protect against consumables, severe
weather, and acts of God.

Terms

Installation Description and Requirements

Provided by CTI: If installation is purchased, CTI will install all A/V components. CTI will also
perform all programming, alignments, and end-user training. CTI will provide A/V project
management, and provide drawings as required. This install price assumes a Monday through
Friday 8:00am to 5:00pm install time. Room availability must be in consecutive 8-hour blocks.
Any required changes or rushes may affect the final price.

Provided by Others

Electrical requirements are to be provided by others unless specifically included in CTIl Scope of
Work.

Statement

This system proposal is the property of CTI and is delivered with the sole intent of being viewed
by management of Oshtemo Township for evaluation purposes only. This proposal or any part of
this proposal is not to be presented to, or viewed by any other party, vendor or CTI competitor
without the written consent of CTI Any effort to do so will be considered a violation of copyright
law.

| WWW.CTI.COM 211

CONFIDENTIAL 3883 Linden Ave SE Wyoming, Ml 49548 J23230146 | 9



Next Steps

1. Upon Notice to Proceed, CTI will begin executing the project plan with an internal
handoff of the project to our operations team.

2. If you have questions about the process as we move forward, please contact me at
john.lawrence@cti.com or .

3. You will be contacted by a CTI Project Manager to schedule a project kickoff meeting
to review the project scope and schedule.

J23230146 - $129,014.72

Customer Signature CTI Signature
Printed Name Printed Name
Title Title
Date Date

212

| WWW.CTI.COM J23230146 | 10

CONFIDENTIAL 3883 Linden Ave SE Wyoming, MI 49548



Memorandum

Date: September 12th, 2023 O S hte m o

CHARTER TOWNSHIP

To: Township Board . Established 1839 .
From: Zach Pearson, Public Works Project Manager
Subject: Croyden Ave Restoration

Obijective

Receive Township Board approval to award the contract for greenspace restoration along Croyden Ave to ProTurf
Management LLC ($5,525.98 plus $300.00 for watering, total cost $5,825.98)

Background
Public Works has previously completed a sidewalk project connecting Drake Rd. to Maple Hill Dr. that included

streetlight installation. Restoration of the greenspace between the sidewalk and the back of the curb for the road was
completed as part of the process. The area outside the walk was largely left undisturbed with the original intent being to
contract with the Kalamazoo Nature Center to install native prairie grasses. It was subsequently determined the area’s
limited extent was inappropriate for prairie grasses. Additionally, the existing scrub brush and other vegetation has started
to intrude over the walk, creating a state that is not easily maintained by the Oshtemo Maintenance department due to ruts
and grading issues.

In partnership with the Parks and Maintenance departments, Public Works solicited bids for the proper restoration needed
along Croyden Ave to provide a mowable surface adjacent to the outside of the sidewalk. Three (3) contractors provided
bids: Naylor Landscape Management, Niewoonder & Sons Landscape, and ProTurf Management LLC.

ProTurf Management LLC is the low bidder at $5,525.98 with an option for watering the newly seeded area for $300
($150 per occurrence.) Public Works, Parks, and Maintenance recommend proceeding with ProTurf Management LLC
and the option for watering. No additional funds are requested for this project. Costs will be split between Public Works
and the Parks Department. Public Works funds will come from 101-506-97600.PLATSW Capital Outlay for Local Street
Sidewalk repair & maintenance. Parks Department funds will come from 101-756-93100 Maintenance Services.

STATEMENT OF WHAT YOU ARE ASKING BOARD TO APPROVE
Approval to spend $5,825.98 from 101-506-97600.PLATSW ($2,912.99) and 101-756-93100 Maintenance Services
($2,912.99) to complete the restoration of greenspace along the Croyden Ave sidewalk.

Attachments

Naylor Landscape Management bid
Niewoonder & Sons Landscape bid
ProTurf Management LLC bid.

7275 W. Main Street, Kalamazoo, M1 49009, (269) 216-5220, Fax (269) 375-7180, www.oshtemo.org

213



. Proposal
NAYLOR 4zngss2s. le)r:‘%%}“s

Naylor Landscape Management, Inc.

Client Name: Oshtemo Township

Project Name: Oshtemo Township Sidewalks along Croyden-Landscape Install

Jobsite Address: 927 North Drake Road Kalamazoo, Michigan Biling Address: 7275 West Main Street Kalamazoo, Mi
49006 49009

Estimate ID: EST3457215

Date: Sep 15, 2022

DESCRIPTION

We propose to furnish all labor, materials, and equipment to complete the work described herein. All work is to be completed in a
workmanlike manner according to standard practices in accordance with the corresponding specifications and drawings (if
applicable). All work and materials will be warranted as specified in Naylor Landscape Management’s ferms and conditions, unless
stated otherwise.

We do our best to calculate the appropriate amount of soil for the completion of your project. Occasionally we need to use more soil
than we calculate. This shortage may be due to some of the following plus other unknown conditions, underground debris, bad sails,
rocks, or difficult estimating situations. If a substantial amount of additional soil is needed additional charges may apply.

IRRIGATION & PRIVATE UTILITIES: If you advise us as to where the private utilities and irrigation lines run, we will try to protect them.
However, sometimes there is a conflict that can not be avoided. When this happens Naylor will repair irigation damage on a time and
material basis. Other utilities will apprise you of the damage and coordinate with the contractor you would like to repair the utility. Naylor
is not responsible for the cost incurred to repair the damaged ufility.

PUBLIC UTILITIES: Naylor will contact MISS DIG and have all public utilities marked when required for digging underground.

Brush hog & Harley rake along side walk-Install Lawn along Croyden Ave $14,114.42

Brush hog, fill in ruts, level & seed along side walk-Croyden Ave

Includes preparing seed base as required, fine grading, seeding, fertilizing and applying hydro mulch or mulch pellets.

45 cu.yd. Yard Blend Topsoil - cu. yd. This is processed topsoil from Mulder's delivered to the
shop bulk bin. Dave is not getting soil from KLS. Mulder's
soil costs more than KLS. | updated price w/Mulder's

price.
40 lbs. Quallity Grounds Turf Seed Mix - 25  Quality Grounds Turf Seed Mix
Ib. bag
35 lbs. Starter Fertilizer - 50 Ib. bag 16-32-3 6% Sulfur Coated Starter fertilizer specifically
blended for establishing new lawns
5 each Profile 70/30 Blend Hydro Mulch -
Nu-Wool 50/50 Hydro Mulch with
Tackifier.
4 Bag LESCO CarbonPro-G Soil Optimizer
- LESCO CarbonPro-G Soil
Optimizer
Subtotal $14,114.42
1300 South 8th Street p. 269-375-0084 www.naylorlandscape.com
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 f. 269-375-0363 email: bnaylor@naylorlandscape.com
Oshtemo Township Sidewalks along Croyden-Landscape Install [EST3457215] Page 1 of 5

214



Taxes $9.20

Estimate Total $14,123.62

We are a full-service maintenance and landscaping company and offer the following services that would go well with your quoted
project.

CORE SERVICES (must select a minimum of three services).

Weekly Lawn Mowing with Edging (we don't do bi-weekly mowing, 1 x mows or short term mowing)
*Lawn Care Program — 4 Applications (standalone service)

*Chemical Weeding — 4 Applications

*Garden Bed Maintenance — Weekly, Bi-Weekly or Monthly (standalone service w/chemical weeding)
Spring Clean-up (1 Occurrence)

Fall Clean-up (up to 2 Occurrences)

Shrub Pruning — 2 Occurrences

Mulch Garden Beds (1 Occurrence)

*Services that don't require the minimum

OTHER SERVICES (in addition to the 3-core services) Pricing available upon request:

Aeration

Overseeding

Beach Clean-up — Weekly, Bi-Weekly or Monthly

Lawn Shrub Tree Care

Mulch Garden Beds

Preventative Grub Control (in conjunction with Lawn Care Program)

Spring/Fall Flowers

Irrigation Service: Start-up. Winterization, Mid-Season Check, Repair

Snow Removal Services (Plowing, Sidewalks, Salting) **Must have a maintenance contract with us**

Holiday Decorating ($1200 Minimum)

TERMS & CONDITIONS

PAYMENTS AND DISBURSEMENTS: Client is responsible for obtaining any financing he deems necessary to comply with this Agreement. If
Client is obtaining financing from a third party, Client agrees to apply for such financing without delay and this Agreement is subject to
Client being approved for such financing. All payments are due and payable as specified in the proposal. In the event any portion of
the payment is not paid when due or any bill is not paid within 30 days of its date, such amounts owing will bear a 2.0% service charge
and in addition Naylor Landscape Management, Inc. reserves the right to cancel this agreement. Client is liable for all legal and
collection fees on unpaid accounts.

1300 South 8th Street p. 269-375-0084 www.naylorlandscape.com
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 f. 269-375-0363 email: bnaylor@naylorlandscape.com
Oshtemo Township Sidewalks along Croyden-Landscape Install [EST3457215] Page 2 of 5

215



It is hereby provided that the fitle to all material to be furnished to the Client by Naylor Landscape Management, Inc., shall be and
remain in Naylor Landscape Management, Inc. until all sums of money called for in this proposal have been fully paid, and that until said
sums are so paid said materials shall (by our acceptance here of we agree) remain personal and movable property in whatsoever
manner they may be annexed to realty; that in case of default in the payment provided in this proposal, Naylor Landscape
Management, Inc. is authorized to enter said premises and take possession of and remove said materials at any time.

Michigan law entitles Naylor Landscape Management, Inc. fo file a mechanics lien to secure payment for the labor and/or materials
provided. The failure to pay the amount indicated in this proposal upon completion may result in the filing a mechanics lien upon the
property. No lien will be released until the amount due, accrued interest, and a processing and release fee in the amount of $50.00 is all
paid in full.

LABOR AND MATERIALS: Contractor agrees to furnish the materials for the project and complete the work to be done in a workmanlike
manner. All materials furnished under this Agreement shall be construction grade and meet industry standards. Where brand names
have been specified, Contractor may at his option select substitutes when such substitutions are due to unavailability or other
circumstances beyond Contractor’s control. All substitutions shall be consistent in quality and character to the selections previously
specified. Contractor shall pay all subcontractors, laborers, and material suppliers.

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS: It is understood that when matching existing conditions such as color, size, planes and texture, Contractor will
provide materials so as to match, as closely as possible, the existing materials. However, Confractor does not guarantee materials will
match existing conditions.

DISCLAIMED WORK: No painting, staining, soil testing, surveying or engineering is included in this Agreement unless expressly specified.
Contractor is not responsible for any abnormal or unusual pre-existing conditions including, but not limited to, damage caused by
termites or dry rot, filled ground of ground of inadequate bearing capacity, rock and other material not removable by ordinary hand
tools, inadequate electrical wiring systems for load imposed by the work under this Agreement, and plumbing, gas, waste and waterlines
not shown on documents or plans furnished by Client. Correction of any such violations or abnormal conditions by Contractor shall be
considered additional work.

ADDITIONAL WORK: Contractor shall promptly noftify Client of any additional requirements necessary to facilitate the project’s
completion. Any additional work required or ordered by Client (or any regulatory agency having jurisdiction over the project) shall be set
forth in a sighed change order, and the agreed price shall become due and payable as agreed upon between Contractor and Client.
Contractor, his employees, subcontractors and agents are unauthorized to perform any additional work or to enter into any agreement
to perform additional work unless agreed to in writing by Client and Contractor through a properly executed change order, which shall
become an integral part of this Agreement. Additional requirements due to unforeseen site conditions will also be considered additional
work. Incidental damage or reconfiguration and/or resulting repair to irrigation systems or private utilities brought upon by the work or is
necessary fo complete the work will be considered additional work. It is the Client’s responsibility to notify Contractor and mark irrigation
systems and private utilities prior to start of work.

PROPERTY RIGHTS AND RESTRICTIONS: Client represents that he owns the property described as “property address,” or has authority to
order and sign for work. Client shall locate and point out the boundary lines of the property to Contractor. Client shall be solely
responsible for accuracy of markers and boundary lines indicated to Contractor and as detailed on plans and specifications approved
by Client. If aland survey is required for any reason to confirm markers or boundary lines the Client agrees to pay for such survey. Prior to
the start of construction, Client shall give Contractor a copy of any restrictions, easements or rights of way relating to the property.

ACCESS AND FACILITIES: Client agrees to provide free access to work areas for workers and vehicles, and to provide areas to store
materials and debris. Unless otherwise specified, all water, sewer, gas and electric utilities from the servicing agency to the point of entry
at Client’s property line (or to the metering device if such devices are required) are the responsibility of Client. Client agrees, at Client’s
expense, to provide electricity at the project site as may be required by Contractor.

START, DELAY AND COMPLETION OF WORK: Contractor agrees fo commence work and to continue to work in a fimely fashion so as to
insure the projects consistent development and ultimate completion. Contractor is bound by the terms and conditions regarding start of
work imposed by any licensing or regulatory agency having jurisdiction over the project. Contractor shall not be held responsible for
project delays caused by “acts of God", civil unrest, acts of Client or Client’s agent, inclement weather, strikes, labor disputes, material
shortages, licensing or regulatory agency inspections, or any other actions beyond the Contractor’'s control. Client acknowledges
liability for delay damages and/or trip costs caused by their failure to provide access to the premises, to promptly respond to selection
requests or any other interference with the project. It is the client’s responsibility to request and acquire all necessary building permits and
any necessary landscape plan approval from their neighborhood association prior to start of work.

CANCELLATION CLAUSE: Option of Client to terminate contract in the event of Contractor’s failure to complete work. If the Contractor
shall refuse to or fail to perform the work with such diligence and force as specified in this contract, or shall fail to complete said work in a
timely manner, or if Contractor does not perform the work in a professional manner according to green industry standards, Client
reserves the right to give written notice to the Contractor of its intention to terminate this contract unless said violations of the
specifications are corrected within ten (10) working days after serving of said notice. If after ten (10) working days the violations have not
been corrected or satisfactory arrangements for the completion thereof made, this contract may, at the option of the Client, be
terminated. In the event of termination, payment in full for all services performed to date by the terminated Contractor shall be made

1300 South 8th Street p. 269-375-0084 www.naylorlandscape.com
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 f. 269-375-0363 email: bnaylor@naylorlandscape.com
Oshtemo Township Sidewalks along Croyden-Landscape Install [EST3457215] Page 3 of 5

216



immediately at the time of termination. Option of Contractor to terminate contract in the event of Clients failure to make timely
payments as specified or to abide by all terms and conditions as outlined by this Agreement hereto, also, but not limited to any actions
by the client to circumvent, interrupt or otherwise, any relationship with a subcontractor and the Contractor. The Contractor’s option to
terminate will be immediate and communicated in writing.

DAMAGE AND INSURANCE: Contractor agrees to carry worker's compensation and general liability insurance to insure the Client against
damages or defects caused by Confractor, his employees, or any agents acting in his behalf. A valid insurance certificate will be
furnished upon request.

QUALITY ASSURANCE REPORT: It is further understood that any/all completed work provided by Naylor Landscape Management, Inc.
under contract and/or billed on a time and material basis will include a Quality Assurance Report (QAR) and will be compiled at the
completion of all work. Furthermore, the Client agrees by virtue of their acceptance of this contract to make themselves or a
representative available, at a time of their convenience, at the completion of the specified work to do a final inspection of the
performed confractual services and to signh the QAR acknowledging all work has been completed and the contract and all
specifications thereof have been met by Naylor Landscape Management, Inc.

MISCELLANEQOUS: Confractor may subcontract all or any portion of the work and may assign this Agreement to another Contractor,
provided such assignments shall not affect the rights and privileges of Client under this Agreement. In case one or more of the provisions
of this Agreement or any application thereof shall be invalid, unenforceable or illegal, the validity, enforceability and legality of the
remaining provisions and any other application thereof shall not in any way be impaired thereby. If any legal action shall be instituted to
interpret or enforce this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all litigation costs, including reasonable attorneys’
fees. It is agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of
Michigan.

LIMITED WARRANTY: Naylor Landscape Management, Inc. guarantees all plant material, sodding, and workmanship subject fo the
following conditions:

. Failure by Client to pay by the terms set forth herein will cause the warranty provided by Naylor Landscape Management, Inc.
to become null and void.

. All plant material shall be in vigorous condition at date of planting, and unless otherwise specified carry a 100% guarantee for
one year following the date of installation. Within that first year, one replacement will be made for any unsatisfactory plant
materials. Labor and delivery fees are part of this warranty. This is a limited warranty because the client is responsible for the
care of the plants in order to assure survival. Transplanted plants, bulbs, annuals and hybrid tea roses are not a part of this
guarantee. Please note, however, that Contractor is not liable under this limited warranty for actual or consequential damage
from “acts of God,"” excessive weather conditions(extreme cold/drought, windstorm, etc.), soil conditions, abuse, vandalism,
insufficient/improper watering, poor drainage, salt damage, herbivorous animals, insect damage or disease, plants supplied by
Contractor and installed by Client, plants supplied by Client and installed by Contfractor and any other factors beyond the
control of the Confractor.

. All hardscape areas (decks, brick walkways and patios, retaining walls, etc.) have a 100% guarantee for two years following
date of installation. Within the first two years if for any reason the hardscape fails under normal use due to workmanship, we will
repair and/or replace as necessary. Hardscapes on new construction sites will not be warranted for settlement unless subsoil
has been allowed to settle for a minimum of one year or proof is provided that the sub soils are undisturbed and/or have been
adequately compacted.

. Naylor Landscape Management is not responsible for lawn seeding failures due to the numerous conditions required to grow
grass that are beyond our control (i.e. under watering, over watering, torrential downpours, wash outs, lack of light, excessive
wind, fungus, drought, heat stress, insect infestations, existing weed seed, soil contamination, vandalism such as foot traffic,
auto traffic, etc.) We will re-seed any areas that are thin or fail to fill in within eight weeks at an additional cost upon your
request. An optional seeding warranty and aftercare program is available upon client’s request. This program is only available
prior to completion of seeding work and is generally not available for small repairs or patch work.

. Under no circumstances will Contractor refund money in lieu of our warranty (ies).

. This limited standard warranty extends only to the Client and is not transferable.

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

The above prices and specifications are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. Naylor Landscape Management, Inc. and agents
working on its behalf are authorized to do the work as specified. Payments will be made as outlined above and as per Naylor
Landscape Management's terms and conditions. | have read, understood and agree to the Naylor Landscape Management, Inc.’s
terms and conditions provided on the back of this proposal.

DEPOSIT & PAYMENT

A 50% deposit is required fo schedule and start the job. Naylor reserves the right to bill progress payments for any work completed by the
end of each month whether or not the entire project is complete. This will become due upon receipt of progress invoice. The remaining
balance of payment will become due on completion of the work.

1300 South 8th Street p. 269-375-0084 www.naylorlandscape.com
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 f. 269-375-0363 email: bnaylor@naylorlandscape.com
Oshtemo Township Sidewalks along Croyden-Landscape Install [EST3457215] Page 4 of 5

217



Estimate authorized by: Estimate approved by:

Company Representative Customer Representative
Signature Date: Signature Date:
1300 South 8th Street p. 269-375-0084 www.naylorlandscape.com
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 f. 269-375-0363 email: bnaylor@naylorlandscape.com
Oshtemo Township Sidewalks along Croyden-Landscape Install [EST3457215] Page 5 of 5

218



. Proposal
NAYLOR 4zngss2s. le)résé%}“s

Naylor Landscape Management, Inc.

Client Name: Oshtemo Township

Project Name: Oshtemo Township Sidewalks along Croyden-Landscape Install

Jobsite Address: 927 North Drake Road Kalamazoo, Michigan Biling Address: 7275 West Main Street Kalamazoo, Mi
49006 49009

Estimate ID: EST3457215

Date: Sep 15, 2022

DESCRIPTION

We propose to furnish all labor, materials, and equipment to complete the work described herein. All work is to be completed in a
workmanlike manner according to standard practices in accordance with the corresponding specifications and drawings (if
applicable). All work and materials will be warranted as specified in Naylor Landscape Management’s ferms and conditions, unless
stated otherwise.

We do our best to calculate the appropriate amount of soil for the completion of your project. Occasionally we need to use more soil
than we calculate. This shortage may be due to some of the following plus other unknown conditions, underground debris, bad sails,
rocks, or difficult estimating situations. If a substantial amount of additional soil is needed additional charges may apply.

IRRIGATION & PRIVATE UTILITIES: If you advise us as to where the private utilities and irrigation lines run, we will try to protect them.
However, sometimes there is a conflict that can not be avoided. When this happens Naylor will repair irigation damage on a time and
material basis. Other utilities will apprise you of the damage and coordinate with the contractor you would like to repair the utility. Naylor
is not responsible for the cost incurred to repair the damaged ufility.

PUBLIC UTILITIES: Naylor will contact MISS DIG and have all public utilities marked when required for digging underground.

Imigate new lawn area along Croyden Ave-5x/wk for 3 weeks $6,906.30
Irigate new lawn area along Croyden Boulevard
New lawn after care program & warranty $735.35

New lawn after care program

Includes two (2) follow-up fertilizations approximately 30-days apart and up to two (2) follow-up seedings of bare and thin if necessary. If
weeds exceed 20% they will be freated with the appropriate weed control product. If topsoil is required to repair washouts, rill or areas
that have settled, it will be charged additionally at $70.00 per cu. yd. delivered , spread and fine graded. Lawn mowing and watering are
to be done by the client per NLM instruction and is not included.

76 lbs. Follow-Up Fertilizer - 22-10-6
Follow-Up Fertilizer
76 lbs. Round 2-4 Fertilizer - 50 Ib. bag -
Anderson 25-0-3 NSN Fertilizer
19.235 1000 sq. ft. LSTC Lawn Care Program Fertilizer

& Weed Control Products - 4
Application Program

10 each Miscellaneous After Care Seeding
Materials - Materials used to reseed

1300 South 8th Street p. 269-375-0084 www.naylorlandscape.com
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 f. 269-375-0363 email: bnaylor@naylorlandscape.com
Oshtemo Township Sidewalks along Croyden-Landscape Install [EST3457215] Page 1 of 5

219



bare areas and control weed gr

Subtotal $7.641.65
Taxes $0.00
Estimate Total $7,641.65

We are a full-service maintenance and landscaping company and offer the following services that would go well with your quoted
project.

CORE SERVICES (must select a minimum of three services).

Weekly Lawn Mowing with Edging (we don't do bi-weekly mowing, 1 x mows or short term mowing)
*Lawn Care Program - 4 Applications (standalone service)

*Chemical Weeding — 4 Applications

*Garden Bed Maintenance — Weekly, Bi-Weekly or Monthly (standalone service w/chemical weeding)
Spring Clean-up (1 Occurrence)

Fall Clean-up (up to 2 Occurrences)

Shrub Pruning — 2 Occurrences

Mulch Garden Beds (1 Occurrence)

*Services that don't require the minimum

OTHER SERVICES (in addition to the 3-core services) Pricing available upon request:

Aeration

Overseeding

Beach Clean-up — Weekly, Bi-Weekly or Monthly

Lawn Shrub Tree Care

Mulch Garden Beds

Preventative Grub Control (in conjunction with Lawn Care Program)

Spring/Fall Flowers

Irrigation Service: Start-up. Winterization, Mid-Season Check, Repair

Snow Removal Services (Plowing, Sidewalks, Salting) **Must have a maintenance confract with us**

Holiday Decorating ($1200 Minimum)

TERMS & CONDITIONS

PAYMENTS AND DISBURSEMENTS: Client is responsible for obtaining any financing he deems necessary to comply with this Agreement. If
Client is obtaining financing from a third party, Client agrees to apply for such financing without delay and this Agreement is subject to
Client being approved for such financing. All payments are due and payable as specified in the proposal. In the event any portion of

1300 South 8th Street p. 269-375-0084 www.naylorlandscape.com
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 f. 269-375-0363 email: bnaylor@naylorlandscape.com
Oshtemo Township Sidewalks along Croyden-Landscape Install [EST3457215] Page 2 of 5

220



the payment is not paid when due or any bill is not paid within 30 days of its date, such amounts owing will bear a 2.0% service charge
and in addition Naylor Landscape Management, Inc. reserves the right to cancel this agreement. Client is liable for all legal and
collection fees on unpaid accounts.

It is hereby provided that the title to all material to be furnished to the Client by Naylor Landscape Management, Inc., shall be and
remain in Naylor Landscape Management, Inc. until all sums of money called for in this proposal have been fully paid, and that until said
sums are so paid said materials shall (by our acceptance here of we agree) remain personal and movable property in whatsoever
manner they may be annexed to realty; that in case of default in the payment provided in this proposal, Naylor Landscape
Management, Inc. is authorized to enter said premises and take possession of and remove said materials at any time.

Michigan law entitles Naylor Landscape Management, Inc. to file a mechanics lien to secure payment for the labor and/or materials
provided. The failure to pay the amount indicated in this proposal upon completion may result in the filing a mechanics lien upon the
property. No lien will be released until the amount due, accrued interest, and a processing and release fee in the amount of $50.00 is all
paid in full.

LABOR AND MATERIALS: Contractor agrees to furnish the materials for the project and complete the work to be done in a workmanlike
manner. All materials furnished under this Agreement shall be construction grade and meet industry standards. Where brand names
have been specified, Contractor may at his option select substitutes when such substitutions are due to unavailability or other
circumstances beyond Contractor’s control. All substitutions shall be consistent in quality and character to the selections previously
specified. Contractor shall pay all subcontractors, laborers, and material suppliers.

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS: It is understood that when matching existing conditions such as color, size, planes and texture, Contractor will
provide materials so as to match, as closely as possible, the existing materials. However, Confractor does not guarantee materials will
match existing conditions.

DISCLAIMED WORK: No painting, staining, soil testing, surveying or engineering is included in this Agreement unless expressly specified.
Contractor is not responsible for any abnormal or unusual pre-existing conditions including, but not limited to, damage caused by
termites or dry rot, filled ground of ground of inadequate bearing capacity, rock and other material not removable by ordinary hand
tools, inadequate electrical wiring systems for load imposed by the work under this Agreement, and plumbing, gas, waste and waterlines
not shown on documents or plans furnished by Client. Correction of any such violations or abnormal conditions by Contractor shall be
considered additional work.

ADDITIONAL WORK: Contractor shall promptly nofify Client of any additional requirements necessary to facilitate the project’s
completion. Any additional work required or ordered by Client (or any regulatory agency having jurisdiction over the project) shall be set
forth in a sighed change order, and the agreed price shall become due and payable as agreed upon between Contractor and Client.
Contractor, his employees, subcontractors and agents are unauthorized to perform any additional work or to enter info any agreement
to perform additional work unless agreed to in writing by Client and Contractor through a properly executed change order, which shall
become an integral part of this Agreement. Additional requirements due to unforeseen site conditions will also be considered additional
work. Incidental damage or reconfiguration and/or resulting repair to irrigation systems or private utilities brought upon by the work or is
necessary to complete the work will be considered additional work. It is the Client's responsibility to notify Contractor and mark irrigation
systems and private utilities prior to start of work.

PROPERTY RIGHTS AND RESTRICTIONS: Client represents that he owns the property described as “property address,” or has authority to
order and sign for work. Client shall locate and point out the boundary lines of the property to Contractor. Client shall be solely
responsible for accuracy of markers and boundary lines indicated to Contractor and as detailed on plans and specifications approved
by Client. If aland survey is required for any reason to confirm markers or boundary lines the Client agrees to pay for such survey. Prior to
the start of construction, Client shall give Contractor a copy of any restrictions, easements or rights of way relating to the property.

ACCESS AND FACILITIES: Client agrees to provide free access to work areas for workers and vehicles, and to provide areas fo store
materials and debris. Unless otherwise specified, all water, sewer, gas and electric utilities from the servicing agency to the point of entry
at Client’s property line (or to the metering device if such devices are required) are the responsibility of Client. Client agrees, at Client's
expense, to provide electricity at the project site as may be required by Contractor.

START, DELAY AND COMPLETION OF WORK: Contractor agrees to commence work and fo continue to work in a timely fashion so as to
insure the projects consistent development and ultimate completion. Contractor is bound by the terms and conditions regarding start of
work imposed by any licensing or regulatory agency having jurisdiction over the project. Contractor shall not be held responsible for
project delays caused by “acts of God", civil unrest, acts of Client or Client’s agent, inclement weather, strikes, labor disputes, material
shortages, licensing or regulatory agency inspections, or any other actions beyond the Contractor’'s control. Client acknowledges
liability for delay damages and/or trip costs caused by their failure to provide access to the premises, to promptly respond to selection
requests or any other interference with the project. It is the client’s responsibility to request and acquire all necessary building permits and
any necessary landscape plan approval from their neighborhood association prior to start of work.

CANCELLATION CLAUSE: Option of Client to terminate confract in the event of Contractor’s failure to complete work. If the Contractor
shall refuse to or fail to perform the work with such diligence and force as specified in this contract, or shall fail to complete said work in a
timely manner, or if Contractor does not perform the work in a professional manner according to green industry standards, Client

1300 South 8th Street p. 269-375-0084 www.naylorlandscape.com
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 f. 269-375-0363 email: bnaylor@naylorlandscape.com
Oshtemo Township Sidewalks along Croyden-Landscape Install [EST3457215] Page 3 of 5

221



reserves the right to give written noftice to the Contractor of its intention to terminate this contract unless said violations of the
specifications are corrected within ten (10) working days after serving of said notice. If after ten (10) working days the violations have not
been corrected or satisfactory arrangements for the completion thereof made, this contract may, at the option of the Client, be
terminated. In the event of termination, payment in full for all services performed to date by the terminated Contractor shall be made
immediately at the time of termination. Option of Contractor to terminate contract in the event of Clients failure to make timely
payments as specified or to abide by all terms and conditions as outlined by this Agreement hereto, also, but not limited to any actions
by the client to circumvent, interrupt or otherwise, any relationship with a subcontractor and the Contractor. The Contractor’s option to
terminate will be immediate and communicated in writing.

DAMAGE AND INSURANCE: Contractor agrees to carry worker's compensation and general liability insurance to insure the Client against
damages or defects caused by Contractor, his employees, or any agents acting in his behalf. A valid insurance certificate will be
furnished upon request.

QUALITY ASSURANCE REPORT: It is further understood that any/all completed work provided by Naylor Landscape Management, Inc.
under confract and/or billed on a time and material basis will include a Quality Assurance Report (QAR) and will be compiled at the
completion of all work. Furthermore, the Client agrees by virtue of their acceptance of this contract to make themselves or a
representative available, at a fime of their convenience, at the completion of the specified work to do a final inspection of the
performed confractual services and to sign the QAR acknowledging all work has been completed and the confract and all
specifications thereof have been met by Naylor Landscape Management, Inc.

MISCELLANEQOUS: Confractor may subcontract all or any portion of the work and may assign this Agreement to another Contractor,
provided such assignments shall not affect the rights and privileges of Client under this Agreement. In case one or more of the provisions
of this Agreement or any application thereof shall be invalid, unenforceable or illegal, the validity, enforceability and legality of the
remaining provisions and any other application thereof shall not in any way be impaired thereby. If any legal action shall be instituted to
interpret or enforce this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all litigation costs, including reasonable attorneys’
fees. It is agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of
Michigan.

LIMITED WARRANTY: Naylor Landscape Management, Inc. guarantees all plant material, sodding, and workmanship subject to the
following conditions:

. Failure by Client to pay by the terms set forth herein will cause the warranty provided by Naylor Landscape Management, Inc.
to become null and void.

. All plant material shall be in vigorous condition at date of planting, and unless otherwise specified carry a 100% guarantee for
one year following the date of installation. Within that first year, one replacement will be made for any unsatisfactory plant
materials. Labor and delivery fees are part of this warranty. This is a limited warranty because the client is responsible for the
care of the plants in order to assure survival. Transplanted plants, bulbs, annuals and hybrid tea roses are not a part of this
guarantee. Please note, however, that Contractor is not liable under this limited warranty for actual or consequential damage
from "acts of God,” excessive weather conditions(extreme cold/drought, windstorm, etc.), soil conditions, abuse, vandalism,
insufficient/improper watering, poor drainage, salt damage, herbivorous animals, insect damage or disease, plants supplied by
Contractor and installed by Client, plants supplied by Client and installed by Contractor and any other factors beyond the
control of the Contractor.

. All hardscape areas (decks, brick walkways and patios, retaining walls, etc.) have a 100% guarantee for two years following
date of installation. Within the first two years if for any reason the hardscape fails under normal use due to workmanship, we will
repair and/or replace as necessary. Hardscapes on new construction sites will not be warranted for settlement unless subsoil
has been allowed to settle for a minimum of one year or proof is provided that the sub soils are undisturbed and/or have been
adequately compacted.

. Naylor Landscape Management is not responsible for lawn seeding failures due to the numerous conditions required to grow
grass that are beyond our conftrol (i.e. under watering, over watering, torrential downpours, wash outs, lack of light, excessive
wind, fungus, drought, heat stress, insect infestations, existing weed seed, soil contamination, vandalism such as foot traffic,
auto traffic, etc.) We will re-seed any areas that are thin or fail to fill in within eight weeks at an additional cost upon your
request. An optional seeding warranty and aftercare program is available upon client’s request. This program is only available
prior to completion of seeding work and is generally not available for small repairs or patch work.

. Under no circumstances will Contractor refund money in lieu of our warranty (ies).

. This limited standard warranty extends only to the Client and is not transferable.

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

The above prices and specifications are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. Naylor Landscape Management, Inc. and agents
working on its behalf are authorized to do the work as specified. Payments will be made as outlined above and as per Naylor
Landscape Management's terms and conditions. | have read, understood and agree to the Naylor Landscape Management, Inc.’s
terms and conditions provided on the back of this proposal.

DEPOSIT & PAYMENT

A 50% deposit is required to schedule and start the job. Naylor reserves the right to bill progress payments for any work completed by the

1300 South 8th Street p. 269-375-0084 www.naylorlandscape.com
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 f. 269-375-0363 email: bnaylor@naylorlandscape.com
Oshtemo Township Sidewalks along Croyden-Landscape Install [EST3457215] Page 4 of 5

222



end of each month whether or not the entire project is complete. This will become due upon receipt of progress invoice. The remaining
balance of payment will become due on completion of the work.

Estimate authorized by: Estimate approved by:

Company Representative Customer Representative
Signature Date: Signature Date:
1300 South 8th Street p. 269-375-0084 www.naylorlandscape.com
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 f. 269-375-0363 email: bnaylor@naylorlandscape.com
Oshtemo Township Sidewalks along Croyden-Landscape Install [EST3457215] Page 5 of 5

223



E. Niewoonder & Sons Landscape
2319 N. Drake Rd.
Kalamazoo, MI 49009

Oshtemo Township

Attn; Zack Pearson

Re; lawn seeding at Croyden St. sidewalks

Date 8-22-2022

Discussed with Greg Fountain and Zach Pearson at site.
Brushhog existing weeds in specific areas (6' from curb and new sidewalk edge)
Topdress rough areas (budget 20 yards)
Grade for maintainable lawn maintenance

Hydroseed with rye-fescue seed mix

Mow, topdresss and seed area near retention pond

Total Proposal $ 9,500.00

Thank you,

Ed Niewoonder

224



Lawn Care & Snow Plowing ) ANDSCAPE PROPOSAL

Prolurf,

Kalamazoo MI 49009 Sote Proposal #
8/20/2023 7209
Name / Address Office Phone # 269-353-7666
Oshtemo Charter Township Web Site www.proturfmanagement.com
Contact Email

Dave Timmer: landscape/irrigation

. dave@proturfmanagement.com
construction @p &

Cell Phone # 269-492-2263

Service Address

We agree to furnish labor, material, supplies and equipment- complete in accordance with the Terms
specifications below:
Net 15
Item Description Qty Rate Total
Landscape Crew Labor Brush hog area that hasn't been mowed approx 2 150.00 300.00
490x20'
Area from Drake road to exit
Landscape Crew Labor Spray area that is to be Harley raked and rock 17000 0.012 204.00
hounded
Landscape Crew Labor Harley rake and rock hound area to prep for 17000 0.08 1,360.00
hydroseed
Landscape Crew Labor spread topsoil 2 150.00 300.00
Processed Top Soil 10 33.50 335.00
Delivery 1 60.00 60.00
50% Deposit required for work to be scheduled Total:

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

I authorize ProTurf Management LLC to do the specified work; payment will be made as outlined above.
I fully understand this proposal and accept it as written.

Signature: Date

Please return one signed copy of this proposal within 15 days. A financial charge of 2% (Annual Rate of 24%) or a minimum service of $5.00 will
be applied to all past due accounts. All work shall be professionally performed in accordance with industry standards. We are fully insured.

e

Authofized Signature for ProTurf Management LLC

Page 1 225




Prolurf,

Lawn Care & Snow Plowing
6219 W Main St

LANDSCAPE PROPOSAL

Kalamazoo MI 49009 Sote Proposal #
8/20/2023 7209
Name / Address Office Phone # 269-353-7666
Oshtemo Charter Township Web Site www.proturfmanagement.com
Contact Email

Dave Timmer: landscape/irrigation
construction

dave@proturfmanagement.com

Cell Phone # 269-492-2263

Service Address

We agree to furnish labor, material, supplies and equipment- complete in accordance with the Terms
specifications below:
Net 15
Item Description Qty Rate Total
10,001-20,000sf Hydroseeding: Mulch, tack, seed, fertilizer- Tall 17000 0.16 2,720.00
fescue blend
Note: If we have a major rain storm and all your
hydroseed washes out we will respray at 50% of
the original cost.
We will perform a touchup spray up to 10% of the
original square footage at no additional cost.
Landscape Crew Labor install erosion control 1 150.00 150.00
Erosion Blanket 8' x 112.5' 2 48.49 96.98
50% Deposit required for work to be scheduled Total:| $5,525.98

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

I authorize ProTurf Management LLC to do the specified work; payment will be made as outlined above.
I fully understand this proposal and accept it as written.

Signature:

Date

Please return one signed copy of this proposal within 15 days. A financial charge of 2% (Annual Rate of 24%) or a minimum service of $5.00 will
be applied to all past due accounts. All work shall be professionally performed in accordance with industry standards. We are fully insured.

e

Authofized Signature for ProTurf

Management LLC

Page 2

226




6219 W Main St

Prolurf,

Lawn Care & Snow Plowing LAN DSCAPE PROPOSAL

Kalamazoo MI 49009 Sote Proposal #
8/23/2023 7217
Name / Address Office Phone # 269-353-7666
Oshtemo Charter Township Web Site www.proturfmanagement.com
Contact Email

Dave Timmer: landscape/irrigation
construction

dave@proturfmanagement.com

Cell Phone #

269-492-2263

Service Address

We agree to furnish labor, material, supplies and equipment- complete in accordance with the Terms
specifications below: Net 15
Item Description Qty Rate Total
Landscape Crew Labor Per time price to water 17,000 sf of hydroseed 2 150.00 300.00
along Croyden
50% Deposit required for work to be scheduled Total: $300.00

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

I authorize ProTurf Management LLC to do the specified work; payment will be made as outlined above.
I fully understand this proposal and accept it as written.

Signature: Date

Please return one signed copy of this proposal within 15 days. A financial charge of 2% (Annual Rate of 24%) or a minimum service of $5.00 will
be applied to all past due accounts. All work shall be professionally performed in accordance with industry standards. We are fully insured.

e

Authofized Signature for ProTurf Management LLC

227




Memorandum ol

& = i
) = = A e S
Date: September 7, 2023 \ gh 1teino

, CHARTER TOWNSHIP
To: Township Board

From: James Porter al Department

Subject: Fire and Safety S“;_)ecial Assessment District No. 2

Objectives

To adopt the Resolution Authorizing Plans and Cost Estimate for consideration of the establishment of the Fire and
Safety Special Assessment District No. 2 and set the public hearing on the establishment of the District for September
26, 2023.

Recommended Motion

I make the motion to adopt the Resolution Authorizing Plans and Cost Estimate to consider the establishment of the
Fire and Safety Special Assessment District No. 2 and set the hearing on the establishment of the District for
September 26, 2023.

Background

I know the Board is aware of the increasing cost of operating the Fire Department and the strain on the Fire Department’s
budget. After a fairly extensive analysis, it is clear that much of the financial burden put on the Fire Department comes
from those areas that are zoned as commercial, multi-family and high-density residential within the Township. We split
the Police Special Assessment District for the same reason the Fire Department is requesting that we split the Fire Special
Assessment District. The Fire Department is requesting that we do the same to allow for a different allocation of the
costs in the new District.

Information Provided

Attached you will find the excerpt of Meeting Minutes that includes a Resolution Authorizing Plans and Cost
Estimate for the establishment the Fire and Safety Special Assessment District No. 2, and a map of the Fire and Safety
Special Assessment District No. 2.

Core Values

Sustainability

7275 W. Main Street, Kalamazoo, MI 49009, (269) 216-5220, Fax (269) 375-7180, v ww oshiemo org

228
228



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF OSHTEMO

KALAMAZOO COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Excerpt of Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Township Board
Held at the Township Hall on Tuesday, September 12, 2023

Members Present:

Members Absent:

The Supervisor stated that the Township Wide Special Assessment District for Fire
Protection was established by the voters in 1966. Since that time, the increased demands on the
Fire Department and Public Safety Department, has placed an increased financial burden on the
Fire Departments budget. After thorough analysis of the response calls by the Townships Fire
Department, it has been verified that a significant number of calls are coming from property
developed to serve commercial, multi-family and high-density residential areas of the Township.
In order to equitably distribute the proportional cost of operating the fire and safety services in
the Township, the Board believes it is necessary to create a new Township Fire and Safety
Special Assessment District to address the increased calls in the areas of the Township developed
for commercial, multi-family and high-density residential development and to assess costs
accordingly.

The Supervisor stated that, under Public Act 33 of 1951, as amended, and under Public Act
188 of 1954, as amended, the Township Board desires to create a new Township Fire and Safety
Special Assessment District No. 2 for the purpose of defraying the cost of fire and safety
protection in areas of the Township, which were developed to serve commercial, multi-family and
high-density residential uses which required a higher degree of fire and safety services. The
Township Board desires to estimate the cost to be defrayed upon the Township Fire and Safety
Special Assessment District. The Township Board, if it desires to proceed further, shall declare its
intent to establish the new Special Assessment District and shall fix a time and place to hear
objections to the estimate and the creation of the Oshtemo Charter Township, Township Fire and
Safety Special Assessment District No. 2.

After a discussion on the foregoing, it was moved by , supported by
, to adopt the following resolution:

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PLANS AND COST ESTIMATE
WHEREAS, the Oshtemo Charter Township Board, under Act 33 of 1951, as amended and
under Act 188 of 1954, as amended, has tentatively determined to establish the Oshtemo Charter

Township, Fire and Safety Special Assessment District No.2, which District shall be separated

229



from the General Fire and Safety Protection Special Assessment District to create a Special
Assessment District designed to serve commercial, multi-family and high density residential areas
of the Township requiring a higher degree of fire and safety services, as set forth ON THE
ATTACHED MAP LABELED “Oshtemo Charter Township Fire And Safety Special
Assessment District #27.

ALL LANDS NOT LYING WITHIN THE DESCRIBED AREA SHALL REAMIN
WITHIN THE OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP, TOWNSHIP WIDE GENERAL
FIRE PROTECTION SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT; and

WHEREAS, the Township is authorized to establish Fire and Safety Special Assessment
Districts for the purpose of defrayihg the cost of fire and safety protection and to specially assess
the property of the Township benefitted thereby.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

1. That the Oshtemo Charter Township Assessor, be directed to verify the legal
description of the Oshtemo Charter Township, Township Fire and Safety Special Assessment
District No. 2, which shall be separate from the Oshtemo Charter Township, Township Wide
General Fire Protection Special Assessment.

2. That the Township Supervisor be directed to provide an estimate of the cost
allocation for fire and safety protection in the new Township Fire and Safety Special Assessment
District No. 2, in areas of the Township, which will be defrayed by the establishment of the
proposed Oshtemo Charter Township, Township Fire and Safety Special Assessment District No.

2.

230



3. That the foregoing items be filed with the Township Clerk upon completion of the

same.

4. That all resolutions and parts of resolution insofar as they conflict with the
provisions of this resolution may and the same hereby are rescinded.

Upon roll call vote, the following voted yes:

The following voted no:

The following abstained:

The Supervisor declared the motion carried and duly adopted.

Dusty Farmer, Township Clerk

3 s ok ok ok sk sk ke ok ok ok sk ok ok ok sk ok sk sk sk ok sk ok ok s ok ok s ok ok o sk ok o o e sk sk sk ok sk s ok sk ok sk ok ke sk sk ok ok sk ok ok ok ok Sk sk ke sk sk sk ok ok s sk ok sk sk ok skok ok ok

CERTIFICATE

I, DUSTY FARMER, Clerk of the Charter Township of Oshtemo, hereby certify that the
foregoing constitutes a true copy of an Excerpt of the minutes of a regular meeting of the Oshtemo
Charter Township Board held on , at which meeting
members were present as indicated said minutes and voted thereon as set forth, that said meeting
was held in accordance of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Michigan.

Dusty Farmer, Township Clerk

231



. Oshtemo Charter Township
+ Fire & Safety Special Assessment District #2

Kalamazoo County, Michigan

PR TS < i PETE PP, . s WERT PP s PETE PR .o o DPPE PTG 1 ST PO < AL NG .
E— . R . &
=T A
] —— - — "GHAVE.  2h] “w 'E;ﬂ\r%% I
1 | g = = — — TP 41 ,Um’ B
] % T - 4 ﬂ | r - 1:1‘ = i
w bt o

| S 1T f " |
=y . = . i ﬁ'[ﬂ'f” ’“ #1 | - A T'ﬁ y H il ' [ =
3 B 13 S R e == iy AL

= = o2 . == =<

E'—'I 5 1 ‘;i [ + ;_E— __ﬁdrl :

1 = T == }_—'__?- — 3 —] Ji‘mt = A : _:1_ — =1
- == Eee - = =— I

1 L1.b = B i . .

{ Ol | | AVETT] _A!_—:_T - = o L
= B /) = == 7| |7 [
b | = : W 5 [=

£ o K
.3 ﬂljl_ il M Lr §_1N STe.
18 ui 1F 1 T 4 -

=) HI — |

] hj = - & ] : H

:| | T | 1§ T
o I e I P iil ' ?
i == a
¥1 & id b | o b e ) N

[T

| =

LAt
—Ar——“ﬂ
L
—
A
. SLJFHL

42°16
8
1
T
el
=8
i
— g
TH
-
i
r
&%
=
|
42°16

__ q Il Lu LB (PARKVIEW ) -
4 '_~_| |
= s B — |
] i I
g-‘ - I o = = —I'r?
I — - M ; ST = g5 ¥
| [ — % — L2 b ,_]:
1= -2l 2R mentd TR { nd P e LTI 5
ashas | gseas | -eseas | eseazy | asear | -gsear | -gsea0 | gse3g

Legend

7//// Fire and Safety Special Assessment District #2
| Other Parcels

- - — - Section Lines

1: Oshtemo Township Boundary

I Water Bodies

Waterways e Miles

“roatad: R/21 /7072



| Funds Requested To Funds Re From Authartzation Previowsly | Wrthin Apprvd
Date Dept. Head Fund Name GL Number Description Amount GL Number Amount Oty fna BAY7 nation of Obaed? |  Budget?
101-701-70300 Salary PC/Z8A §  15.000.00 101-000-20000 Carryover S 15,000.00 This line item was not moved to the recommended column for
8/22/2023 Lubbert General 2023, so the dollars were not budgeted.
N NO NO
Total 5 15,000.00 Total 5 15,000,00
Funds Requested To | Funds ed From Authorfzxtion Previausly | Within Apprvd)
Date Dept. Head Fund Name GL Number Description Amount GL Number Description Amount | Only (noBA? Explanation of Request Dbomed? | Budpt?
107-756-B0800 Consultant 3 10.000.00 107-756-97400 Capital Outlay Imp 5 10.000.00 survey for Fruit Belt Trail to determine the validity of a property
8/23/2023 Street Parks owner claim to 30 ft of the property.
Y No Yes
Total $  10,000.00 Total $ __ 10,000.00
Funds Requested To Funds Requested From Authorlzation | Praviousty | Within Agprvd
Date Dept. Head Fund Name GL Number Description Amount GL Number Description Amount | Onlyno BAF7 | tion of Dbcuned? | Budgut?
101-249-96300 Ci d Services 9] 5,000.00 101-000-4000 Carryover 3 5,000.00 Surevey of Township Hall and Township Park property to
8/23/2023 Bell General reconfigure the legal description.
N Yes No
Total S 5,000,00 Total 5 5,000.00
Funds Requested To. Funds Requested From Authadastion | Previously
Date Dept. Head Fund Name GL Number on Amount GL Number Description Amount | On'y fno B} lon of t CL Wl D
107-756-85300 Telephones E 2,600.00 101-000-40000 Carryover S 2,600.00 Drake Farm Phone lines for the year. These were not put in the
9/4/2023 Gibson Parks 2023 budget.
N no no
Total 5 2.600.00 Total S 2,600.00
Funds R sted To Funds From Authortztion Previowsly | |Within Apprud|
Date Dept. Head Fund Name GL Number Description Amount GL Number Description Amount Only fro BAJ? Explanation of Request Dheussmd? |  Budget?
211-344-98100 Capital/Facilities 5 5,000.00 211-344-98100 Capital/Facilities $ 5,000.00 Our fire station exhaust air handler broke and we need a
9/5/2023 McComb Capital replacement part, plus a sgare for each end of the connection‘ for
A the trucks. We are not asking for new funds, we are reallocating No Yes
water softener funds.
Total 5 5,000.00 Total ] 5,000.00
Funds Requested To Funds Requested From Authortzation Praviously ]
Date Dept. Head Fund Name GL Number Description Amount GL Number Description Amount Only (no AR Explanation of Request Discussed? |  Budget?
101-228-97000 Capital Outlay $15,000.00 101-000-40000 Carryover $15,000.00 Additional money to cover meeting room A/V upgrade
9/5/2023 LT,
/51 Glbson LT N - o
Total (3 15,000.00 Tbl;‘ 3 15,000.00
Funds Requested To Funds Requasted From Authorimtion Previowsty | Wishin Appred
Date Dept. Head Fund Name GL Number Description Amount GL Number on Amount | Onlvina BAR Explanation of Request DbCinsdif T et
101-509-97600.PLATSW EI Street sidewalk repair & MIiEI $2,912.99 101-509-97600.PLATSW kal Street sidewalk repair & Ma{ S 2,912.99 Approval to spend $2,912.99 from local streets sidewalk repair &
. i budget on g restoration.
9/7/2023 Horner/Elliot General Yes No Yes
Taotal 5 2,912.99 Total 5 2,912,99
Funds Requested To | Funds Requested From Authortmtion Praviously | Within Apprvd
Dato Dept. Head Fund Name GL Number Descrl| Amount GL Number Amount Onty {no BAJ? of Docmed? |~ Bidget?.
101-756-23100 Maintenance Services 5 291299 101-756-83100 Maintenance Services S 2,912.99 Approval to spend $2,912.99 from maintenance services on
0/7/2023 greenspace restoration.
17/ Street Services Yes No Yes
Total 5 2,912.99 Total k) 2,912.99
Grand Tnllll $ 58.425.98
Total Added to Budget | 37,600.00
Authorization Only| § 20,825.98
Total Not P Discussed withTB| §  38,425.98
.
REVIEW DATE 9/12/2023 SIGNATURE

233




	0 Agenda
	0 Publ Cmt_Zoom_Values
	8.b Resolution to TB re Poverty Exemption Guidelines
	8.c Recommendation for Rezone 1560 S 8th St (Life Spring Church)
	9. Oshtemo Housing Plan
	9. Housing Plan Memo
	9. Oshtemo Twp. Housing Plan

	10. Recommendation for Conditional Rezone 8447 Stadium Dr (Midwest V, LLC)
	11.Small Cell Wireless Communication Facility 5G Ordinance
	12. Wireless Telecommunication Facility 5G Ordinance
	13. Parks Proposal for 5-Year Plan Consult
	13. Parks Consultant Memo_
	13. Proposal for 5 year Plan Consult

	14. Meeting Room AV Upgrade
	14. a Meeting Room AV Upgrade
	14. b Intaglio - Township meeting room upgrades 7-24-23
	14. c CTI - Upgrade-Replace AV equipment

	15. Award Landscape Contract Croyden Ave
	15.a Croyden Ave Restoration
	15.b Naylor Quotes
	Naylor Landscaping main quote
	Naylor water quote

	15.c Niewoonder Quote
	15.d ProTurf Quotes
	ProTurf 1
	ProTurf 2


	16. Resolution re Fire and Safety SAD No. 2
	17. Budget Amendments



